
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, January 5, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 

Zoom Meeting Information on Page 2 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on topics not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Approve Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  November 17th & 24th   
c. Review Order No. OR-2017-01:  Establishing a Rotating Cycle for the 

Chairmanship and Vice Chairmanship of the Board of Commissioners 
d. Contract with Community Counseling Solutions, Inc. for Assessment and 

Planning for Behavioral Health Housing 
e. Subdivision Plat for River Ridge Estates, Phase 4, Boardman 
f. Designate County Road Official 
g. Amendment 7 to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement 

#166052 for the Financing of Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery & 
Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services 

h. Extension to Federal Lands Access Program Agreement, Federal Highway 
Administration 

5. Business Items 
a. Tax Foreclosure Sale to Previous Owner (Mike Gorman, Assessor) 
b. Award North County Janitorial Contract (Sandi Pointer, Public Works)  
c. Award South County Janitorial Contract (Sandi Pointer)  
d. Contract – Motorola Solutions, Inc. for 911 Phone System (Lt. Kristen Bowles)  
e. Grant Agreement with Oregon Department of Land Conservation & Development 

for Economic Development Planning Grant (Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director) 
f. Wheatridge Strategic Investment Program STEAM and STEM IGA (Kate Knop, 

Finance Director)  
g. Request to Purchase CIS Endpoint Security Services (Darrell Green, County 

Administrator) 
h. Review BOC Committee & Board Assignments for 2022 
i. Updated COVID-19 Vaccination Policy 
j. Building Project Updates 

6. Department Reports 
a. Administrator’s Monthly Report (Darrell Green) 
b. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (Administrative Lieutenant Melissa Ross) 
c. Fair Office Quarterly Report (Ann Jones) 
d. District Attorney Quarterly Report (Justin Nelson) 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports 
9. Signing of documents 



 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 
 

10. Adjournment 
 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the  
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about  
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, County Administrator at (541) 676-
2529. 
 

Zoom Meeting Information 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546  PASSWORD:  97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only Using Meeting ID 541-676-2546#: 

• 1-346-248-7799 
• 1-669-900-6833  
• 1-312-626-6799 

• 1-929-436-2866 
• 1-253-215-8782 
• 1-301-715-8592 

 
 
 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546






























































































































































































































































      
Motorola Solutions, Inc.  206-441-2101 
3131 Elliott Ave, Suite 200 
Seattle, WA  98121 
 
December 14, 2021 
 
Morrow County Sheriffs Department 
Attention:  Lt. Kristen Bowles 
325 Willow View Drive 
Heppner, OR 97836 
 
RE: Proposal for VESTA Emergency Call Handling System 
 
Dear Lt. Bowles, 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola Solutions) appreciates the opportunity to provide Morrow County 
Sheriffs Department (“Customer”) quality communications equipment and services.  Motorola Solutions 
project team has taken great care to propose a solution to address your needs and provide exceptional 
value. 

Motorola Solutions is pleased to provide you a proposal for a three answering position VESTA 
Emergency Call Handling customer premise-based system.  The proposal is turnkey and includes a total 
of five years of support.  As the incumbent solution provider Motorola Solutions is excited to assist 
Customer with this endeavor.  This response package consists of all the requirements specifically outlined 
in our onsite conversations, along with optional features. 
 
Motorola Solutions’ VESTA® 9-1-1 solution is tackling some of the toughest dilemmas by pioneering the 
consolidation of Next-Generation 9-1-1 call handling into an integrated solution to simplify your 
operations. Motorola Solutions’ NG911 architecture provides a robust, cost-effective system with 
implementation, maintenance and support that is exceptional in the industry.   
 
This proposal is subject to the Houston-Galveston Area Council (“H-GAC”) agreement entered into 
between Motorola Solutions and H-GAC dated September 28, 2021, and the terms of the enclosed 
Communications System and Services Agreement (“CSSA”) and its addenda, which operates as an End 
User Agreement under Article 2 of the H-GAC Contract Special Provisions.  This proposal shall remain 
valid for 90 days from the date of this cover letter.  Customer may accept this proposal by simply issuing 
a purchase order incorporating this proposal.     
 
We thank you for the opportunity to furnish you with “best in class” solutions and we hope to strengthen 
our relationship in implementing this project. Our goal is to provide you with the best solutions and 
services available in the industry. 
 
Should you have any questions or inquiries please contact your Motorola Solutions Representative, 
Shannon Hickey at 415-516-9145 or via email at Shannon.hickey@motorolasolutions.com. 
 
Best regards, 

 
 
Chris Lentz 
Area Sales Manager  
 
Enclosure 



 

  

 

The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is proprietary and/or trade secret information of 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola Solutions”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only.  To the fullest 
extent allowed by applicable law, the Information is not to be disclosed publicly or in any manner to anyone other than those required to evaluate the 
Information without the express written permission of Motorola Solutions.  
 
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, 
LLC and are used under license. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. © 2021 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved. 
 
 

MORROW COUNTY, 
OREGON 

 

NEXT GENERATION VESTA 9-1-1 DECEMBER 15, 2021 
 

HARDWARE REFRESH                                                                     
FIRM PRICE PROPOSAL 
 

 





 

Morrow County, Oregon December 15, 2021 
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Table of Contents i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 1 
Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 1-1 

Section 2 
Solution Description ........................................................................................................................ 2-1 

2.1 Background ..................................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Solution Review ............................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.3 Summary Of Offer ........................................................................................................... 2-2 

Section 3 
Product Description......................................................................................................................... 3-1 

3.1 Data Management ........................................................................................................... 3-1 
3.1.1 Activity View ................................................................................................................ 3-1 

3.2 Geographic Information System (GIS) ............................................................................. 3-1 
3.2.1 VESTA Map Local ....................................................................................................... 3-2 

Section 4 
Optional Features ........................................................................................................................... 4-1 

4.1 VESTA SMS - Optional.................................................................................................... 4-1 
4.2 Enhanced Data Window - Optional .................................................................................. 4-1 
4.3 VESTA CommandPOST - Optional ................................................................................. 4-2 
4.4 CommandCentral Cloud-Based Services - Optional ........................................................ 4-3 

4.4.1 Citizen Input -Optional ................................................................................................. 4-3 
4.4.2 Smart Transcription - Optional ..................................................................................... 4-4 

4.5 VESTA Managed Detection and Response - Optional ..................................................... 4-6 
4.5.1 ActiveEye Security Management ................................................................................. 4-6 
4.5.2 Strategic Threat Intelligence ........................................................................................ 4-7 

Section 5 
Service/Warranty ............................................................................................................................ 5-1 

5.1 Motorola Solutions Warranty............................................................................................ 5-1 
5.2 Onsite Infrastructure Response ....................................................................................... 5-1 
5.3 Technical Support Service ............................................................................................... 5-2 
5.4 Software Support ............................................................................................................. 5-2 
5.5 Monitoring and Response ................................................................................................ 5-3 

Section 6 
Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 ................................................................................................. 6-1 

6.1 Implementation Methodology ........................................................................................... 6-1 
6.2 Phase I - Planning ........................................................................................................... 6-1 

6.2.1 Project Kick-off Meeting ............................................................................................... 6-2 
6.2.2 Project Workflow and Design Review Meeting ............................................................. 6-2 



  

December 15, 2021 Morrow County, Oregon 
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

ii Table of Contents Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

6.2.3 Project Plan Approval .................................................................................................. 6-3 
6.3 Phase II – Installation and Testing ................................................................................... 6-3 

6.3.1 Solution Staging .......................................................................................................... 6-4 
6.3.2 Site Installation ............................................................................................................ 6-4 
6.3.3 Testing ......................................................................................................................... 6-5 
6.3.4 Lockdown .................................................................................................................... 6-5 
6.3.5 Customer Responsibilities During Installation .............................................................. 6-5 

6.4 Phase III – Cutover .......................................................................................................... 6-6 
6.4.1 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities During Cutover ..................................................... 6-7 
6.4.2 Customer Responsibilities During Cutover ................................................................... 6-7 

6.5 Phase IV – Project Closure .............................................................................................. 6-7 
6.5.1 Site Installation and Verification Package .................................................................... 6-8 

Section 7 
Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription .............................................. 7-1 

7.1 Contract ........................................................................................................................... 7-1 
7.1.1 Contract Award ............................................................................................................ 7-1 
7.1.2 Contract Administration ............................................................................................... 7-1 
7.1.3 Project Kickoff .............................................................................................................. 7-2 

7.2 Order Processing ............................................................................................................. 7-2 
7.2.1 Process Equipment List ............................................................................................... 7-2 

7.3 Manufacturing and Staging .............................................................................................. 7-2 
7.3.1 Manufacture Motorola Solutions Equipment................................................................. 7-2 
7.3.2 Staging ........................................................................................................................ 7-3 

7.4 System Installation .......................................................................................................... 7-3 
7.4.1 Install Call Handling Equipment ................................................................................... 7-3 
7.4.2 Fixed Call Handling Equipment Installation Complete .................................................. 7-3 

7.5 Finalize ............................................................................................................................ 7-4 
7.5.1 Resolve Punch List ...................................................................................................... 7-4 

7.6 Project Administration ...................................................................................................... 7-4 
7.6.1 Project Status Meetings ............................................................................................... 7-4 
7.6.2 Change Order Process ................................................................................................ 7-4 

Section 8 
Optional Statement of Work – Managed Detection and Response Service ..................................... 8-1 

8.1 VESTA Managed Detection and Response ..................................................................... 8-1 
8.1.1 Priority Level Definitions and Response Times ............................................................ 8-2 

8.2 Strategic Threat Intelligence ............................................................................................ 8-3 
8.2.1 Scope Limitations & Clarifications ................................................................................ 8-3 

Section 9 
Equipment List ................................................................................................................................ 9-1 

9.1 Morrow County PSAP ...................................................................................................... 9-1 
9.2 Optional Feature pricing .................................................................................................. 9-6 



 

Morrow County, Oregon December 15, 2021 
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Table of Contents iii 

9.2.1 VESTA SMS ................................................................................................................ 9-6 
9.2.2 VESTA RapidSOS ....................................................................................................... 9-8 
9.2.3 CommandCentral Cloud Service – Citizen Input & Smart Transcription ....................... 9-9 
9.2.4 VESTA Managed Detection and Response Services (MDR) ..................................... 9-10 
9.2.5 2nd CommandPost ..................................................................................................... 9-10 
9.2.6 3rd Optional Call-Taker Workstation Position .............................................................. 9-12 

Section 10 
Pricing Summary .......................................................................................................................... 10-1 

Section 11 
Communications System and Services Agreement ....................................................................... 11-1 

 

 

 





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Introduction 1-1 

SECTION 1 

INTRODUCTION 
Motorola Solutions is proud to present a VESTA® 9-1-1 call handling Hardware Refresh in response to 
Morrow County’s request. As part of this proposal, the following additional options are offered. 

• VESTA CommandPost 

• VESTA Optional 3rd Call-Taker Position 

• VESTA SMS 

• VESTA RapidSOS for Enhance Citizen data – Advanced VESTA License is required to be purchased 
to receive this feature 

• CommandCentral Cloud Base Services – Citizen Input & Smart Transcription 

• VESTA Managed Detection and Response Services 

Today, the VESTA 9-1-1 solution is the industry standard comprehensive NG9-1-1 solution. It offers 
PSAP’s increased product features, operational efficiencies, and reliability along with stable, centralized 
call handling for individual or multiple PSAP locations. 

The VESTA 9-1-1 solutions are designed to meet growing community needs and emerging 9-1-1 
technology. Morrow County is assured the solutions proposed herein will comply and meet both the E9-
1-1 requirements of today and the NG9-1-1 requirements of tomorrow. By selecting Motorola Solutions, 
Morrow County can be confident they are partnering with the leading provider of Public Safety 9-1-1 
solutions and selecting the highest possible level of service to the visitors, citizens, and public safety 
professionals of their region. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

1-2 Introduction Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

 

VESTA 9-1-1 is an integral part of Motorola Solutions' end-to-end Public Safety Software Enterprise driving 
the integration of a complete Command Center suite. From answering thousands of emergency calls and text 
messages to processing video, disparate evidence and records, Motorola Solutions is helping agencies 
transform into intelligence-driven command centers, enabling them to make more informed decisions resulting 
in better outcomes. Learn more about Motorola Solutions' wide-ranging product portfolio.  

 
 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Solution Description 2-1 

SECTION 2 

SOLUTION DESCRIPTION 
2.1 BACKGROUND 

Morrow County is currently a standalone VESTA System operating with five (5) Call-Taker positions 
with software version R6.HF2 with Security Management. 

2.2 SOLUTION REVIEW 
Morrow County have requested a hardware refresh on their existing VESTA system, which has 
recently surpassed the 5-year mark. The new system will reduce the number of Call-Taker positions 
from five (5) to three (3), making the 3rd position a CommandPost. The hardware refresh will include 
the replacement of 3 workstations positions, servers, gateways, and switches.  A software application 
upgrade from R6 HF2 to R7.7 is also included.  The remaining two (2) positions will be 
decommissioned and will no longer be in use 

The new solution will leverage existing investment and licensing where applicable while 
offering support for both current and future NG9-1-1 technologies.  

As part of this proposal, Motorola Solutions included the following optional features and positions for 
consideration: 

• VESTA 3rd Call-Taker Workstation positions 

• VESTA CommandPost 

• VESTA SMS 

• VESTA RapodSOS 

• CommandCentral Cloud Base Services – Citizen Input & Smart Transcription 

• VESTA Managed Detection and Response Services 

Morrow County will reuse/provide the following peripherals at all locations: 

• Provide or Reuse the Netclock 9483+3 port 
• Reuse Existing Headset 
• ALI Modem (if applicable) 
• UPS 

 

  



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

2-2 Solution Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

 
Fully Configurable VESTA 9-1-1 Solution 

2.3 SUMMARY OF OFFER 
The proposal includes a comprehensive NG9-1-1 Call Handling solution for one PSAP location. 

The configuration proposed is based on information provided by Morrow County during a review of 
system requirements. Any changes in the proposed system or equipment will require a change order, 
which may incur additional costs. 

Morrow County Sheriff Office 

• (2) Call Taker positions with single 24-inch LED monitors, VESTA 9-1-1 Basic Operations 
license  

At each position: 

− 48-key Genovation keypad with 25ft cable 

− Sound Arbitration Unit (SAM)  

− SAM External Speaker kit 

− Handset and Cord 

− VESTA® Map Local per seat license 

− VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR per seat license 

− VESTA® Activity View per seat license 

• (8) CAMA Trunks 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Solution Description 2-3 

• (16) FXO ports  

• (1) VESTA 9-1-1 Admin Printer 

• MIS - Call management and reporting system 

− VESTA® 9-1-1 Activity View System License 

♦ (1) VESTA® 9-1-1 Activity View Administrative Workstations 

• GIS Informational System 

− Map Local R4 Base 

♦ (2) *GB RAM DRR4 3200 Z2 G5 

♦ (2) Monitors 24” FP Wide 

• Morrow County will reuse existing NetClock or provide Motorola Solutions with a Time 
Synchronization device that is NTP compliant. 

• (1) VESTA® CommandPOST – portable laptop position, docking station, (2)-24-inch monitors ((1) 
for VESTA and (1) for Map Local), keyboard and mouse, 48-key Genovation keypad, Sound 
Arbitration Unit (SAM), VESTA 9-1-1 Basic Operations License 

− VESTA Map Local per seat license 

− VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR per seat license 

− VESTA® Activity View per seat license 

• Training provided – see Equipment List for details. 
− VESTA 9-1-1 Agent 
− VESTA 9-1-1 Admin for Standard 
− CommandPOST 
− E-Learning VESTA 9-1-1 Activity View 
− E-Learning VESTA Map Local Agent 
− E-Learning VESTA Map Local GIS Data Hub 

 

• Optional: 
− VESTA® SMS - integrated Text-To-9-1-1 services – customer is responsible for TCC 

services and network charges 

♦ E-Learning VESTA 9-1-1 SMS Agent Delta 
♦ E-Learning VESTA 9-1-1 SMS Admin Delta 

− RapidSOS Integration via the Enhanced Data Window 

− CommandCentral Cloud-based Services 

♦ (15) Named User License bundle for Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 
Subscription(s) 

− VESTA® Managed Detection and Response Service 

♦ ActiveEye Security Management 
♦ Strategic Threat Intelligence 

 
− (1) Optional 2nd CommandPost position 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

2-4 Solution Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

− (1) Optional 3rd Workstation Call-Taker Position 

 

 

System-wide 

• Morrow County-wide data collection and reporting services on all 9-1-1 transactions 

• System and component level monitoring, alarming, diagnostics and reporting services 

• Basic GIS management services to support the VESTA Map implementation 

• All-inclusive software support, updates, and upgrades for the contract term 

• 24/7/365 help desk, trouble ticketing and customer support services 

• Installation, testing, training, maintenance and on-site support services by Motorola Solutions 

• Project management services for the planning, design, testing, installation and operation of 
systems for contract term 

 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Product Description 3-1 

SECTION 3 

PRODUCT DESCRIPTION 
The following descriptions are new or optional products proposed in addition to the hardware refresh. 

3.1 DATA MANAGEMENT 

3.1.1 Activity View  
The Activity View management application provides real-time monitoring of PSAP activities. The 
Activity View management application may be configured by the user to display the status of: 

• Call taker status 

• Group status 

• Group ACD status 

• Incoming trunks 

• Administrative lines 

• Active calls 

A user may also configure custom message colors and set a variety of thresholds which will trigger 
color changes. 

The Activity View application also supports a Display Panels feature allowing a user to configure a 
display output that is compatible with large screen (wall-mount) monitors and/or projectors. 

The Activity View management application can also display up to five (5) marquee messages to 
inform call-takers of upcoming events. 

NOTE:  It is recommended that the Activity View application be installed on a separate workstation 
from the VESTA 9-1-1 call-taker application due to the amount of CPU and network resources 
required. If installed on the same workstation as the VESTA 9-1-1 call-taker application, both 
applications should not be running at the same time. 

3.2 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
To meet the needs of PSAPs of varying sizes, Motorola Solutions can provide a suite of geographic 
information systems (GIS) display and update products. Each GIS display product supports the 
following capabilities: 

• Display wireline addresses based upon street centerline or point data 

• Accurately plot Phase I & II wireless calls, including showing the uncertainty (if provided) 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

3-2 Product Description Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

• Accurately plot SMS/Text-to-9-1-1 calls based on the location information provided with the 
call 

• Update the caller’s location when ALI or location information rebids are performed on the 
VESTA 9-1-1 call taker console 

• Integration with Pictometry and aerial imagery (optional) 

3.2.1 VESTA Map Local 
VESTA Map Local is a subset of VESTA Map that is run locally on the workstation, rather than 
being network dependent. This allows greater flexibility for use in smaller sites that may not have 
dedicated network resources to support the full VESTA Map product. VESTA Map Local provides all 
of the following features: 

• Provides a detailed, easy-to-use interface for viewing and managing incidents on digital maps 

• Displays call types (wireline, Phase I and II, VoIP and Telematics) on the map using unique 
icons for a comprehensive view 

• Supports Internet delivery of online and 3rd party data such as ArcGIS online, Rapid SOS, 
etc. 

• Streamlines Call Handling processes by displaying 9-1-1 call type and location information 
as layers versus disparate system views. 

 
VESTA Map Local 

RapidSOS Enhanced Location 

To help the PSAP gain greater location accuracy, the RapidSOS NG911 Clearinghouse data is 
available from the VESTA Map Local solution.   



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Product Description 3-3 

The benefit of integrating with the RapidSOS NG911 Clearinghouse includes: 

• Security – The location is stored securely in the NG911 Clearinghouse, an access-controlled 
NENA i3 – compliant Location Information Server (LIS) and the Additional Data Repository 
(ADR) 

• Speed of Delivery – Upon delivery of a 9-1-1 call, VESTA automatically queries the NG911 
Clearinghouse, providing location information at the same time Phase 1 location data arrives 

• Location Display – RapidSOS supplemental location data is displayed alongside the ALI 
location (when available), not instead of the ALI location 

 
RapidSOS Enhanced Location 





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Features 4-1 

SECTION 4 

OPTIONAL FEATURES 

4.1 VESTA SMS - OPTIONAL 
The VESTA SMS solution allows VESTA 9-1-1 systems to connect directly to Text Control Centers 
(TCCs) using standards-based MSRP protocol for delivery of text messages directly to VESTA 
console users. Some of the features of the VESTA SMS solution are: 

• Standards based Text-to-9-1-1 solution 

• Easy and flexible to operate 

• Supports multiple text queues 

• Text capability may be assigned to user roles 

• Allows transfer of text calls within a single multi-PSAP system 

4.2 ENHANCED DATA WINDOW - OPTIONAL 
The Enhanced Data Window provides additional data content to the VESTA 9-1-1 console, which can 
help a Telecommunicator better assist a 9-1-1 caller. 

Motorola Solutions and RapidSOS understand that every second counts in an emergency and that 
Telecommunicators and first responders need location accuracy to save lives. Through the integration 
of the RapidSOS NG911 Clearinghouse into VESTA, PSAPs now have the capability for improved 
situational awareness and improved decision making. 

When a call comes in from an enabled smartphone, Telecommunicators will see location & enhanced 
data (if available) on the Enhanced Data Window in addition to the ALI on the VESTA console. The 
additional location data is based on Advanced Mobile Location (AML) from mobile devices. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

4-2 Optional Features Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

 
RapidSOS Information Displays in Enhanced Data View 

4.3 VESTA COMMANDPOST - OPTIONAL 
The VESTA CommandPOST call processing solution is a portable call-taking position designed to 
allow a call-taker to move to another location, reconnect to their host system, and begin taking 9-1-1 
(with ANI/ALI) and administrative calls. All features of the traditional VESTA 9-1-1 position are 
persevered. In order to use Instant Recall Recording (IRR), the VESTA CommandPOST must be 
used with the SAM module. The VESTA CommandPOST call processing solution can connect to the 
host system via: 

• Public Internet connection using VPN  

• Private IP network with/without VPN connection  

• IP satellite network with/without VPN connection  

The VESTA CommandPOST typically consists of the following components: 

• Hardened laptop computer (refer to hardware specification for latest model) 

• SAM (Sound Arbitration Unit) 

• All required cables 

• Weather-resistant rolling case with cut foam liner 

• Docking station (optional) 

• Additional battery (optional) 

• External monitor (optional) 

• External mouse & keyboard (optional) 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Features 4-3 

 
CommandPOST Ruggedized Mobile Package 

 

4.4 COMMANDCENTRAL CLOUD-BASED SERVICES - OPTIONAL 

4.4.1 Citizen Input -Optional 
Citizen Input is part of the CommandCentral portfolio of services available on a subscription basis to 
emergency communications agencies. Citizen Input provides VESTA 9-1-1 customers the 
opportunity to take steps towards realizing the benefits of NG9-1-1 content including 
streaming/recorded video and photo attachments. Offering PSAPs experience with cloud-based 
services in a flexible yet controlled environment, Citizen Input can be deployed with current CPE 
platforms extending capabilities with no impact to call handling functionality. 

Citizen Input requires VESTA 9-1-1, Release 7.2 and above and a FortiGate 60E Firewall for each 
PSAP using the service. 

Citizen Input provides the following features: 

• Allows citizens to send video, photographs and data to the PSAP 

• No app download required on citizen's device 

• Provides a controlled, permission-based approach to managing visual content 

• Stores visuals as part of the call detail history  



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

4-4 Optional Features Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

• Content is approved by the PSAP before it can be submitted and viewed 

• Once authorized, an SMS containing a URL is sent to the citizen's phone that placed the 9-1-
1 call. The citizen uses the URL to send the video or photo to the PSAP 

• Viewing can be stopped at any time and all content is captured as permanent records; storage 
and strong evidence protection protocols are enforced 

• Visual content is linked to VESTA 9-1-1 call records for audit purposes and ease of tracking 

 

Citizen Input allows a citizen to send video, photographs and data to the PSAP enhancing operations 
and improving call handling efficiency. We know PSAPs are uncomfortable about allowing video and 
photographs into the PSAPs and we are addressing this concern with a controlled, permissions-based 
approach where visuals are not accepted unless the PSAP authorizes submission. All digital evidence 
collected from callers using Citizen Input is stored and tracked in a CommandCentral storage tool. 
Storage is included with a subscription to Citizen Input. 

Unlimited access to user training videos and Quick Reference Cards (QRC) are included in the 
Citizen Input subscription service. The comprehensive videos are sufficient to educate each user and 
have them ready to begin using Citizen Input in a short amount of time. 

If additional one-on-one training is desired, Train-the-Trainer (TTT) Remote or Onsite is available for 
an optional one-time fee. Remote Train-the-Trainer training includes 4 hours of remote consultation 
and training for up to 8 students. Onsite TTT training includes 4 hours of onsite consultation and 
training for up to 8 students. 

4.4.2 Smart Transcription - Optional 
CommandCentral Smart Transcription is a cloud-based service that takes the 9-1-1 call audio and 
transcribes it real-time into a searchable transcript, making it available for live call monitoring to 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Features 4-5 

increase situational awareness across an entire agency. It preserves the transcript in long-term, secure 
storage for post-call analysis. 

Smart Transcription is offered as a subscription service and works on VESTA 9-1-1, Release 7.2 and 
above. 

Smart Transcription provides the following features: 

• Integrated real-time audio transcription from VESTA 9-1-1  

• Real-time and post-call transcription  

• Keywords and full text search capability  

• Quick search and review historical transcripts  

• Agent, console and call metadata provided  

• No app download required on citizen device  

• Security processes built into the service to reduce the risk of cyberattacks  

• Ability for supervisors to monitor transcripts  

• Transcripts stored, along with metadata, for investigations, case summaries or locating 
conversation patterns over time  

• Short learning curve for call takers since there are no changes on how they answer voice and 
text calls today on their VESTA 9-1-1 system  

• No impact to VESTA 9-1-1 call handling functionality  



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

4-6 Optional Features Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

 

 

4.5 VESTA MANAGED DETECTION AND RESPONSE - OPTIONAL 
VESTA Managed Detection and Response reduces the risk that a cybersecurity threat will impact 
system availability, integrity, and confidentiality. Qualified cybersecurity analysts with extensive 
experience working on VESTA 9-1-1 mission-critical systems will monitor the Customer’s system 
for signs of cybersecurity threats. 

The VESTA Managed Detection and Response service is performed by Motorola Solutions’ Network 
and Security Operations Center (NSOC) using specialized monitoring elements. The NSOC’s expert 
cybersecurity analysts monitor for alerts 24x7x365. If an event that may represent a threat is detected, 
analysts will investigate and initiate an appropriate Customer engagement. Customer engagements 
may include, but are not limited to, requesting additional information from the Customer, continuing 
to monitor the event for further development, or informing the Customer to enact the Customer’s 
documented Incident Response plan.  

NSOC analysts rely on monitoring elements to detect signs of a potential threat impacting the 
Customer’s VESTA 9-1-1 system. The following subsections describes these elements. 

4.5.1 ActiveEye Security Management 
Motorola Solutions’ ActiveEye Security Management platform collects and analyzes security event 
streams from ActiveEye Remote Security Sensors in the Customer’s VESTA 9-1-1 system, using 
security orchestration and advanced analytics to identify the most important security events from 
applicable systems.  



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Features 4-7 

The platform automates manual investigation tasks, verifies activity with external threat intelligence 
sources, and learns what events will require rapid response action. The goal is to reduce time to 
resolution and contain any security event.  

The Customer will receive access to the ActiveEye platform as part of this service. ActiveEye will 
serve as a single interface to display system security information. Using ActiveEye, the Customer will 
be able to configure alerts and notifications, review security data, and perform security investigations.  

• ActiveEye Remote Security Sensor - One or more ActiveEye Remote Security Sensors 
(AERSS) will be deployed into the VESTA 9-1-1 system to deliver the service. These sensors 
monitor geo-diverse sites in the system for security events and pass security information to the 
ActiveEye platform.  

• Log Collection / Analytics - The AERSS deployed in the system collect logs and other security 
information from applicable servers, workstations, switches, routers, and firewalls. This 
information is forwarded to the ActiveEye platform, which uses advanced analytics to identify 
signs of cybersecurity incidents.  

• Intrusion Detection System - The AERSS deployed in the system includes an Intrusion 
Detection System (IDS) that constantly monitors traffic passing across, into, or out of the VESTA 
9-1-1 system. The IDS analyzes traffic for signs of malicious activity in real time, and performs 
packet level and flow level analysis to enable communications modeling. This information is used 
to identify anomalous behavior that is not captured by pre-defined traffic signatures, including 
traffic using encrypted connections. The IDS forwards detected suspicious activity to the NSOC 
for further analysis. 

• Service Dependencies - It is mandatory that all VESTA Managed Detection and Response 
customers also subscribe to the Application Monitoring and Response service for VESTA 9-1-1. 
In the absence of an active Application Monitoring and Response service for VESTA 9-1-1, the 
Vesta Managed Detection and Response for VESTA 9-1-1 service cannot be delivered. 

4.5.2 Strategic Threat Intelligence 
With Strategic Threat Intelligence, Motorola Solutions provides continuous dark web monitoring, 
alerts and notifications, customer risk reviews, organization-specific threat intelligence, and industry-
level threat intelligence. Trained cybersecurity analysts will search the dark web looking for 
indications that any of the Customer’s systems, customer user accounts in the monitored domain, or 
data sets have been compromised. In addition, cybersecurity analysts will search for evidence that the 
Customer’s organization or primary applications may be the target of a threat actor campaign.  

Motorola Solutions cybersecurity analysts will develop threat reports and review them with the 
Customer. Analysts perform threat intelligence gathering using a combination of automated and 
human methods. They review threat intelligence findings during normal US business hours 8x5 on 
standard US business days: Monday through Friday 8AM to 5PM local time, excluding US Holidays. 

• Dedicated Cybersecurity Experts - Motorola Solutions maintains highly trained cybersecurity 
experts skilled in monitoring the dark web and surface web that will perform threat intelligence 
gathering on your behalf, alerting you to threats and indications of compromise. 

• Customer Risk Review - Make staying informed on threats to your organization easier with 
customer risk reviews. Motorola Solutions cybersecurity experts will walk the Customer through 
threat intelligence findings and provide other information that may contextualize the threats the 
Customer faces. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

4-8 Optional Features Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

• Focused Agency Threat Intelligence Report - Reporting to key stakeholders in your 
organization is easy with a prepared customer threat intelligence report tailored to your 
organization.  

• Public Safety Industry Threat Report - Stay current with threats that are facing the Public 
Safety industry at large with the Motorola Solutions’ Public Safety Industry Threat Report. 

Service Dependencies – Motorola Solutions Strategic Threat Intelligence may be purchased a la carte 
or in combination with other Managed Cybersecurity Services for VESTA 9-1-1. 

 

 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Service/Warranty 5-1 

SECTION 5 

SERVICE/WARRANTY 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola Solutions) has the most comprehensive service organization in the 
Land Mobile Industry. Since 1947, we have been building a unique service team, national in scope, 
but local in its ability to respond to Morrow County’s diverse needs. As product and system 
complexity has evolved over the years, the Motorola Solutions Global Solutions and Service Division 
has responded by developing new service products and programs to match the evolution. This ensures 
that we have the ability to provide service products to effectively maintain your system. 

Routine system monitoring, network connectivity issues and ongoing cyber threats eat up valuable 
time and resources. At Motorola Solutions, we understand the complexities and challenges associated 
with maintaining communications integrity. It’s why we proudly offer our Network Security 
Operations Center (NSOC), a best-in-class solution for 24/7 monitoring and 9-1-1 systems 
management. 

We tailor our Service Delivery Plans to support the individual needs of our customers. We do this by 
leveraging our Service Delivery Management team who is focused on the servicing of your system so 
you can focus on the operations. Our Service Delivery Manager will maintain close communications 
with Morrow County to continually monitor and assess our services at all stages and adapt to meet 
your needs where necessary. 

Our goal is to build a service relationship you can trust and count on to grow with your needs and the 
demands of Next Generation 9-1-1 emerging technologies. 

5.1 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS WARRANTY 
Motorola Solutions’ will be providing Morrow County with 24x7x365 support during the 1-year 
warranty period. 

In addition, Motorola Solutions provides a customized support package to meet your needs. We have 
included the following additional services in your support plan. After the first year, these services 
may be purchased under a separate agreement. 

5.2 ONSITE INFRASTRUCTURE RESPONSE 
Motorola Solutions’ On-Site Response service gives you that advantage by making available our 
network of expert support resources located all across North America to provide on-site support when 
you need it. These Motorola Solutions certified field technicians arrive at your door equipped and 
ready to do what it takes to get your system running at optimum capacity. 

Using Motorola Solutions-approved test equipment, service procedures and backed by Motorola 
Solutions centralized technical resources, technicians from your local authorized service center are 
dispatched to your site. The technicians perform diagnostics, remove components for repair, and 
reinstall new or reconditioned components. When it is a response to a call for help, Motorola 
Solutions On-Site Response service guarantees technician dispatch, site arrival, and problem 
resolution. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

5-2 Service/Warranty Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

Motorola Solutions field technicians average 35-60 hours of technical training per year and 15-25 
years of solution experience that aid in the quick and timely resolution of your service issues. 
Motorola Solutions on-site technicians are also backed up by technical consultants and field 
engineering support across the county when the situation calls for a more specialized expertise. We 
recognize that your communication system is critical to your operation and our support strategy of 
local and centralized support is our promise to you that we will do whatever it takes to keep it 
working at peak efficiency. 

Motorola Solutions’ On-Site Response service is a vital component of an intelligent communication 
support plan that keeps your business running, your costs down, and helps you stay focused on your 
goals. 

5.3 TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICE 
Motorola Solutions Technical Support Service assures you maximum preparedness with on-demand 
technical support, commitment to restoration, and whatever it takes to enable immediate 
communication via your wireless network! The skilled professionals and advanced systems at the 
Motorola Solutions System. 

Support Center is there to keep your network running at peak performance 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week. 

Technical Support provides: 

• Expert technologists trained in troubleshooting to analyze, isolate and correct problems to get 
your system issue(s) resolved quickly. 

• Best-in-class Remote Diagnosis capabilities: advanced diagnostics and fully equipped test labs, if 
applicable, based on system type. 

• Automated test systems to quickly diagnose boards. 
• Shared knowledge database constantly updated for technologists to utilize to reduce cycle time. 
• Immediate access to Network Designers and Engineers. 
• Rigorous and defined case and escalation management process and procedures. 
• Motorola Solutions technologists participate in ongoing training programs. 
• Customer case performance reports available upon request. 

5.4 SOFTWARE SUPPORT 
Due to normal advancements in technology, individual components within the E911 platform will 
require periodic update and replacement to mitigate network vulnerabilities and address technology 
obsolescence. Software Agreement complements the lifecycle of the E911 system by providing 
periodic software updates which safeguard and enhance the operation, and extend the lifespan of the 
E911 system.  The Software Agreement provides system release software for VESTA. 

Updated software incorporates the latest advancements in technology and provides improvement in 
network security. Regular updates ensure commercial software remains within the OEM support 
coverage and may provide operational enhancements of previously purchased features. The Software 
Agreement not only provides a simple approach to updating the system, but owners can also realize 
up to 80% cost savings compared to individual procurement of software updates. The fixed price 
annual subscription also provides an approach for consistent budget planning and cost containment 
against unexpected changes. The Software Agreement is a flexible lifecycle management solution that 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Service/Warranty 5-3 

allows the system owner to implement updates on their own schedule and incur hardware and 
implementation services expense at the time of upgrade: 

• Minor releases may include security updates, patches and service pack updates for Microsoft 
Windows and Server OS, Red Hat Linux, Sun Solaris and any VESTA software service packs 
that may be available. 

• Major releases include VESTA system release software to improve the system functionality and 
operation from previous releases as well as significant new feature enhancements that are 
available for purchase. 

5.5 MONITORING AND RESPONSE 
Monitoring and Response Service can help keep your network at optimum availability, so it is ready 
to serve mission-critical communications needs. By watching over the network continuously, 
Network Monitoring Service takes action whenever needed, and resolves network problems. We 
often intervene and correct the problem before you even know a problem exists. Monitoring and 
Response Service provides improved productivity and enhanced network performance, which in turn 
helps to increase your technology Return-On-Investment (ROI). 

Using a combination of network monitoring software, automated alerts, and remote diagnostics 
inquiries, our technologists actively monitor your network to maximize network uptime and overall 
preparedness for the expected and unexpected. Upon receiving an alert, our team immediately 
performs a series of diagnostics to assess the problem. Often the situation can be resolved remotely, 
but when additional attention is required, local field technicians are dispatched immediately to your 
site to achieve restoration. 

Monitoring and Response Service is a vital component of an intelligent communication support plan 
that keeps your business operating smoothly, your costs down, and assures maximum preparedness at 
all times. 

Specifically, Monitoring and Response Service provides: 

• Improved network availability. 
• Remote and timely resolution to minimize downtime. 
• Cost efficiencies. 
• Optimize time at site due to assessment and knowledge transfer before dispatch. 
• Minimize unnecessary trips to site. 
• Mitigate need for 24x7 operations monitoring center. 
• Detailed Reports. 





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 6-1 

SECTION 6 

STATEMENT OF WORK – 
VESTA 9-1-1 

Implementation Planning is an iterative process. It begins during the planning stage and continues 
until the Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) VESTA 9-1-1 system from Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
(Motorola Solutions) is formally migrated and accepted by the agency. The Project Manager (PM), 
working with the project team, is responsible for formulating the required plan to implement and 
communicate the support process for the VESTA 9-1-1 solution. 

6.1 IMPLEMENTATION METHODOLOGY 
Your VESTA 9-1-1 system is a large project involving complexity, contingencies, and collaborations 
with multiple parties. Successful implementation requires an organized and systematic approach to 
project management. 

Your Project Manager and Motorola Solutions Project Manager will play a particularly important role 
in this process by communicating back to their teams the project plan, project status, risks, and next 
steps. The project will use an MS Project Schedule and Project Status Report, which will provide a 
consistent vehicle for communication, management, reporting of progress and detection of potential 
progress delays. 

Our project management methodology is also based upon the Project Management Institute’s (PMI) 
Project Management Body of Knowledge (PMBOK). Our methodology will incorporate one primary 
goal; align the project with your overall expectations. Unless otherwise requested, Motorola Solutions 
will implement the project using a “phased” process. 

PLANNING
IMPLEMENTATION 

&
 TESTING

TRAINING CUTOVER

Transition to 
Support

Project Closure 

Phase I Phase II Phase III Phase IV Phase V

 

6.2 PHASE I - PLANNING 
Phase I is the period in which the project is formally launched, the project design is finalized, the 
Project Management Plan (PMP) is finalized and resources are scheduled. Upon the agency contract 
award the Motorola Solutions PM coordinates Phase 1 activities with you to ensure that the project 
scope has been assessed, and that all deliverables have been captured in the Motorola Solutions 
Project Schedule. The PMP will be the control document for Motorola Solutions deliverables for the 
implementation, as will other critical dates or milestones that are integral to the project.  

The specific objectives of the planning phase include: 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

6-2 Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

• Expound on specific strategies and project options  
• Confirm NG9-1-1 project scope 
• Finalize the solution design 
• Finalize plans for solution delivery strategies and resources. The solution is reviewed to align 

each primary stakeholder with a common vision and strategy for unified team design and 
planning. 

• Determine aspects of the 9-1-1 system that are subject to change within the scope of the project. 
Much of this entails identifying and collecting information from project stakeholders. 

Prior to collecting the detailed information that will be used in the course of the project, it is 
important for the team to understand the overall project goals and the criteria that will govern their 
decision-making.  

The project principles and constraints are communicated to all team members so that all design, 
integrations, and deployment decisions can be assessed. Guided by the project principles and 
constraints, more detail information is then collected. This includes conducting site visits and the 
Project Launch, Call Flow and Design Review Meeting. 

The original configuration proposed was based on information provided by Morrow County during a 
review of system requirements. Any changes in the proposed system or equipment will require a 
change order, which may incur additional costs. 

6.2.1 Project Kick-off Meeting  
The project kick-off meeting is scheduled as soon as possible following receipt of the contract. One of 
the main objectives of the meeting is to ensure that all project participants begin the project with a 
clear and shared understanding of the project and project expectations. During this meeting: 

• Process owners are identified 
• Key project milestones and objectives are introduced and discussed 
• Review the overall project “As Purchased” design and Statement of Work (SOW). 
• First review of the draft project plan 

6.2.2 Project Workflow and Design Review Meeting 
The project call flow and design review meetings are scheduled with you to be held at the site. The 
purpose of the Call Flow and Design Review (CDR) meeting is to obtain a comprehensive 
understanding of your current operational environment and desired future workflow through 
interactive discussions. It is also to assist in understanding how the new VESTA 9-1-1 system can be 
configured to meet the operational needs.   

During this meeting, Motorola Solutions will gather critical information with your agency to set up 
and program the VESTA 9-1-1 system, including detailed review of trunks, lines and circuits. 
Motorola Solutions will work with you to document the final system design elements that will be 
used for all aspects of the programming and configuration of your VESTA 9-1-1 system. Design 
discussions and decisions will include but are not limited to: 

• Detailed review of the “As Purchased” system design 
• Detailed review of call flow and system design 
• Detail review of CommandPOSTs 
• Detail review of Network Requirements  



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 6-3 

• Detail review of Network Components (routers and switches) 
• Detailed review of the project Roles and Responsibilities of the collective team 
• Site walks for Environmental Review & Intra-system interfaces 

− Environmental: 
♦ Power: outlets, power draw, UPS, generator 
♦ Cabling: positions, training room, backroom 

− Adjuncts: 
♦ CAD: ALI spill to CAD 
♦ Recorder 
♦ Mapping 
♦ PBX 

− Physical space, furniture, & logistics 
− External interfaces: door access, alarms 

It is important that your key operational decision makers participate in these design meetings. It is 
critical that you and Motorola Solutions understand the responsibilities of each entity in this process. 
The detailed discovery and full disclosure of all facets of the Call Flow (how the different types of 
trunks, lines and circuits that are answered at the PSAP locations are routed to and answered by the 
current communications systems) and the Work Flow (how Call Takers and Dispatchers interact with 
callers and each other) is critical in the design of the new system. This will ensure a smooth and 
comprehensive transition. 

6.2.3 Project Plan Approval 
Once the system design has been finalized, the Motorola Solutions PM will schedule resources for 
site implementation.  

Motorola Solutions resources will be scheduled and dates communicated to the team members via the 
Motorola Solutions Project Schedule. The Motorola Solutions Schedule will be drafted and forwarded 
to team members for review and comment. This “First Pass” schedule will be used to present you 
with the initial deployment schedule. Once all feedback and changes have been received and 
integrated into the schedule, the Master Project Schedule will be created and communicated by 
Motorola Solutions. Once published and a baseline established, the Master Schedule will only be 
changed as per appropriately submitted change requests. 

The Planning Phase ends when: 

• The Project Plan has been approved 
• System design and Call Flow are complete 
• The Master Project Schedule has been developed and a consensus among concerned parties 

reached regarding deliverables and milestones 
• A draft site cut plan has been developed 
• A draft Acceptance Test Plan has been developed 
• The materials purchased from Motorola Solutions ship to the site 

6.3 PHASE II – INSTALLATION AND TESTING 
Phase II is the period of time in which site preparation, site installation and testing take place. The 
project’s implementation is accomplished to the degree that is possible without actually going “live”, 
while minimizing disruption of the site’s ongoing operations. The Motorola Solutions PM will 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

6-4 Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

coordinate the Phase II activities with you to minimize interference with other site activities, while 
ensuring that Motorola Solutions’ implementation and testing are completed as per the Project Plan 
and the Master Project Schedule. Implementation and Testing milestones and deliverables will be 
documented and managed via the Master Project Schedule. 

During this phase the components of the solution, including applications, servers, network 
components and data flow, are configured and readied for deployment. All network, regional and 
premise components are delivered, and the equipment rooms and other facilities are made ready. 

6.3.1 Solution Staging 
The process starts with the staging of the system equipment in Temecula, CA. Your site equipment is 
assembled, configured and burned in with your specific site information, including but not limited to, 
system software, IP addresses, machine names, and line and trunk data. Your equipment is also 
quality-checked for any defects or errors, then packaged and shipped to site.  

Staging increases efficiency by leveraging our technical expertise to help prevent out-of-box failures 
and performing initial configurations before equipment arrives on-site. Less on site installation time is 
required by staging and testing equipment in our Temecula facility. You have assurance that each 
site’s equipment is configured and tested, reducing the risk of onsite equipment issues. 

Once staged in Temecula your system will be shipped to your site for inventory and installation. 

6.3.2 Site Installation 
The following outlines the general steps that will be required for system installation. Additional detail 
and steps will be added during project meetings. 

• Unpack and inventory equipment 
• Placement of racks/cabinet 
• If new cabling is required: 

− Run cable from Motorola Solutions Connector Blocks to backboard for all 9-1-1 trunks 
− Run cable from Motorola Solutions Connector Blocks to backboard for all administrative 

lines 
− Run LAN cables from Motorola Solutions rack/cabinet to all Motorola Solutions 

workstations; this includes providing an adequate number of cable runs for the voice/network, 
logging recorder, and any other equipment that may be required  

− Run LAN cables from any IP phones to the Motorola Solutions rack (if applicable)  
• Physical installation of all new VESTA 9-1-1 servers and associated components at the identified 

backrooms (Host A & B) 
• Physical installation of any network equipment required: switches, routers, etc. and associated 

cabling provided by Motorola Solutions 
• Physical installation of all new peripheral devices at all sites 
• For each site, configure and make operable the system as documented in the Detail Design 

Document to include: 
− Configure all new VESTA 9-1-1 system servers.   
− Configure all new workstations purchased for the sites   
− Perform Router Configuration 
− Perform Firewall Configuration 

• Manage all appropriate data and accounts for the VESTA 9-1-1 system 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 6-5 

• Perform installation and configuration of the Motorola Solutions provided MIS solution. 

6.3.3 Testing 
Our plan includes performing various required tests using the agency's actual infrastructure, which is 
beneficial for the following reasons: 

• Testing will be performed on the production solution – actual hardware 
• Testing will be performed in the actual environment  
• Testing will allow you to easily observe the process 

Testing is one of the major aspects of your VESTA 9-1-1 project and its success will require 
combined concentrated effort by your personnel and Motorola Solutions.   

Upon contract award, Motorola Solutions PM will work closely with you to review the System 
Acceptance Test Plan and make mutual agreed upon changes to the Test Plan. At the completion of 
the implementation, your designated participants and Motorola Solutions will execute the test plan 
that displays the system is functioning and configured as designed and document test results. 

6.3.4 Lockdown 
The Implementation and Testing Phase ends when: 

• Site Implementation is complete 
• The site testing has been completed to the degree agreed upon during the project planning process 

 
At the conclusion of the site’s implementation and testing, a lockdown (configuration freeze) period 
will begin and remain in effect until system cutover. During implementation and training, 
vendors/providers of each subsystem will have the opportunity to perform pre-approved nominal 
system testing without making any user application and configuration changes. The site lockdown 
will be scheduled via the Master Project Schedule. 

6.3.5 Customer Responsibilities During Installation 
Responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to: 

• Use reasonable efforts to provide supporting information to aid in the solution of any problems 
discovered during installation, implementation or post installation phases of this project 

• Provide appropriate schedule notification and facility availability for VESTA 9-1-1 on-site services 
and training 

• Notify and coordinate schedule changes with Motorola Solutions, which may require a Change Order 
(and potentially additional charges) dependent upon the change 

• Assume sole responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of Customer-supplied data 
• Provide dedicated (2) 20A 110V UPS protected power outlets for the facilities and appropriate 

grounding, or as determined by the site survey, for the proper operation of the emergency telephone 
and computer systems described herein 

• Assume full responsibility for mutually approved base map file, including, but not limited to: X / Y 
coordinates, structure address, street centerlines, ESN boundaries, City boundaries; maintain this file 
and use it to update the VESTA 9-1-1 system 

• Provide a complete ESRI-based GIS formatted map (shapefile) thirty to sixty days prior to on-site 
system installation 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

6-6 Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

• Updates to the base map file, performed by personnel designated, will be transferred to the system per 
Motorola Solutions instructions 

• Provide a floor plan outlining where Motorola Solutions provided equipment is to be installed and 
position numbers for Call Taker, Dispatch, and Supervisor positions 

• Ensure the operating environment is fully functional and meets VESTA 9-1-1 minimum operating 
requirements 

• Provide the applicable broadband service for the VESTA 9-1-1 Virtual Private Network (VPN) for 
remote monitoring, support and troubleshooting connectivity 

• Provide for, move, test and make operational or otherwise deliver CAMA trunks, administrative lines 
and other PSTN connections to the backboard demarcation at least 14 days prior to installation start 
date 

• Provide for, move, test and make operational or otherwise deliver two (2) ALI circuit connections to 
the backboard demarcation at least 14 days prior to installation start date 

• Provide facility specific work and activity, including, but not limited to, construction, core drilling, 
grounding, and any electrical or conduit needed to support the implementation 

• Assist Motorola Solutions in securing any required security clearances, identification tags and other 
requirements for access to areas within the facility necessary for Motorola Solutions personnel to 
complete their project responsibilities under this agreement 

• Provide the tap to the network clock, if applicable. This includes all interfaces necessary, preferably to 
provide the name/address of a timeserver on the network. 

• Document and supply configuration information on the existing CPE 
• Make available at the equipment rack, all remote access lines terminated on RJ 11 or RJ 45 jacks or 

contract with Motorola Solutions as required 
• Ensure that or contract with Motorola Solutions to guarantee Intermediate Distribution Frame (IDF), 

wall boards and/or interconnect points appear in the immediate area where VESTA 9-1-1 servers are 
installed 

•  
 

6.4 PHASE III – CUTOVER 
Cutover is the primary focus of your NG9-1-1 project, its success will require a methodical focus on 
planning, executing, and monitoring. The cutover plan includes the fallback process to restore the 
system to the pre-migration operation in the event of a catastrophic failure. 

The Cutover Plan defines the sequenced procedures and steps that will occur in the Cutover Phase to 
bring new equipment to an operational state, as well to transition services from the current equipment 
to the new. Appropriate safeguards are built in to ensure a cutover with minimal operational impact.   

The Cutover Phase is the major transition point for the project. Motorola Solutions provided systems 
are brought on line and site’s operations shift from the old equipment to the new equipment. Motorola 
Solutions’ PM will work with your team to minimize the disruption for each PSAP. To that end, 
during the Planning Phase the decision will be made for the cutover plan.  Examples of cutover 
options are as follows: 

• Flash Cut: A flash cut requires a coordinated migration of 9-1-1 traffic to the PSAPs. 
Workstations at a site are cut over to the NG9-1-1. The benefit of a flash cut is that the PSAP 
personnel do not require temporary relocation to another PSAP that might not have the same 
radio or Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, resulting in less disruption.  



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 6-7 

• Relocation Cut:  You may choose to vacate their PSAP and operate at the alternate PSAP while 
their PSAP is upgraded. Once the upgrade is finished the personnel would systematically move to 
the new VESTA 9-1-1 system   

The Draft Cutover Plan will specify specific tasks and responsibilities for Motorola Solutions 
provided systems, materials, and services. The Cutover Phase will be scheduled via the Master 
Project Schedule. 

6.4.1 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities During Cutover 
The Motorola Solutions PM will coordinate assignment of appropriate Motorola Solutions technical 
staff to support the transition to the new VESTA 9-1-1 system.  Resource assignments will be 
planned and tracked via the Motorola Solutions Project Schedule. 

• Pre-cut and Post-cut site testing will be performed in accordance with Motorola Solutions System 
Acceptance Test Plan that will be provided based on the type of system(s) purchased 

• The Motorola Solutions PM will track Motorola Solutions issues and/ or exceptions noted during 
the site cutover and report updates to your team for updates to the Issues Control Log   

• The Cutover Phase will end when the project team agrees that all cutover objectives have been 
met  

At the conclusion of the Cutover Phase, a meeting will be held with the project team members to 
discuss the cutover, any remaining Motorola Solutions issues, and to review the Post-Cutover Support 
Plan. 

6.4.2 Customer Responsibilities During Cutover 
The agency is responsible for the following during cutover: 

• Schedule appropriate personnel to support the cutover 
• Assume responsibility for cutover activities that are beyond the scope of Motorola Solutions 

deliverables as delineated in the approved Project Plan 
• Coordinate third party services and/or activities during the cutover that are not Motorola 

Solutions deliverables, but may affect Motorola Solutions systems and/ or services.  This 
includes, but is not limited to Telco’s, third party venders, or other organizations that are 
participating in the cutover 

6.5 PHASE IV – PROJECT CLOSURE 
Once all sites are operational and the post-cutover coverage is complete, the Project will move to 
closure phase.  The project closure phase is the process of completing any open issues associated with 
the deployment of your project and to transition the project from Implementation to Support. 

Project closure will occur when: 

• All sites have cutover to the new VESTA 9-1-1 systems 
• All on-site post cutover support has been completed 
• All System Acceptance Testing has been successfully executed and approved by Morrow County 
• Morrow County has signed the Site Acceptance document 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

6-8 Statement of Work – VESTA 9-1-1 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

The Motorola Solutions PM will ensure all issues have been resolved or assigned for resolution. Any 
open issues at time of closure are to be transitioned to Motorola Solutions Technical Support, Site 
Installation, and Verification Package. 

6.5.1 Site Installation and Verification Package 
Motorola Solutions will provide “as-built” documentation: 

• CPE inventory, including a complete list of installed equipment  
• Solution Overview / Detailed System Document 
• System Diagrams  
• IP Schema and Naming Convention 
• Bandwidth Estimates 
• System Acceptance Test 
• Other documentation as mutually agreed to by the parties 

 

 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 7-1 

SECTION 7 

OPTIONAL STATEMENT OF 
WORK – CITIZEN INPUT AND 
SMART TRANSCRIPTION 

This Statement of Work (SOW) describes the deliverables to be furnished to Morrow County, and the 
tasks to be performed by Motorola Solutions, Inc, its subcontractors, and by Morrow County, in order to 
implement the cloud base service outlined in this proposal. This SOW provides the most current 
understanding of the work required by both parties to ensure a successful project implementation. 

It is understood that this SOW may be revised during contract negotiations or during the Contract Design 
Review (CDR), and through any other Change Orders that may occur during the execution of the project. 
If there are changes to the Scope of Work, those changes must be reflected in this SOW before becoming 
binding on either party. This SOW will be an Exhibit to the Contract negotiated between Motorola 
Solutions and Morrow County. After contract execution, changes to the SOW must be made through the 
formal contract Change Order process as set forth in the Contract. 

7.1 CONTRACT 

7.1.1 Contract Award 
Morrow County and Motorola Solutions execute the contract and both parties receive all the necessary 
documentation. 

7.1.2 Contract Administration 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Assign a Project Manager as the single point of contact with authority to make project decisions. 
• Assign resources necessary for project implementation. 
• Set up the project in the Motorola Solutions information system. 
• Schedule the project kickoff meeting with Morrow County. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Assign a Project Manager as the single point of contact responsible for Morrow County -signed 

approvals.  
• Assign other resources necessary to ensure completion of project tasks for which Morrow County is 

responsible. 

Completion Criteria 
• Motorola Solutions internal processes are set up for project management. 
• Both Motorola Solutions and Morrow County assign all required resources. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

7-2 Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

• Project kickoff meeting is scheduled. 

7.1.3 Project Kickoff 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 
• Conduct a project kickoff meeting during the Contract Design Review (CDR) phase of the project. 
• Ensure key project team participants attend the meeting. 
• Review the roles of the project participants.  
• Review the resource and scheduling requirements with Morrow County. 
• Review the Project Schedule with Morrow County to address upcoming milestones and/or events. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Morrow County's key project team participants attend the meeting. 
• Review Motorola Solutions and Morrow County responsibilities. 

Completion Criteria 
• Project kickoff meeting completed. 
• Meeting notes identify the next action items. 

7.2 ORDER PROCESSING 

7.2.1 Process Equipment List 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 
• Validate Equipment List by checking for valid model numbers, versions, compatible options to main 

equipment, and delivery data. 
• Enter order into Motorola Solutions' Configure Price Quote (CPQ) system. 
• Reconcile the equipment list(s) to the Contract. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Provide shipping location(s). 
• Complete and provide Tax Certificate information verifying tax status of shipping location. 

Completion Criteria 
• Verify that the Equipment List contains the correct model numbers, version, options, and delivery 

data. 
• Trial validation completed. 
• Bridge the equipment order to the manufacturing facility. 

7.3 MANUFACTURING AND STAGING 

7.3.1 Manufacture Motorola Solutions Equipment 
 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 7-3 

Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 
• Manufacture the Motorola Solutions and non-Motorola Solutions equipment necessary for the system 

based on equipment order. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• N/A 

Completion Criteria 
• Ordered equipment shipped to either the field or staging facility. 

7.3.2 Staging 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 
• Pack for shipment to final destination. 
• Arrange for shipment to the field. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Morrow County to provide shipment location. 

Completion Criteria 
• Equipment ready for shipment to the field. 

7.4 SYSTEM INSTALLATION 

7.4.1 Install Call Handling Equipment 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Remote Field Engineering to complete all on-premise installation and configuration activities. 

Customer Responsibilities 

• Provide access to the sites, as necessary. 

• Install and test internet connection that meets minimum requirement (100mbps). 

• Installation of the required firewall when applicable. 

Completion Criteria 

• Fixed Network Equipment installation completed and ready for optimization. 

7.4.2 Fixed Call Handling Equipment Installation Complete 
• All fixed network equipment installed and accepted by the Morrow County. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

7-4 Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

7.5 FINALIZE 

7.5.1 Resolve Punch List 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 
• Work with Morrow County to resolve punch list items, documented during the installation and 

configuration phase. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Assist Motorola Solutions with resolution of identified punch list items by providing support, such as 

access to the sites, equipment and system, and approval of the resolved punch list item(s). 

Completion Criteria 
• All punch list items resolved and approved by Morrow County. 

7.6 PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 

7.6.1 Project Status Meetings 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 
• Motorola Solutions’ Project Manager, or designee, will attend all project status meetings with Morrow 

County, as determined during the CDR. 
• Record the meeting minutes and provide reports as required. 
• The agenda will include the following: 

− Overall project status compared to the Project Schedule. 
− Product or service related issues that may affect the Project Schedule. 
− Status of the action items and the responsibilities associated with them, in accordance with the 

Project Schedule. 
− Any miscellaneous concerns of either Morrow County or Motorola Solutions. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Attend meetings. 
• Respond to issues in a timely manner. 

Completion Criteria 
• Completion of the meetings and submission of meeting minutes. 

7.6.2 Change Order Process 
Either Party may request changes within the general scope of this Agreement. If a requested change causes 
an increase or decrease in the cost or time required to perform this Agreement, the Parties will agree to an 
equitable adjustment of the Contract Price, Performance Schedule, or both, and will reflect the adjustment 
in a change order. Neither Party is obligated to perform requested changes unless both Parties execute a 
written change order. 

 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 7-5 

 





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 7-1 





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Statement of Work – Managed Detection and Response Service 8-1 

SECTION 8 

OPTIONAL STATEMENT OF 
WORK – MANAGED 
DETECTION AND RESPONSE 
SERVICE 

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, this Statement of Work (SOW), 
including all of its subsections and attachments, defines the principal activities and responsibilities of 
all parties for the delivery of Motorola Solutions (“Motorola”) cybersecurity services as presented in 
this proposal to Morrow County (hereinafter referred to as “Customer”). 

In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of an Agreement and the terms and 
conditions of this SOW, this SOW will control as to the inconsistency only. 

8.1 VESTA MANAGED DETECTION AND RESPONSE 
Motorola will provide managed detection and response monitoring continuously 24x7x365, and 
respond to detected events in accordance with Section 8.1.1 Priority Level Definitions and Response 
Times. 

Inclusions 
VESTA Managed Detection and Response Monitoring provides Intrusion Detection System 
monitoring for traffic across the entire on-premises VESTA 9-1-1 system. Only select VESTA 9-1-1 
on-premises system components support Log Collection / Analytics. 

Motorola Responsibilities 
• Provide, maintain, and when necessary, replace hardware and software required to monitor 

VESTA 9-1-1 system elements. This includes the ActiveEye Remote Security Sensors (AERSS) 
and all software operating on it. 

• Coordinate with the Customer to maintain authentication credentials where necessary. 
• Coordinate with the Customer on any system changes necessary to integrate the AERSS into the 

system and establish necessary connectivity.  
• Maintain trained and accredited technicians.  
• Monitor the Customer’s system 24x7x365 for malicious or unusual activity.  
• Respond to cybersecurity incidents in the Customer’s system in accordance with Section 8.1.1 

Priority Level Definitions and Response Times. 
• Work with the Customer to ensure that all devices within the system that support logging have 

properly configured Syslog which is forwarding events to the AERSS. 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

8-2 Optional Statement of Work – Managed Detection and Response Service Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

Customer Responsibilities 
• VESTA Managed Detection and response requires a connection from the Customer’s system to 

Motorola’s NSOC and to the Internet. Establish connectivity with sufficient bandwidth before 
service commences. 

• Allow Motorola continuous remote access to monitor the system. This includes keeping the 
connection plugged-in, providing passwords, and working with Motorola to understand and 
maintain proper privileges. 

• Provide continuous utility service to any Motorola equipment installed or used at the Customer’s 
premises to support delivery of this service. 

• Provide Customer contact information necessary to complete the Customer Support Plan. 
• Provide Motorola-dispatched field service technicians with physical access to service equipment 

when required. 
• Comply with the terms of the applicable license agreements between Customer and the non-

Motorola software copyright owners. 
• Cooperate with Motorola and perform all acts that are reasonable or necessary to enable Motorola 

to provide the services described in this SOW. 

Exclusions 

VESTA Managed Detection and Response excludes services to perform physical containment and/or 
remediation of confirmed cybersecurity incidents, remote or onsite. The Customer may choose to 
purchase additional Incident Response professional services to assist in the creation of and/or 
execution of a Customer’s Incident Response Plan. 

8.1.1 Priority Level Definitions and Response Times 
Incident 
Priority 

Incident Definition Response Times 

Critical P1 Security incidents that have caused, or are suspected of 
causing significant and/or widespread damage to the 
functionality of or information stored within the system. 
Efforts to recover from the incident may be significant.  
Examples: 
Malware that is not quarantined by anti-virus 
Evidence of communication with suspected malicious 
actors 

Response provided 24 
hours, 7 days a week, 
including US Holidays. 

High P2 Security incidents that have localized impact, but have the 
potential to become more serious if not quickly addressed. 
Effort to recover from the incident may be moderate to 
significant.  
Examples: 
Malware that is quarantined by anti-virus 
Multiple behaviors observed in the system that are 
consistent with known attacker techniques 

Response provided 24 
hours, 7 days a week, 
including US Holidays. 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Optional Statement of Work – Managed Detection and Response Service 8-3 

Incident 
Priority 

Incident Definition Response Times 

Medium P3 Security incidents potentially indicative of an attacker 
performing reconnaissance or initial attempts at accessing 
the system. Effort to recover from the incident may be low 
to moderate.   
Examples include: 
Suspected unauthorized attempts to log into user accounts  
Suspected unauthorized changes to system configurations 
(firewalls, user accounts, etc.) 
Observed failures of security components 

Response provided 8 x 5 
on standard business days, 
which is normally Monday 
through Friday 8AM to 
5PM local time, excluding 
US Holidays.  

Low P4 These are typically informational in nature or are service 
requests from the Customer.  

Examples include: 

• User account creation or deletion 
• Privilege change for existing accounts 

Response provided 8 x 5 
on standard business days, 
which is normally Monday 
through Friday 8AM to 
5PM local time, excluding 
US Holidays. 

8.2 STRATEGIC THREAT INTELLIGENCE 
Motorola Responsibilities 
• Coordinate with the Customer to collect relevant information necessary to execute threat 

intelligence searches on the dark web. 
• Deliver a monthly risk report detailing threat intelligence specific to the Customer. 
• Provide the Customer with a monthly Public Safety Industry intelligence report detailing threat 

intelligence related to the Public Safety community as a whole. 
• Hold recurring formal risk reviews with the Customer to evaluate threats facing the Customer and 

intelligence discoveries. This review also serves as an opportunity to refine the list of critical 
information the threat team needs to proactively search for. 

• Alert the Customer immediately when critical threats or information breaches are discovered. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Coordinate with Motorola to maintain relevant information necessary to execute threat 

intelligence searches on the dark web. 
• Obtain for Motorola all rights, if any, that may be necessary to permit requested threat 

intelligence searches on the dark web. 

8.2.1 Scope Limitations & Clarifications 
Service Limitations 
Cybersecurity services are inherently limited and will not guarantee that the Customer's system will 
be error-free or immune to security breaches as a result of any or all of the services described in this 
proposal. Motorola does not warrant or guarantee that this service will identify all cybersecurity 
incidents that occur in the Customer’s system.  Services and deliverables are limited by, among other 
things, the evolving and often malicious nature of cyber threats, conduct/attacks, as well as the 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

8-4 Optional Statement of Work – Managed Detection and Response Service Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

complexity/disparity and evolving nature of Customer computer system environments, including 
supply chains, integrated software, services, and devices. 

Customer and Third Party Information 
The Customer understands and agrees that Motorola may obtain, use and/or create and use 
anonymized, aggregated and/or generalized Customer data, such as data relating to actual and 
potential security threats and vulnerabilities, for its lawful business purposes, including improving its 
services and sharing and leveraging such information for the benefit of Customer, other customers, 
and other interested parties.  For purposes of this engagement, so long not specifically identifying the 
Customer, Customer Data shall not include, and Motorola shall be free to use, share and leverage 
security threat intelligence and mitigation data generally, including without limitation, third party 
threat vectors and IP addresses, file hash information, domain names, malware signatures and 
information, information obtained from third party sources, indicators of compromise, and tactics, 
techniques, and procedures used learned or developed in the course of providing services. 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-1 

SECTION 9 

EQUIPMENT LIST 
9.1 MORROW COUNTY PSAP 
VESTA® 9-1-1   

 
  

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

Note: Existing (2) VESTA 9-1-1 
support valid through 3/31/2022. 
Upgrade and no-charge licenses 
are applicable only while existing 
support is active. Full charge 
licenses are required if existing 
support expires.       

            
  

 
VESTA® 9-1-1         

2 870899-0104R7.7U V911 R7.7 DOC/MED UPG 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 873099-03002U V911 CAD INTF LIC UPGD 0.00 EA $0.00 
  

 
        

    VM Small Server Bundle        

  
 

Note:  The Small Server Bundle 
is for PSAP's up to 10 positions with 
an annual call volume of 100,000 or 
less.       

1 853031-DLSSVRSG2 V-DL SVR BNDL SML SGL 21,788.22 EA $21,788.22 
1 870890-75001 VIRTUAL MEDIA SET R7.0 015D 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 06500-00201 2-POST RELAY RACK MNT KIT 176.61 EA $353.22 
            
2 04000-68009 V-SVR BASIC SPT 5YR 509.53 EA $1,019.06 
        

 
  

    VESTA® 9-1-1 Activity View       
2 873099-00802 V911 ACT VIEW LIC PER ST 950.04 EA $1,900.08 
1 873099-00702 V911 ACTIV VIEW SYS LIC 4,433.52 EA $4,433.52 
1 809800-35124 V911 ACT VIEW SW SPT 5YR 2,660.32 EA $2,660.32 
            
    Administrative Workstations       
1 61000-409615SFF WKST Z2 G5 SFF SSD W/O OS 1,414.02 EA $1,414.02 
1 04000-00441 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 100.49 EA $100.49 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 
1 809800-00102 GENERIC WKST CFG FEE 459.80 EA $459.80 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations       
2 PS-0SQ-VSML-M VS BSC MLTP SEAT LIC NFEE 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,139.96 EA $10,279.92 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR Module       
2 873099-00502U V911 IRR LIC UPGD 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 741.97 EA $1,483.94 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

9-2 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

  
 

        
    VESTA® Workstation Equipment        
2 61000-409615SFF WKST Z2 G5 SFF SSD W/O OS 1,414.02 EA $2,828.04 
2 04000-00441 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 100.49 EA $200.98 
2 65000-00261 NIC PCIE SNGL ADPTR CARD 90.34 EA $180.68 
2 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $787.64 
2 64007-50025 KEYPAD 48-KEY USB CBL 25FT 255.78 EA $511.56 
2 853030-00302 V911 SAM HDWR KIT 2,052.33 EA $4,104.66 
2 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $414.12 
2 02800-20501 HDST 4W MOD ELEC MIC BLK 39.59 EA $79.18 
2 03044-20000 HDST CORD 12FT 4W MOD BLK 4.06 EA $8.12 
2 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $533.90 
2 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $801.86 
1 870890-07501 CPR/SYSPREP MEDIA IMAGE 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin Printer       
1 64040-60020 PRNTR USB/ETHERNET B/W LJ 422.24 EA $422.24 

    

Note:  Laserjet Black and White 
printer. Recommended monthly 
volume, 250 to 1,500 pages       

1 65000-13403 CBL USB 2.0 A/B 10FT 4.06 EA $4.06 
            
    Network Equipment       

  
 

Note: Firewall supports Remote and 
Internet Access for Managed 
Services, Remote position access 
and RapidSOS.       

1 03800-03070 FIREWALL 60F 637.98 EA $637.98 
1 03800-03075 WARR FIREWALL 60F 5YR 661.13 EA $661.13 
1 809800-00201 VPN CFG SVCS 194.88 EA $194.88 
1 809800-00200 CFG NTWK DEVICE 168.49 EA $168.49 
  

 
        

2 04000-09206 SWITCH 9200 24-PORT 24X7 5YR 5,161.29 EA $10,322.58 
  

 
        

    Peripherals & Gateways       
2 2213937-1-SR1 FXO GATEWAY MP118 8-PORT 1,639.23 EA $3,278.46 
2 04000-42002 FXS GATEWAY 4-PORT 895.23 EA $1,790.46 
1 870890-76301 MP114  FIRMWARE 0.00 EA $0.00 
4 04000-00180 SW SPT ANALOG GATEWAY 5YR 400.93 EA $1,603.72 
  

 
        

  
 

ALI/CAD Output       

1 04000-00159 
BLKBX TL159A 8-PORT 
DATACAST 416.15 EA $416.15 

8 65000-00262 KIT CBL RJ11 ADPTR DB25 17.26 EA $138.08 
  

 
        

1 04000-RS232 BLKBX TL601A-R2 DATASHARE 458.78 EA $458.78 
1 04000-01014-10 CBL SRL DB25M/DB9F 10FT 12.18 EA $12.18 
  

 
        

    Rack & Peripheral Equipment       
1 06500-55053 7FT EQUIPMENT RACK 19IN 366.42 EA $366.42 
1 63000-192610 MNTR LCD 19IN 234.47 EA $234.47 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-3 

1 04000-00809 KVM 8-PORT SWITCH USB 454.72 EA $454.72 
            
    Time Synchronization Equipment       

    
Note: Customer to provide NTP 

compliant device.       
            

       Subtotal    $77,901.95 

      VESTA® CommandPOST 
 

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

Note: Existing (1) VESTA 9-1-1 
support valid through 3/31/2022. 
Upgrade and no-charge licenses 
are applicable only while existing 
support is active. Full charge 
licenses are required if existing 
support expires.       

            
    VESTA® 9-1-1  Activity View       
1 873099-00802 V911 ACT VIEW LIC PER ST 950.04 EA $950.04 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations       
1 PS-0SQ-VSML-M VS BSC MLTP SEAT LIC NFEE 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,139.96 EA $5,139.96 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1  IRR Module       
1 873099-00502U V911 IRR LIC UPGD 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 741.97 EA $741.97 
            
    CommandPOST Hardware       

1 61050-G819607 
LAPTOP ZBOOK POWER G7 W/O 
OS 1,851.34 EA $1,851.34 

1 04000-00441 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 100.49 EA $100.49 

1 65000-00263 
DOCK STATION THUNDERBOLT 
KIT 543.03 EA $543.03 

1 64021-10025 KYBD/MOUSE BNDL 44.66 EA $44.66 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 
1 64007-50025 KEYPAD 48-KEY USB CBL 25FT 255.78 EA $255.78 
            
1 853004-00301 CPOST SAM HDWR KIT 2,834.90 EA $2,834.90 
1 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $207.06 
1 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $266.95 
1 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $400.93 
1 870890-07501 CPR/SYSPREP MEDIA IMAGE 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
  

 
VESTA® Map Local       

1 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY 2,679.60 EA $2,679.60 
1 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR 2,411.64 EA $2,411.64 
            
1 6400C-40051 8GB RAM ZBOOK 15 G5/G6/G7 212.14 EA $212.14 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

9-4 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

  
 

        
    VESTA Map Local Installation       
1 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $107.59 

    

Note: Onsite 
installation/configuration of RAM 
VML software, map build per 
workstation.       

    ***Command Post Discount***     -$1,673.59 
       Subtotal    $17,862.13 

      VESTA® Map Local 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

VESTA® Map Local       

1 871399-40104.0 
VMAP LOCAL R4 BASE LIC-
KEY/MED 2,679.60 EA $2,679.60 

1 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY 2,679.60 EA $2,679.60 
2 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR 2,411.64 EA $4,823.28 
            
    VESTA® Map Local GIS Services       
1 809800-44119 VMAP LOCAL GIS SVCS 5,837.27 EA $5,837.27 
            

    
VESTA® Map Local - Additional 
Hardware       

2 64000-40120 8GB RAM DRR4 3200 Z2 G5 149.21 EA $298.42 
2 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $787.64 
            
    VESTA Map Local Installation       

10 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $1,075.90 

    

Note: Onsite 
installation/configuration of RAM 
VML software, map build per 
workstation.       

  
 

        
       Subtotal    $18,181.71 

      Managed Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

Monitoring & Response (M&R): 
Activation Fee       

1 809800-14150 M&R ACT FEE, SMALL SITE 1,821.93 EA $1,821.93 
  

 
        

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: 
Servers       

  
 

Note: Includes (2) DDS Servers       
2 04000-00398 M&R SVR AGENT LIC 526.79 EA $1,053.58 
2 809800-16365 M&R PM AV SVR SRVC 5YR 7,807.38 EA $15,614.76 
            

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: 
Workstations       



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-5 

  
 

Note: Includes (2) Calltaker 
Workstations, (1) Management 
Console, (1) Activity View Admin 
Workstation       

4 04000-00399 M&R WKST AGENT LIC 154.28 EA $617.12 
4 809800-16381 M&R PM AV WKST SRVC 5YR 3,219.58 EA $12,878.32 
            

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP 
Devices       

    

Note: Includes (2) Virtual 
Host/Machines, (2) MDS Servers, 
(4) Gateways, (1) Firewall, (2) Cisco 
Switches       

11 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $937.86 
11 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,659.53 EA $18,254.83 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $51,178.40 

      Optional Parts/Spares 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

Note: Spares not quoted per 
customer request.       

            
       Subtotal    $0.00 

      VESTA® Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    Project Management Services       
5 809800-51009 PROJECT MGMT - SUPPORT 1,287.02 DY $6,435.10 
    Note:  Support PM is Remote only.       
            
    Data Migration       

  
 

Note: VM to VM VESTA server 
migration not offered for sites below 
VESTA 9-1-1 R7.0.       

  
 

        
    MSI Direct Services       
1 809800-17035 MSI Direct Site Readiness Svcs 8,650.63 EA $8,650.63 
    Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack       
1 809800-51010 MSI Direct PM 2,970.00 EA $2,970.00 

1 809800-00132 
MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING 
SERVICES 25,951.89 EA $25,951.89 

            
1 809800-17045 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 5YR 40,500.00 EA $40,500.00 
            
  

 
Training       

2 000001-06701 V9-1-1 AGENT TRNG 1,298.19 EA $2,596.38 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

9-6 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

  
 

Note:  VESTA® 9-1-1 Agent 
bundle includes (1) 1/2 day class of 
Agent training for up to 8 students.  
Includes trainer's daily training 
expenses and travel. VESTA® 9-1-
1 Agent training does not include 
training on the SIP phones.  SIP 
phone training is a separate class 
and can be quoted upon request.       

1 000001-06704 V9-1-1 ADMIN FOR STD 4,325.93 EA $4,325.93 

  
 

Note:  VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin 
bundle includes (1) 1 1/2 day class 
of Admin training for up to 8 
students.  Includes trainer's daily 
training expenses and travel.        

1 000001-06075 E-LEARN V9-1-1 ACT-VIEW TRNG 531.86 EA $531.86 
  

 
        

1 000001-06795 CPOST ON-SITE TRNG 0.00 EA $0.00 

  
 

Note:  On-site training included 
as part of the VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin 
training using customer equipment.  
CommandPOST positions must be 
configured to the network/firewall 
prior to training. This is a 15 minute 
demonstration on how to use the 
CommandPOST position.       

  
 

        

2 000001-69012 
E-LEARN VESTA MAP LOCAL 
AGENT TRNG 316.68 EA $633.36 

  
 

Note: VESTA Map Local Agent 
training course.  Only offered as a 
computer-based training course. 
Maximum number of students per 
class is 10.       

1 000001-69014 
E-LEARN VMAP LOCAL SYS GIS 
DATA HUB TRNG 107.59 EA $107.59 

  
 

Note: VESTA Map Local GIS Hub 
training course.  Only offered as a 
computer-based training course. 
Maximum number of students per 
class is 5.        

  
 

        
       Subtotal    $92,702.75 

 

9.2 OPTIONAL FEATURE PRICING 

9.2.1 VESTA SMS 
VESTA® 9-1-1   

 
  

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-7 

  
 

VESTA® SMS       

  
 

Note:  Customer is responsible for Text 
Control Center (TCC) services and 
network charges.       

2 870891-66301 VESTA 9-1-1 SMS LIC 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
  

 
Note: Annual Subscription - Year 1       

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
  

 
Note: Annual Subscription - Year 2       

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
  

 
Note: Annual Subscription - Year 3       

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
  

 
Note: Annual Subscription - Year 4       

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
  

 
Note: Annual Subscription - Year 5       

  
 

        
2 03800-03070 FIREWALL 60F 637.98 EA $1,275.96 

    

Note: Firewall supports Call and Text 
Handling for ESInet Interface Module 
(EIM), Text to 9-1-1 and Direct PSAP 
Interconnect (DPI).       

2 03800-03075 WARR FIREWALL 60F 5YR 661.13 EA $1,322.26 
2 809800-00200 CFG NTWK DEVICE 168.49 EA $336.98 
            

       Subtotal    $2,935.20 

      Managed Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP 
Devices: SMS Firewalls       

    
Note: Includes (2) Firewalls for 

EIM/SMS       
2 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $170.52 
2 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,659.53 EA $3,319.06 
  

 
        

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP 
Devices: ASN Server       

    

Note: SMS and RapidSOS share the 
same ASN server. If both are purchased, 
do not duplicate M&R for ASN servers. 

   
    

Note: Includes (1) ASN Node 1, (1) 
ASN Repo VM, (1) ASN Node 2       

3 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $255.78 
3 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,659.53 EA $4,978.59 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $8,723.95 

      VESTA® Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    MSI Direct Services       



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

9-8 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

1 809800-17035 MSI Direct Site Readiness Svcs 888.50 EA $888.50 
    Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack       
1 809800-51010 MSI Direct PM 990.00 EA $990.00 
1 809800-00132 MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING SERVICES 2,665.49 EA $2,665.49 
            
    Services to Support VESTA® SMS       

90 809800-17006-SMS FIELD ENG-EXPRESS SMS 79.17 EA $7,125.30 
43 809800-51007-SMS SMS COORDINATION 100.49 UN $4,321.07 

1 000001-06805-SMS 
E-LEARN V9-1-1 SMS ADMIN DELTA TR 
- SMS SVC 530.85 EA $530.85 

  
 

Note:  Remote Field Engineering 
support to perform the configuration of 
VESTA SMS. Services include:  
* Firewall Configuration 
* VESTA 911 / VESTA SMS configuration 
* Import of VESTA SMS VM's (if 
applicable) 
* Preparation of screen layouts 
* TCC Testing 
* Carrier Testing 
* Express Field Engineering Services 
* Remote Project Management 
* E-Learn SMS Admin Delta Training 
Course       

            
  

 
Training       

1 000001-06806 
E-LEARN V9-1-1 SMS AGENT DELTA 
TRNG 316.68 EA $316.68 

  
 

Note:  E-Learning for VESTA SMS 
AGENT is a computer-based training 
course. The course is for up to a 
maximum of 10 students. E-Learning 
course is available for each student for 
365 days.       

  
 

        
       Subtotal    $16,837.89 

9.2.2 VESTA RapidSOS 
VESTA® 9-1-1   

 
  

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  
  

 
VESTA RapidSOS       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 803.88 EA $803.88 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 1       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 803.88 EA $803.88 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 2       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 803.88 EA $803.88 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 3       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 803.88 EA $803.88 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-9 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 4       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 803.88 EA $803.88 

  
 

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 5       
  

 
        

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic/Prime to VESTA® 
9-1-1 Advanced Licenses       

  
 

Note: VESTA Advanced Per Seat 
licenses and support required if 
RapidSOS is purchased.       

3 PA-0AD-VSSL VADV LIC ADD-ON 0.00 EA $0.00 
3 SA-0AD-VSSL-5Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 5YR 1,401.72 EA $4,205.16 
            

       Subtotal    $8,224.56 

      Managed Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP 
Devices: ASN Server       

    

Note: SMS and RapidSOS share the 
same ASN server. If both are purchased, 
do not duplicate M&R for ASN servers. 

   
    

Note: Includes (1) ASN Node 1, (1) 
ASN Repo VM, (1) ASN Node 2       

3 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $255.78 
3 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,659.53 EA $4,978.59 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $5,234.37 

      VESTA® Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    MSI Direct Services       
1 809800-17035 MSI Direct Site Readiness Svcs 196.25 EA $196.25 
    Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack       
1 809800-51010 MSI Direct PM 990.00 EA $990.00 
1 809800-00132 MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING SERVICES 588.75 EA $588.75 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $1,775.00 

 

9.2.3 CommandCentral Cloud Service – Citizen Input & Smart Transcription 
Citizen Input / Smart Transcription   

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Citizen Input and Smart 
Transcription       

1 870899-60002.0 V911 CLOUD INTERFACE - NO API 0.00 EA $0.00 
3 873090-11302 V911 SMART TRANSCPT LIC 0.00 EA $0.00 
3 873090-11301 V911 CITIZEN INPUT LIC 0.00 EA $0.00 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

9-10 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

15 809800-35605 CI/ST BUNDLE NAMED USER 5YR 2,040.00 EA $30,600.00 
            

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Citizen Input and Smart 
Transcription Implementation Services       

  
 

Note: System Implementation services are 
required for installation of Citizen Input / 
Smart Transcription bundle.       

3 809800-16990 CI / ST BUND SYS IMP- PER POS 140.00 EA $420.00 

1 809800-16991 
CI / ST BUND SYS IMP- 1ST AGENCY/ 
SITE 7,160.00 EA $7,160.00 

            

    

Note: Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 
requires a firewall (60E or 60F) per site for 
internet connectivity.       

            
       Subtotal    $38,180.00 

9.2.4 VESTA Managed Detection and Response Services (MDR) 
VESTA Managed Detection and Response   

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  
  

 
VESTA® 9-1-1         

    Security Monitoring - Small       
1 CYBER-SM-SML5Y CYBERSECURITY SM, SML 5YR 125,000.00 0 $125,000.00 
            

       Subtotal    $125,000.00 

      VESTA® Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    Cybersecurity FE Services       
16 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $1,721.44 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $1,721.44 

 

9.2.5 2nd CommandPost 
VESTA® CommandPOST   

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

Note: Existing (1) VESTA 9-1-1 
support valid through 3/31/2022. 
Upgrade and no-charge licenses are 
applicable only while existing support is 
active. Full charge licenses are required 
if existing support expires.       

            
    VESTA® 9-1-1  Activity View       
1 873099-00802 V911 ACT VIEW LIC PER ST 950.04 EA $950.04 
  

 
        



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-11 

    VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations       
1 PS-0SQ-VSML-M VS BSC MLTP SEAT LIC NFEE 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,139.96 EA $5,139.96 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1  IRR Module       
1 873099-00502U V911 IRR LIC UPGD 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 741.97 EA $741.97 
            
    CommandPOST Hardware       
1 61050-G819607 LAPTOP ZBOOK POWER G7 W/O OS 1,851.34 EA $1,851.34 
1 04000-00441 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 100.49 EA $100.49 
1 65000-00263 DOCK STATION THUNDERBOLT KIT 543.03 EA $543.03 
1 64021-10025 KYBD/MOUSE BNDL 44.66 EA $44.66 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 
1 64007-50025 KEYPAD 48-KEY USB CBL 25FT 255.78 EA $255.78 
            
1 853004-00301 CPOST SAM HDWR KIT 2,834.90 EA $2,834.90 
1 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $207.06 
1 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $266.95 
1 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $400.93 
1 870890-07501 CPR/SYSPREP MEDIA IMAGE 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
  

 
VESTA® Map Local       

1 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY 2,679.60 EA $2,679.60 
1 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR 2,411.64 EA $2,411.64 
            
1 6400C-40051 8GB RAM ZBOOK 15 G5/G6/G7 212.14 EA $212.14 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 
  

 
        

    VESTA Map Local Installation       
1 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $107.59 

    

Note: Onsite installation/configuration of 
RAM VML software, map build per 
workstation.       

    
 

      
       Subtotal    $19,535.72 

      VESTA® Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    MSI Direct Services       
1 809800-17035 MSI Direct Site Readiness Svcs 944.41 EA $944.41 
    Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack       
1 809800-51010 MSI Direct PM 965.88 EA $965.88 
1 809800-00132 MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING SERVICES 2,833.22 EA $2,833.22 
            
1 809800-17045 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 5YR 13,500.00 EA $13,500.00 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $18,243.50 



Morrow County, Oregon  
December 15, 2021  
  

  
Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 
to the restrictions on the cover page.  

9-12 Equipment List Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted  

9.2.6 3rd Optional Call-Taker Workstation Position 
VESTA® 9-1-1   

 
  

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

  
 

Note: Existing (1) VESTA 9-1-1 support 
valid through 3/31/2022. Upgrade and no-
charge licenses are applicable only while 
existing support is active. Full charge licenses 
are required if existing support expires.       

        
 

  
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Activity View       
1 873099-00802 V911 ACT VIEW LIC PER ST 950.04 EA $950.04 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations       
1 PS-0SQ-VSML-M VS BSC MLTP SEAT LIC NFEE 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,139.96 EA $5,139.96 
  

 
        

    VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR Module       
1 873099-00502U V911 IRR LIC UPGD 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 741.97 EA $741.97 
  

 
        

    VESTA® Workstation Equipment        
1 61000-409615SFF WKST Z2 G5 SFF SSD W/O OS 1,414.02 EA $1,414.02 
1 04000-00441 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 100.49 EA $100.49 
1 65000-00261 NIC PCIE SNGL ADPTR CARD 90.34 EA $90.34 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 
1 64007-50025 KEYPAD 48-KEY USB CBL 25FT 255.78 EA $255.78 
1 853030-00302 V911 SAM HDWR KIT 2,052.33 EA $2,052.33 
1 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $207.06 
1 02800-20501 HDST 4W MOD ELEC MIC BLK 39.59 EA $39.59 
1 03044-20000 HDST CORD 12FT 4W MOD BLK 4.06 EA $4.06 
1 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $266.95 
1 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $400.93 
            

       Subtotal    $12,057.34 

      
      VESTA® Map Local 

  
 

 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  
  

 
VESTA® Map Local       

1 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY 2,679.60 EA $2,679.60 
1 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR 2,411.64 EA $2,411.64 
            
    VESTA® Map Local - Additional Hardware       
1 64000-40120 8GB RAM DRR4 3200 Z2 G5 149.21 EA $149.21 
1 63000-241692 MNTR 24IN FP WIDE SCR LED 393.82 EA $393.82 
            
    VESTA Map Local Installation       
1 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $107.59 



 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Equipment List 9-13 

    
Note: Onsite installation/configuration of RAM 
VML software, map build per workstation.       

  
 

        
       Subtotal    $5,741.86 

      Managed Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    Monitoring, PM & AV Service: Workstations       
  

 
Note: Includes (1) Calltaker Workstation       

1 04000-00399 M&R WKST AGENT LIC 154.28 EA $154.28 
1 809800-16381 M&R PM AV WKST SRVC 5YR 3,219.58 EA $3,219.58 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $3,373.86 

      VESTA® Services 
  

 
 Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    MSI Direct Services       
1 809800-17035 MSI Direct Site Readiness Svcs 8,650.63 EA $8,650.63 
    Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack       
1 809800-51010 MSI Direct PM 2,970.00 EA $2,970.00 
1 809800-00132 MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING SERVICES 25,951.89 EA $25,951.89 
            
1 809800-17045 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 5YR 40,500.00 EA $40,500.00 
  

 
        

       Subtotal    $78,072.53 

 





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Pricing Summary 10-1 

SECTION 10 

PRICING SUMMARY 
Pricing is based on the HGAC Contract 

Summary by Expense Category/Component - 5 YEAR 
Single Backroom VESTA 9-1-1         
Hardware/Software 

  
 $              86,367.85  

Implementation, Project Management and Training 
  

 $              53,386.24  
Software Support 

  
 $              77,572.85  

24x7 Onsite Maintenance 
  

 $              40,500.00  
  

   
Quote Subtotal  $            257,826.94  

  
    

  
  

    
  

  
    

  
  

   
VESTA 9-1-1 Quote Total  $            257,826.94  

  
    

  
Optional Items SMS 

   
 $             28,497.04  

  
    

  
Optional Items RapidSOS 

   
 $             15,233.93  

  
    

  
Optional Citizen Input / Smart Transcription 

  
 $             38,180.00  

  
    

  
Optional VESTA Managed Detection & Response 

  
 $           126,721.44  

  
    

  
Optional VESTA CommandPOST 

  
 $             37,779.22  

  
    

  
Optional VESTA Calltaker Workstation 

  
 $             39,416.56  

  
    

  
  

   
Optional Items Quote Total  $           285,828.19  

  
    

  
  

    
  

            

 

* Quote is valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal.





 Morrow County, Oregon 
 December 15, 2021 
  

  
Next Generation VESTA 9-1-1 Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject 
 to the restrictions on the cover page. 

 Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted Communications System and Services Agreement 11-1 

SECTION 11 

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 
AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

1 

Communications System and Services Agreement 
  
Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola”) and _______________________________________ (“Customer”) 
enter into this “Agreement,” pursuant to which Customer will purchase and Motorola will sell the System 
and Services, as described below.  Motorola and Customer may be referred to individually as a “Party” 
and collectively as the “Parties.”   For good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, Customer desires to purchase from Motorola and Motorola desires to sell to Customer a 
Communications System; and 
 
WHEREAS, Houston-Galveston Area Council (“H-GAC”), acting as the agent for various local 
governmental entities who are “End Users” under interlocal agreements (including Customer) has 
solicited proposals for radio communications equipment and conducted discussions with Motorola 
concerning its proposal and, where applicable, in accordance with the competitive procurement 
procedures of Texas law; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 28, 2021, H-GAC and Motorola entered into a contract (the “Contract”), which 
provides that End Users may purchase radio communications equipment from Motorola pursuant to 
certain terms contained therein; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 2 of the Contract Special Provisions,  Motorola and Customer now wish to 
enter into this Agreement to delineate the specific terms of the purchase of radio communications 
equipment from Motorola by Customer. 
 
For good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Section 1 ATTACHMENTS 
  
1.1. EXHIBITS. The Exhibits listed below are exhibits related to the System sale and 
implementation. These Exhibits are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.   
Exhibit A     “Motorola Software License Agreement” 
Exhibit B     “Payment” 
Exhibit C     Technical and Implementation Documents 

C-1 “System Description” dated _______________ 
C-2 “Pricing Summary & Equipment List” dated _______________ 
C-3    “Implementation Statement of Work” dated _______________ 
C-4    “Acceptance Test Plan” or “ATP” dated _______________ 
C-5    “Performance Schedule” dated _______________ 

Exhibit D “System Acceptance Certificate” 
 
1.2. ADDENDUM (ADDENDA).  Customer may elect to purchase professional or subscription 
services in addition to the System and related services. Any such services will be governed by the terms 
in the main body of the Agreement and an applicable Addendum containing terms specific to such 
service. Such Addenda will be labeled with the name of the service being purchased. 
 
1.3 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE. In interpreting this Agreement and resolving any ambiguities: 1) the 
main body of this Agreement takes precedence over the exhibits (unless otherwise specified in an 
exhibit),  and any inconsistency between Exhibits A through D will be resolved in their listed order, and 2) 
The applicable service Addendum will take precedence over the main body of the Agreement and the 
Exhibits.  
 
Section 2 DEFINITIONS 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

2 

  
Capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the following meanings: 
  
“Acceptance Tests” means those tests described in the Acceptance Test Plan. 
 
“Addendum (Addenda)” is the title of the document(s) containing a specific set of terms and conditions 
applicable to a particular service or other offering beyond the Communication System and System 
implementation services. The terms in the Addendum are applicable only to the specific service or 
offering described therein.  
 
“Administrative User Credentials” means an account that has total access over the operating system, 
files, end user accounts and passwords at either the System level or box level.  Customer’s personnel 
with access to the Administrative User Credentials may be referred to as the Administrative User. 
  
“Beneficial Use” means when Customer first uses the System or a Subsystem for operational purposes 
(excluding training or testing). 
  
“Confidential Information” means all information consistent with the fulfillment of this Agreement that is 
(i) disclosed under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, and/or sample form, 
being clearly designated, labeled or marked as confidential or its equivalent or (ii) obtained by 
examination, testing or analysis of any hardware, software or any component part thereof provided by 
discloser to recipient. The nature and existence of this Agreement are considered Confidential 
Information. Confidential Information that is disclosed orally must be identified as confidential at the time 
of disclosure and confirmed by the discloser by submitting a written document to the recipient within thirty 
(30) days after such disclosure. The written document must contain a summary of the Confidential 
Information disclosed with enough specificity for identification purpose and must be labeled or marked as 
confidential or its equivalent. 
  
“Contract Price” means the price for the System and implementation Services, excluding applicable 
sales or similar taxes and freight charges. Further, unless otherwise stated in Exhibit B, “Payment” or the 
pricing pages of the proposal, recurring fees for maintenance, SUA,  or subscription services are not 
included in the Contract Price.   
 
“Deliverables” means all written information (such as reports, specifications, designs, plans, drawings, 
analytics, Solution Data, or other technical or business information) that Motorola prepares for Customer 
in the performance of the Services and is obligated to provide to Customer under this Agreement.  The 
Deliverables, if any, are more fully described in the Statement of Work. 
  
“Derivative Proprietary Materials” means derivatives of the Proprietary Materials that Motorola may 
from time to time, including during the course of providing the Services, develop and/or use and/or to 
which Motorola provides Customer access. 
 
“Effective Date” means that date upon which the last Party executes this Agreement.  
  
“Equipment” means the hardware components of the Solution that Customer purchases from Motorola 
under this Agreement.  Equipment that is part of the System is described in the Equipment List.  
 
 “Feedback” means comments or information, in oral or written form, given to Motorola by Customer in 
connection with or relating to Equipment or Services, during the term of this Agreement. 
 
“Force Majeure”  means an event, circumstance, or act that is beyond a Party’s reasonable control, 
such as an act of God, an act of the public enemy, an act of a government entity, strikes, other labor 
disturbances, supplier performance, hurricanes, earthquakes, fires, floods, epidemics, embargoes, war, 
riots, or any other similar cause.  
  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

3 

“Motorola Software” means software that Motorola or its affiliated companies owns.  
  
“Non-Motorola Software” means software that a party other than Motorola or its affiliated companies 
owns. 
  
“Open Source Software” (also called “freeware” or “shareware”) means software with either freely 
obtainable source code, license for modification, or permission for free distribution.  
  
“Proprietary Materials” means certain software tools and/or other technical materials, including, but not 
limited to, data, modules, components, designs, utilities, subsets, objects, program listings, models, 
methodologies, programs, systems, analysis frameworks, leading practices and specifications which 
Motorola has developed prior to, or independently from, the provision of the Services and/or which 
Motorola licenses from third parties. 
 
“Proprietary Rights” means the patents, patent applications, inventions, copyrights, trade secrets, 
trademarks, trade names, mask works, know-how, and other intellectual property rights in and to the 
Equipment and Software, including those created or produced by Motorola under this Agreement and any 
corrections, bug fixes, enhancements, updates or modifications to or derivative works from the Software 
whether made by Motorola or another party. 
 
“Services” means system implementation, maintenance, support, subscription, or other professional 
services provided under this Agreement, which may be further described in the applicable Addendum 
and/or SOW. 
  
“Software” (i) means proprietary software in object code format, and adaptations, translations, de-
compilations, disassemblies, emulations, or derivative works of such software; (ii) means any 
modifications, enhancements, new versions and new releases of the software provided by Motorola; and 
(iii) may contain one or more items of software owned by a third party supplier.  The term "Software" does 
not include any third party software provided under separate license or third party software not licensable 
under the terms of this Agreement. 
 
“Software License Agreement” means the Motorola Software License Agreement (Exhibit A). 
 
“Software Support Policy” (“SwSP”) means the policy set forth at 
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/software_policy.pdf describing the 
specific technical support that will be provided to Customers under the Warranty Period and during any 
paid maintenance support period for Motorola Software.  This policy may be modified from time to time at 
Motorola’s discretion. 
 
“Solution” means the combination of the System(s) and Services provided by Motorola under this 
Agreement. 
 
“Solution Data” means Customer data that is transformed, altered, processed, aggregated, correlated or 
operated on by Motorola, its vendors or other data sources and data that has been manipulated or 
retrieved using Motorola know-how to produce value-added content to data consumers, including 
customers or citizens which is made available to Customer with the Solution and Services. 
  
“Specifications” means the functionality and performance requirements that are described in the 
Technical and Implementation Documents.  
 
“SUA” or “SUA II” means Motorola’s Software Upgrade Agreement program.  
 
“Subsystem” means a major part of the System that performs specific functions or operations.  
Subsystems are described in the Technical and Implementation Documents. 
  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

4 

“System” means the Equipment, including incidental hardware and materials, Software, and design, 
installation and implementation services that are combined together into an integrated system; the 
System(s) is (are) described in the Technical and Implementation Documents.   
  
“System Acceptance” means the Acceptance Tests have been successfully completed. 
“System Data” means data created by, in connection with or in relation to Equipment or the performance 
of Services under this Agreement.  
  
“Warranty Period” for System Hardware, Software, or services related to system implementation means 
one (1) year from the date of System Acceptance or Beneficial Use, whichever occurs first. Unless 
otherwise stated in the applicable Addendum, Warranty Period for other Services means ninety (90) days 
from performance of the Service. 
  
Section 3 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT AND TERM 
  
3.1.    SCOPE OF WORK.  Motorola will provide, install and test the System(s), and perform its other 
contractual responsibilities to provide the Solution, all in accordance with this Agreement.  Customer will 
perform its contractual responsibilities in accordance with this Agreement. 
  
3.2.    CHANGE ORDERS.  Either Party may request changes within the general scope of this 
Agreement.  If a requested change causes an increase or decrease in the cost or time required to 
perform this Agreement, the Parties will agree to an equitable adjustment of the Contract Price or 
applicable subscription fees, Performance Schedule, or both, and will reflect the adjustment in a change 
order or Addendum.  Neither Party is obligated to perform requested changes unless both Parties 
execute a written change order. 
  
3.3.    TERM.  Unless terminated in accordance with other provisions of this Agreement or extended by 
mutual agreement of the Parties, the term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and continues 
until the date of Final Project Acceptance or expiration of the Warranty Period, or completion of the 
Services, whichever occurs last.  The term and the effective date of recurring Services will be set forth in 
the applicable Addendum. 
          
3.4.    ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE.  For three (3) years after the expiration date of the 
Agreement, Customer may order additional Equipment or Software, if it is then available.  Each purchase 
order must refer to this Agreement, the expiration date of the Agreement, and must specify the pricing 
and delivery terms.  The Parties agree that, notwithstanding expiration of the Agreement, the applicable 
provisions of this Agreement (except for pricing, delivery, passage of title and risk of loss to Equipment, 
warranty commencement, and payment terms) will govern the purchase and sale of the additional 
Equipment or Software.  Additional or contrary terms in the purchase order will be inapplicable, unless 
signed by both parties. Title and risk of loss to additional Equipment will pass at shipment, warranty will 
commence upon delivery, and payment is due within thirty (30) days after the invoice date.  Motorola will 
send Customer an invoice as the additional Equipment is shipped or Software is licensed.  Alternatively, 
Customer may register with and place orders through the Motorola Solutions Customer Portal 
eCommerce Shop, and this Agreement will be the “Underlying Agreement” for those eCommerce 
transactions rather than the eCommerce Shop Terms and Conditions of Sale. eCommerce Shop 
registration and other information may be found at https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/registration 
and the shop support telephone number is (800) 814-0601.     
 
3.5.    MOTOROLA SOFTWARE.  Any Motorola Software, including subsequent releases, is licensed to 
Customer solely in accordance with the Software License Agreement.  Customer hereby accepts and 
agrees to abide by all of the terms and restrictions of the Software License Agreement. 
  
3.6.    NON-MOTOROLA SOFTWARE.  Any Non-Motorola Software is licensed to Customer in 
accordance with the standard license, terms, and restrictions of the copyright owner on the Effective Date 
unless the copyright owner has granted to Motorola the right to sublicense the Non-Motorola Software 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

5 

pursuant to the Software License Agreement, in which case it applies and the copyright owner will have 
all of Licensor’s rights and protections under the Software License Agreement.  Motorola makes no 
representations or warranties of any kind regarding Non-Motorola Software.  Non-Motorola Software may 
include Open Source Software.   
  
3.7.    SUBSTITUTIONS.  At no additional cost to Customer, Motorola may substitute any Equipment, 
Software, or services to be provided by Motorola, if the substitute meets or exceeds the Specifications 
and is of equivalent or better quality to the Customer.  Any substitution will be reflected in a change order. 
  
3.8.    OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE.  This paragraph applies only if a “Priced Options” 
exhibit is shown in Section 1, or if the parties amend this Agreement to add a Priced Options exhibit.  
During the term of the option as stated in the Priced Options exhibit (or if no term is stated, then for one 
(1) year after the Effective Date), Customer has the right and option to purchase the equipment, software, 
and related services that are described in the Priced Options exhibit.  Customer may exercise this option 
by giving written notice to Seller which must designate what equipment, software, and related services 
Customer is selecting (including quantities, if applicable).  To the extent they apply, the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement will govern the transaction; however, the parties acknowledge that certain 
provisions must be agreed upon, and they agree to negotiate those in good faith promptly after Customer 
delivers the option exercise notice.  Examples of provisions that may need to be negotiated are: specific 
lists of deliverables, statements of work, acceptance test plans, delivery and implementation schedules, 
payment terms, maintenance and support provisions, additions to or modifications of the Software 
License Agreement, hosting terms, and modifications to the acceptance and warranty provisions. 
  
Section 4 SERVICES 
 
4.1. If Customer desires and Motorola agrees to continue Services beyond the Term, Customer’s 
issuance and Motorola’s acceptance of a purchase order for Services will serve as an automatic 
extension of the Agreement for purposes of the continuing Services. Only the terms and conditions 
applicable to the performance of Services will apply to the extended Agreement.   
 
4.2.  During the Warranty Period, in addition to warranty services, Motorola will provide maintenance 
Services for the Equipment and support for the Motorola Software pursuant to the applicable 
maintenance and support Statements of Work.  Support for the Motorola Software will be in accordance 
with Motorola's established Software Support Policy.  Copies of the SwSP can be found at 
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/software_policy.pdf and will be sent 
by mail, email or fax to Customer upon written request. Maintenance Services and support during the 
Warranty Period are included in the Contract Price. Unless already included in the Contract Price,  if 
Customer wishes to purchase 1) additional maintenance or software support services during the Warranty 
Period; or 2) continue or expand maintenance, software support, installation, and/or SUA services after 
the Warranty Period, Motorola will provide the description of and pricing for such services in a separate 
proposal document.   Unless otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, the terms and conditions in this 
Agreement applicable to maintenance, support, installation, and/or SUA Services, will be included in the 
Maintenance and Support Addendum, SUA Addendum, the applicable Statements of Work, and the 
proposal, (if applicable). These collective terms will govern the provision of such Services.   
 
To obtain any such additional Services, Customer will issue a purchase order referring to this Agreement 
and the separate proposal document.  Omission of reference to this Agreement in Customer’s purchase 
order will not affect the applicability of this Agreement. Motorola’s proposal may include a cover page 
entitled “Service Agreement” or “Installation Agreement”, as applicable, and other attachments. These 
cover pages and other attachments are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference  
 
4.3. PROFESSIONAL AND SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES.  If Customer purchases professional or 
subscription Services as part of the Solution, additional or different terms specific to such Service will be 
included in the applicable Addendum and will apply to those Services.  Customer may purchase 
additional professional or subscription services by issuing a purchase order referencing this Agreement 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

6 

and Motorola’s proposal for such additional services.  
 
 
4.4. Any information in the form of specifications, drawings, reprints, technical information or 
otherwise furnished to Customer in providing Services under this Agreement or Motorola data viewed, 
accessed, will remain Motorola’s property, will be deemed proprietary, Confidential Information. This 
Confidential Information will be promptly returned at Motorola's request.   
 
4.5. TOOLS.  All tools, equipment, dies, gauges, models, drawings or other materials paid for or 
furnished by Motorola for the purpose of providing Services under this Agreement will be and remain the 
sole property of Motorola.  Customer will safeguard all such property while it is in Customer’s custody or 
control, be liable for any loss or damage to this property, and return it to Motorola upon request.  This 
property will be held by Customer for Motorola’s use without charge and may be removed from 
Customer’s premises by Motorola at any time without restriction.  Upon termination of the contract for any 
reason, Customer shall return to Motorola all equipment delivered to Customer.   

4.6. COVENANT NOT TO EMPLOY.  During the term of this Agreement and continuing for a period of 
two (2) years thereafter, Customer will not hire, engage on contract, solicit the employment of, or 
recommend employment to any third party of any employee of Motorola or its subcontractors without the 
prior written authorization of Motorola.  This provision applies only to those employees of Motorola or its 
subcontractors who are responsible for rendering Services under this Agreement.  If this provision is 
found to be overly broad under applicable law, it will be modified as necessary to conform to applicable 
law. 
 
4.7. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS.  If the applicable Statement of Work or Addendum contains 
assumptions that affect the Services or Deliverables, Customer will verify that they are accurate and 
complete.  Any information that Customer provides to Motorola concerning the Services or Deliverables 
will be accurate and complete in all material respects.   Customer will make timely decisions and obtain 
any required management approvals that are reasonably necessary for Motorola to perform the Services 
and its other duties under this Agreement.  Unless the Statement of Work states the contrary, Motorola 
may rely upon and is not required to evaluate, confirm, reject, modify, or provide advice concerning any 
assumptions and Customer-provided information, decisions and approvals described in this paragraph.   
 
4.8. ASSUMPTIONS.  If any assumptions or conditions contained in this Agreement, applicable 
Addenda or Statements of Work prove to be incorrect or if Customer’s obligations are not performed, 
Motorola’s ability to perform under this Agreement may be impacted and changes to the Contract Price, 
subscription fees, project schedule, Deliverables, or other changes may be necessary. 
 
 
4.9. NON-PRECLUSION.  If, as a result of the Services performed under this Agreement, Motorola 
recommends that Customer purchase products or other services, nothing in this Agreement precludes 
Motorola from participating in a future competitive bidding process or otherwise offering or selling the 
recommended products or other services to Customer.  Customer represents that this paragraph does 
not violate its procurement or other laws, regulations, or policies. 
 
4.10. PROPRIETARY MATERIALS.  Customer acknowledges that Motorola may use and/or provide 
Customer with access to Proprietary Materials and Derivative Proprietary Materials.  The Proprietary 
Materials and the Derivative Proprietary Materials are the sole and exclusive property of Motorola and 
Motorola retains all right, title and interest in and to the Proprietary Materials and Derivative Proprietary 
Materials. 
 
4.11. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  Any services performed by Motorola outside the scope of this 
Agreement at the direction of Customer will be considered to be additional Services which are subject to 
additional charges.  Any agreement to perform additional Services will be reflected in a written and 
executed change order, Addendum or amendment to this Agreement.  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

7 

  
Section 5 PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 
  
The Parties will perform their respective responsibilities in accordance with the Performance Schedule.  
By executing this Agreement, Customer authorizes Motorola to proceed with contract performance.  
  
Section 6 CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND INVOICING 
  
6.1. Customer affirms that a purchase order or notice to proceed is not required for contract performance 
or for subsequent years of service, if any,  and that sufficient  funds have been appropriated in 
accordance with applicable law.  The Customer will pay all invoices as received from Motorola and any 
changes in scope will be subject to the change order process as described in this Agreement.  At the time 
of execution of this Agreement, the Customer will provide all necessary reference information to include 
on invoices for payment in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
6.2. CONTRACT PRICE.  The Contract Price in U.S. dollars is $________________________.  If 
applicable, a pricing summary is included with the Payment schedule in Exhibit B.  Motorola has priced 
the Services, Software, and Equipment as an integrated System.  A change in Software or Equipment 
quantities, or Services, may affect the overall Contract Price, including discounts if applicable. Fees for 
professional, SUA,  and/or subscription services which are not included in the Contract Price may be 
listed in Exhibit B, the pricing pages of the proposal, or the applicable Addendum.     
  
6.3. INVOICING AND PAYMENT.  Motorola will submit invoices to Customer according to the 
Payment schedule in Exhibit B.  Invoices will be mailed or emailed to Customer pursuant to Section 6.5, 
Invoicing and Shipping Addresses. Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will 
make payments to Motorola within thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice. Customer will make 
payments when due in the form of a wire transfer, check, or cashier’s check from a U.S. financial 
institution.  Overdue invoices will bear simple interest at the maximum allowable rate. For reference, the 
Federal Tax Identification Number for Motorola is 36-1115800. 
  
6.4. FREIGHT, TITLE, AND RISK OF LOSS.  Motorola will pre-pay and add all freight charges to the 
invoices.  Title and risk of loss to the Equipment will pass to Customer upon shipment.  Title to Software 
will not pass to Customer at any time. Motorola will pack and ship all Equipment in accordance with good 
commercial practices.  
  
6.5. INVOICING AND SHIPPING ADDRESSES.  Invoices will be sent to the Customer at the following 
address: 
Name:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Phone:______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
E-INVOICE. To receive invoices via email: 
Customer Account Number:____________________________________________________________  
Customer Accounts Payable Email:______________________________________________________ 
Customer CC(optional) Email: __________________________________________________________ 
  
The address which is the ultimate destination where the Equipment will be delivered to Customer is: 
Name:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 
  
The Equipment will be shipped to the Customer at the following address (insert if this information is 
known): 
Name:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Phone:______________________________________________________________________________ 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

8 

  
Customer may change this information by giving written notice to Motorola. 
 
Section 7 SITES AND SITE CONDITIONS 
  
7.1.    ACCESS TO SITES.  In addition to its responsibilities described elsewhere in this Agreement, 
Customer will provide a designated project manager; all necessary construction and building permits, 
zoning variances, licenses, and any other approvals that are necessary to develop or use the sites and 
mounting locations; and access to the worksites or vehicles identified in the Technical and 
Implementation Documents as reasonably requested by Motorola so that it may perform its duties in 
accordance with the Performance Schedule and Statement of Work.  If the Statement of Work so 
indicates, Motorola may assist Customer in the local building permit process. 
  
7.2.    SITE CONDITIONS.  Customer will ensure that all work sites it provides will be safe, secure, and 
in compliance with all applicable industry and OSHA standards.  To the extent applicable and unless the 
Statement of Work states to the contrary, Customer will ensure that these work sites have adequate: 
physical space; air conditioning and other environmental conditions; adequate and appropriate electrical 
power outlets, distribution, equipment and connections; and adequate telephone or other communication 
lines (including modem access and adequate interfacing networking capabilities), all for the installation, 
use and maintenance of the System.  Before installing the Equipment or Software at a work site, Motorola 
may inspect the work site and advise Customer of any apparent deficiencies or non-conformities with the 
requirements of this Section.  This Agreement is predicated upon normal soil conditions as defined by the 
version of E.I.A. standard RS-222 in effect on the Effective Date. 
  
7.3.    SITE ISSUES.  If a Party determines that the sites identified in the Technical and Implementation 
Documents are no longer available or desired, or if subsurface, structural, adverse environmental or 
latent conditions at any site differ from those indicated in the Technical and Implementation Documents, 
the Parties will promptly investigate the conditions and will select replacement sites or adjust the 
installation plans and specifications as necessary.  If change in sites or adjustment to the installation 
plans and specifications causes a change in the cost or time to perform, the Parties will equitably amend 
the Contract Price, Performance Schedule, or both, by a change order. 
  
Section 8 TRAINING 
 
Any training to be provided by Motorola to Customer will be described in the applicable Statement of 
Work.  Customer will notify Motorola immediately if a date change for a scheduled training program is 
required.  If Motorola incurs additional costs because Customer reschedules a training program less than 
thirty (30) days before its scheduled start date, Motorola may recover these additional costs. 
   
Section 9 SYSTEM ACCEPTANCE 
  
9.1. COMMENCEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE TESTING. Motorola will provide to Customer at least ten 
(10) days notice before the Acceptance Tests commence. System testing will occur only in accordance 
with the Acceptance Test Plan. 
  
9.2. SYSTEM ACCEPTANCE. System Acceptance will occur upon successful completion of the 
Acceptance Tests.  Upon System Acceptance, the Parties will memorialize this event by promptly 
executing a System Acceptance Certificate.  If the Acceptance Test Plan includes separate tests for 
individual Subsystems or phases of the System, acceptance of the individual Subsystem or phase will 
occur upon the successful completion of the Acceptance Tests for the Subsystem or phase, and the 
Parties will promptly execute an acceptance certificate for the Subsystem or phase.  If Customer believes 
the System has failed the completed Acceptance Tests, Customer will provide to Motorola a written notice 
that includes the specific details of the failure.  If Customer does not provide to Motorola a failure notice 
within thirty (30) days after completion of the Acceptance Tests, System Acceptance will be deemed to 
have occurred as of the completion of the Acceptance Tests.  Minor omissions or variances in the System 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

9 

that do not materially impair the operation of the System as a whole will not postpone System Acceptance 
or Subsystem acceptance, but will be corrected according to a mutually agreed schedule. 
  
9.3. BENEFICIAL USE.  Customer acknowledges that Motorola’s ability to perform its implementation 
and testing responsibilities may be impeded if Customer begins using the System before System 
Acceptance.  Therefore, Customer will not commence Beneficial Use before System Acceptance without 
Motorola’s prior written authorization, which will not be unreasonably withheld. Motorola is not responsible 
for System performance deficiencies that occur during unauthorized Beneficial Use. Upon 
commencement of Beneficial Use, Customer assumes responsibility for the use and operation of the 
System.   
  
9.4. FINAL PROJECT ACCEPTANCE. Final Project Acceptance will occur after System Acceptance 
when all deliverables and other work have been completed.  When Final Project Acceptance occurs, the 
parties will promptly memorialize this final event by so indicating on the System Acceptance Certificate. 
  
Section 10 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
  
10.1.    SYSTEM FUNCTIONALITY.  Motorola represents that the System will perform in accordance 
with the Specifications in all material respects.  Upon System Acceptance or Beneficial Use, whichever 
occurs first, this System functionality representation is fulfilled.  Motorola is not responsible for System 
performance deficiencies that are caused by ancillary equipment not furnished by Motorola which is 
attached to or used in connection with the System or for reasons or parties beyond Motorola’s control, 
such as natural causes; the construction of a building that adversely affects the microwave path reliability 
or radio frequency (RF) coverage; the addition of frequencies at System sites that cause RF interference 
or intermodulation; or Customer changes to load usage or configuration outside the Specifications. 
  
10.2. EQUIPMENT WARRANTY.  During the Warranty Period, Motorola warrants that the Equipment 
under normal use and service will be free from material defects in materials and workmanship.  If System 
Acceptance is delayed beyond six (6) months after shipment of the Equipment by events or causes 
beyond Motorola’s control, this warranty expires eighteen (18) months after the shipment of the 
Equipment. 
  
10.3. SOFTWARE WARRANTY.  Except as described in the SwSP and unless otherwise stated in the 
Software License Agreement, during the Warranty Period, Motorola warrants the Software in accordance 
with the warranty terms set forth in the Software License Agreement and the provisions of this Section 
that are applicable to the Software.  If System Acceptance is delayed beyond six (6) months after 
shipment of the Motorola Software by events or causes beyond Motorola’s control, this warranty expires 
eighteen (18) months after the shipment of the Motorola Software.  Nothing in this Warranty provision 
is intended to conflict or modify the Software Support Policy. In the event of an ambiguity or 
conflict between the Software Warranty and Software Support Policy, the Software Support Policy 
governs.  
  
10.4.    EXCLUSIONS TO EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE WARRANTIES.  These warranties do not 
apply to: (i) defects or damage resulting from: use of the Equipment or Software in other than its normal, 
customary, and authorized manner; accident, liquids, neglect, or acts of God; testing, maintenance, 
disassembly, repair, installation, alteration, modification, or adjustment not provided or authorized in 
writing by Motorola; Customer’s failure to comply with all applicable industry and OSHA standards; (ii) 
breakage of or damage to antennas unless caused directly by defects in material or workmanship; (iii) 
Equipment that has had the serial number removed or made illegible; (iv) batteries (because they carry 
their own separate limited warranty) or consumables; (v) freight costs to ship Equipment to the repair 
depot; (vi) scratches or other cosmetic damage to Equipment surfaces that does not affect the operation 
of the Equipment; and (vii) normal or customary wear and tear. 
 
10.5. SERVICE WARRANTY.  During the Warranty Period, Motorola warrants that the Services will be 
provided in a good and workmanlike manner and will conform in all material respects to the applicable 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

10 

Statement of Work. Services will be free of defects in materials and workmanship for a period of ninety 
(90) days from the date the performance of the Services are completed.  Customer acknowledges that 
the Deliverables may contain recommendations, suggestions or advice from Motorola to Customer 
(collectively, “recommendations”).  Motorola makes no warranties concerning those recommendations, 
and Customer alone accepts responsibility for choosing whether and how to implement the 
recommendations and the results to be realized from implementing them. 
  
10.6. WARRANTY CLAIMS.  To assert a warranty claim, Customer must notify Motorola in writing of 
the claim before the expiration of the Warranty Period.  Upon receipt of this notice, Motorola will 
investigate the warranty claim.  If this investigation confirms a valid Equipment or Software warranty 
claim, Motorola will (at its option and at no additional charge to Customer) repair the defective Equipment 
or Motorola Software, replace it with the same or equivalent product, or refund the price of the defective 
Equipment or Motorola Software.  These actions will be the full extent of Motorola’s liability for the 
warranty claim.  In the event of a valid Services warranty claim, Customer’s sole remedy is to require 
Motorola to re-perform the non-conforming Service or to refund, on a pro-rata basis, the fees paid for the 
non-conforming Service.  If this investigation indicates the warranty claim is not valid, then Motorola may 
invoice Customer for responding to the claim on a time and materials basis using Motorola’s then current 
labor rates.  Repaired or replaced product is warranted for the balance of the original applicable warranty 
period.  All replaced products or parts will become the property of Motorola. 
  
10.7. ORIGINAL END USER IS COVERED.  These express limited warranties are extended by 
Motorola to the original user purchasing the System or Services for commercial, industrial, or 
governmental use only, and are not assignable or transferable. 
  
10.8. DISCLAIMER OF OTHER WARRANTIES.  THESE WARRANTIES ARE THE COMPLETE 
WARRANTIES FOR THE EQUIPMENT AND MOTOROLA SOFTWARE PROVIDED UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT AND ARE GIVEN IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES.  MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE.  
 
Section 11 DELAYS 
  
11.1. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither Party will be liable for its non-performance or delayed performance if 
caused by a Force Majeure.  A Party that becomes aware of a Force Majeure that will significantly delay 
performance will notify the other Party promptly (but in no event later than fifteen days) after it discovers 
the Force Majeure.  If a Force Majeure occurs, the Parties will execute a change order to extend the 
Performance Schedule or applicable Addenda for a time period that is reasonable under the 
circumstances. 
  
11.2. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE DELAYS CAUSED BY CUSTOMER. If Customer (including its 
other contractors) delays the Performance Schedule, it will make the promised payments according to the 
Payment schedule as if no delay occurred; and the Parties will execute a change order to extend the 
Performance Schedule and, if requested, compensate Motorola for all reasonable charges incurred 
because of the delay.  Delay charges may include costs incurred by Motorola or its subcontractors for 
additional freight, warehousing and handling of Equipment; extension of the warranties; travel; 
suspending and re-mobilizing the work; additional engineering, project management, and standby time 
calculated at then current rates; and preparing and implementing an alternative implementation plan. 
  
Section 12 DISPUTES 
  
The Parties will use the following procedure to address any dispute arising under this Agreement (a 
“Dispute”). 
  
12.1.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

11 

laws of the State in which the System is installed. 
  
12.2. NEGOTIATION.  Either Party may initiate the Dispute resolution procedures by sending a notice 
of Dispute (“Notice of Dispute”).  The Parties will attempt to resolve the Dispute promptly through good 
faith negotiations including 1) timely escalation of the Dispute to executives who have authority to settle 
the Dispute and who are at a higher level of management than the persons with direct responsibility for 
the matter and 2) direct communication between the executives.  If the Dispute has not been resolved 
within ten (10) days from the Notice of Dispute, the Parties will proceed to mediation.  
  
12.3. MEDIATION.  The Parties will choose an independent mediator within thirty (30) days of a notice 
to mediate from either Party (“Notice of Mediation”).  Neither Party may unreasonably withhold consent to 
the selection of a mediator.  If the Parties are unable to agree upon a mediator, either Party may request 
that American Arbitration Association nominate a mediator.  Each Party will bear its own costs of 
mediation, but the Parties will share the cost of the mediator equally.  Each Party will participate in the 
mediation in good faith and will be represented at the mediation by a business executive with authority to 
settle the Dispute. 
  
12.4.  LITIGATION, VENUE and JURISDICTION.  If a Dispute remains unresolved for sixty (60) days 
after receipt of the Notice of Mediation, either Party may then submit the Dispute to a court of competent 
jurisdiction in the state in which the System is installed.  Each Party irrevocably agrees to submit to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in such state over any claim or matter arising under or in connection 
with this Agreement. 
  
12.5. CONFIDENTIALITY.  All communications pursuant to subsections 12.2 and 12.3 will be treated 
as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of applicable rules of evidence and any 
additional confidentiality protections provided by applicable law.  The use of these Dispute resolution 
procedures will not be construed under the doctrines of laches, waiver or estoppel to affect adversely the 
rights of either Party. 
  
Section 13 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
  
13.1. DEFAULT BY A PARTY.  If either Party fails to perform a material obligation under this 
Agreement, the other Party may consider the non-performing Party to be in default (unless a Force 
Majeure causes the failure) and may assert a default claim by giving the non-performing Party a written 
and detailed notice of default.  Except for a default by Customer for failing to pay any amount when due 
under this Agreement which must be cured immediately, the defaulting Party will have thirty (30) days 
after receipt of the notice of default to either cure the default or, if the default is not curable within thirty 
(30) days, provide a written cure plan.  The defaulting Party will begin implementing the cure plan 
immediately after receipt of notice by the other Party that it approves the plan.  If Customer is the 
defaulting Party, Motorola may stop work on the project until it approves the Customer’s cure plan. 
  
13.2. FAILURE TO CURE.  If a defaulting Party fails to cure the default as provided above in Section 
13.1, unless otherwise agreed in writing, the non-defaulting Party may terminate any unfulfilled portion of 
this Agreement.  In the event of termination for default, the defaulting Party will promptly return to the non-
defaulting Party any of its Confidential Information.  If Customer is the non-defaulting Party, terminates 
this Agreement as permitted by this Section, and completes the System through a third Party, Customer 
may as its exclusive remedy recover from Motorola reasonable costs incurred to complete the System to 
a capability not exceeding that specified in this Agreement less the unpaid portion of the Contract Price.  
Customer will mitigate damages and provide Motorola with detailed invoices substantiating the charges. 
In the event Customer elects to terminate this Agreement for any reason other than default, Customer 
shall pay Motorola for the conforming Equipment and/or Software delivered and all services performed. 
 
Section 14     INDEMNIFICATION 
  
14.1.  GENERAL INDEMNITY BY Motorola.  Motorola will indemnify and hold Customer harmless from 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

12 

any and all liability, expense, judgment, suit, cause of action, or demand for personal injury, death, or 
direct damage to tangible property which may accrue against Customer to the extent it is caused by the 
negligence of Motorola, its subcontractors, or their employees or agents, while performing their duties 
under this Agreement, if Customer gives Motorola prompt, written notice of any claim or suit.  Customer 
will cooperate with Motorola in its defense or settlement of the claim or suit.  This Section sets forth the 
full extent of Motorola’s general indemnification of Customer from liabilities that are in any way related to 
Motorola’s performance under this Agreement.  
  
14.2.  GENERAL INDEMNITY BY CUSTOMER.  Customer will indemnify and hold Motorola harmless 
from any and all liability, expense, judgment, suit, cause of action, or demand for personal injury, death, 
or direct damage to tangible property which may accrue against Motorola to the extent it is caused by the 
negligence of Customer, its other contractors, or their employees or agents, while performing their duties 
under this Agreement, if Motorola gives Customer prompt, written notice of any the claim or suit.  
Motorola will cooperate with Customer in its defense or settlement of the claim or suit.  This Section sets 
forth the full extent of Customer’s general indemnification of Motorola from liabilities that are in any way 
related to Customer’s performance under this Agreement. 
  
14.3. PATENT AND COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT.  
  
14.3.1.  Motorola will defend at its expense any suit brought against Customer to the extent it is based on 
a third-party claim alleging that the Equipment manufactured by Motorola or the Motorola Software 
(“Motorola Product”) directly infringes a United States patent or copyright (“Infringement Claim”). 
Motorola’s duties to defend and indemnify are conditioned upon: Customer promptly notifying Motorola in 
writing of the Infringement Claim; Motorola having sole control of the defense of the suit and all 
negotiations for its settlement or compromise; and Customer providing to Motorola cooperation and, if 
requested by Motorola, reasonable assistance in the defense of the Infringement Claim.  In addition to 
Motorola’s obligation to defend, and subject to the same conditions, Motorola will pay all damages finally 
awarded against Customer by a court of competent jurisdiction for an Infringement Claim or agreed to, in 
writing, by Motorola in settlement of an Infringement Claim.  
  
14.3.2  If an Infringement Claim occurs, or in Motorola's opinion is likely to occur, Motorola may at its 
option and expense: (a) procure for Customer the right to continue using the Motorola Product; (b) 
replace or modify the Motorola Product so that it becomes non-infringing while providing functionally 
equivalent performance; or (c) accept the return of the Motorola Product and grant Customer a credit for 
the Motorola Product, less a reasonable charge for depreciation. The depreciation amount will be 
calculated based upon generally accepted accounting standards.  
  
14.3.3  Motorola will have no duty to defend or indemnify for any Infringement Claim that is based upon: 
(a) the combination of the Motorola Product with any software, apparatus or device not furnished by 
Motorola; (b) the use of ancillary equipment or software not furnished by Motorola and that is attached to 
or used in connection with the Motorola Product; (c) Motorola Product designed or manufactured in 
accordance with Customer’s designs, specifications, guidelines or instructions, if the alleged infringement 
would not have occurred without such designs, specifications, guidelines or instructions; (d) a 
modification of the Motorola Product by a party other than Motorola; (e) use of the Motorola Product in a 
manner for which the Motorola Product was not designed or that is inconsistent with the terms of this 
Agreement; or (f) the failure by Customer to install an enhancement release to the Motorola Software that 
is intended to correct the claimed infringement.   In no event will Motorola’s liability resulting from its 
indemnity obligation to Customer extend in any way to royalties payable on a per use basis or the 
Customer’s revenues, or any royalty basis other than a reasonable royalty based upon revenue derived 
by Motorola from Customer from sales or license of the infringing Motorola Product. 
  
14.3.4. This Section 14 provides Customer’s sole and exclusive remedies and Motorola’s entire liability in 
the event of an Infringement Claim.  Customer has no right to recover and Motorola has no obligation to 
provide any other or further remedies, whether under another provision of this Agreement or any other 
legal theory or principle, in connection with an Infringement Claim.  In addition, the rights and remedies 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

13 

provided in this Section 14 are subject to and limited by the restrictions set forth in Section 15. 
  
Section 15 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
  
  
Except for personal injury or death, Motorola's total liability, whether for breach of contract, warranty, 
negligence, strict liability in tort, indemnification, or otherwise, will be limited to the direct damages 
recoverable under law, but not to exceed the price of the Equipment, Software, or implementation and 
other one-time Services with respect to which losses or damages are claimed.  With respect to all 
subscription or other ongoing Services and unless as otherwise provided under the applicable Addenda, 
Motorola’s total liability will be limited to the direct damages recoverable under law, but not to exceed the 
price of twelve (12) months of Services preceding the incident giving rise to the claim. ALTHOUGH THE 
PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES, THEY AGREE 
THAT MOTOROLA WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY COMMERCIAL LOSS, INCONVENIENCE, LOSS 
OF USE, LOSS TIME, DATA, GOODWILL, REVENUES, PROFITS OR SAVINGS; OR OTHER 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY WAY RELATED TO OR 
ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT, THE SALE OR USE OF THE EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE, OR 
THE PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES BY MOTOROLA PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.  This 
limitation of liability provision survives the expiration or termination of the Agreement and applies 
notwithstanding any contrary provision.  No action for contract breach or otherwise relating to the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be brought more than one (1) year after the accrual of 
the cause of action, except for money due upon an open account. 
 
 Section 16     CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS 
  
16.1.  CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  
  
16.1.1. Each party is a disclosing party (“Discloser”) and a receiving party (“Recipient”) under this 
Agreement. All Deliverables will be deemed to be Motorola’s Confidential Information.  During the term of 
this Agreement and for a period of three (3) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement, 
Recipient will (i) not disclose Confidential Information to any third party; (ii) restrict disclosure of 
Confidential Information to only those employees (including, but not limited to, employees of any wholly 
owned subsidiary, a parent company, any other wholly owned subsidiaries of the same parent company), 
agents or consultants who must be directly involved with the Confidential Information for the purpose and 
who are bound by confidentiality terms substantially similar to those in this Agreement; (iii) not copy, 
reproduce, reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble any Confidential Information; (iv) use the same 
degree of care as for its own information of like importance, but at least use reasonable care, in 
safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential Information; (v) promptly notify Discloser upon discovery 
of any unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information and take reasonable steps to regain 
possession of the Confidential Information and prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of 
this Agreement; and (vi) only use the Confidential Information as needed to fulfill this Agreement. 
  
16.1.2.  Recipient is not obligated to maintain as confidential, Confidential Information that Recipient can 
demonstrate by documentation (i) is now available or becomes available to the public without breach of 
this agreement; (ii) is explicitly approved for release by written authorization of Discloser; (iii) is lawfully 
obtained from a third party or parties without a duty of confidentiality; (iv) is known to the Recipient prior to 
such disclosure; or (v) is independently developed by Recipient without the use of any of Discloser’s 
Confidential Information or any breach of this Agreement. Additionally, the Recipient may disclose 
Confidential Information to the extent required by a judicial or legislative order or proceeding, or by any 
applicable federal or state open records act or freedom of information act requirements provided that it 
gives the Discloser prompt prior notice of the intended disclosure and an opportunity to respond or object 
to the disclosure, if permissible. 
  
16.1.3. All Confidential Information remains the property of the Discloser and will not be copied or 
reproduced without the express written permission of the Discloser, except for copies that are absolutely 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

14 

necessary in order to fulfill this Agreement. Within ten (10) days of receipt of Discloser’s written request, 
Recipient will return all Confidential Information to Discloser along with all copies and portions thereof, or 
certify in writing that all such Confidential Information has been destroyed. However, Recipient may retain 
one (1) archival copy of the Confidential Information that it may use only in case of a dispute concerning 
this Agreement. No license, express or implied, in the Confidential Information is granted other than to 
use the Confidential Information in the manner and to the extent authorized by this Agreement. The 
Discloser warrants that it is authorized to disclose any Confidential Information it discloses pursuant to 
this Agreement. 
  
16.2.     PRESERVATION OF MOTOROLA’S PROPRIETARY RIGHTS.  Motorola, the third party 
manufacturer of any Equipment, and the copyright owner of any Non-Motorola Software own and retain 
all of their respective Proprietary Rights in the Equipment and Software, and nothing in this Agreement is 
intended to restrict their Proprietary Rights.  All intellectual property developed, originated, or prepared by 
Motorola in connection with providing to Customer the Equipment, Software, or related services remain 
vested exclusively in Motorola, and this Agreement does not grant to Customer any shared development 
rights of intellectual property.  Except as explicitly provided in the Software License Agreement, Motorola 
does not grant to Customer, either directly or by implication, estoppel, or otherwise, any right, title or 
interest in Motorola’s Proprietary Rights.  Customer will not modify, disassemble, peel components, 
decompile, otherwise reverse engineer or attempt to reverse engineer, derive source code or create 
derivative works from, adapt, translate, merge with other software, reproduce, distribute, sublicense, sell 
or export the Software, or permit or encourage any third party to do so.  The preceding sentence does not 
apply to Open Source Software which is governed by the standard license of the copyright owner.  
 
16.3 VOLUNTARY DISCLOSURE.  Except as required to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, 
Motorola will have no obligation to provide Customer with access to its Confidential Information and/or 
proprietary information.  Under no circumstances will Motorola be required to provide any data related to 
cost and pricing. 
 
16.4   DATA AND FEEDBACK. 
  
16.4.1  To the extent permitted by law, Customer owns all right, title and interest in System Data created 
solely by it or its agents (hereafter, “Customer Data”), and grants to Motorola the right to use, host, cache, 
store, reproduce, copy, modify, combine, analyze, create derivatives from, communicate, transmit, 
publish, display, and distribute such Customer Data.   

16.4.2  Motorola owns all right, title and interest in data resulting from System Data that is or has been 
transformed, altered, processed, aggregated, correlated or operated on (hereafter, “Derivative Data”). 

 
16.4.3   Any Feedback given by Customer is and will be entirely voluntary and, even if designated as 
confidential, will not create any confidentiality obligation for Motorola. Motorola will be free to use, 
reproduce, license or otherwise distribute and exploit the Feedback without any obligation to Customer. 
Customer acknowledges that Motorola’s receipt of the Feedback does not imply or create recognition by 
Motorola of either the novelty or originality of any idea. The parties further agree that all fixes, 
modifications and improvements made to Motorola products or services conceived of or made by 
Motorola that are based, either in whole or in part, on the Feedback are the exclusive property of 
Motorola and all right, title and interest in and to such fixes, modifications or improvements to the 
Motorola product or service will vest solely in Motorola.  
 
Section 17     GENERAL 
  
17.1.  TAXES.  The Contract Price does not include any excise, sales, lease, use, property, or other 
taxes, assessments or duties, all of which will be paid by Customer except as exempt by law.  If Motorola 
is required to pay any of these taxes, Motorola will send an invoice to Customer and Customer will pay to 
Motorola the amount of the taxes (including any interest and penalties) within thirty (30) days after the 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

15 

date of the invoice.  Customer will be solely responsible for reporting the Equipment for personal property 
tax purposes, and Motorola will be solely responsible for reporting taxes on its income or net worth. 
  
17.2.  ASSIGNABILITY AND SUBCONTRACTING.  Except as provided herein, neither Party may 
assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the 
other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  Any attempted assignment, delegation, or 
transfer without the necessary consent will be void.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Motorola may assign 
this Agreement to any of its affiliates or its right to receive payment without the prior consent of Customer. 
In addition, in the event Motorola separates one or more of its businesses (each a “Separated Business”), 
whether by way of a sale, establishment of a joint venture, spin-off or otherwise (each a “Separation 
Event”), Motorola may, without the prior written consent of the other Party and at no additional cost to 
Motorola, assign this Agreement such that it will continue to benefit the Separated Business and its 
affiliates (and Motorola and its affiliates, to the extent applicable) following the Separation Event.  
Motorola may subcontract any of the work, but subcontracting will not relieve Motorola of its duties under 
this Agreement. 
  
17.3.  WAIVER.  Failure or delay by either Party to exercise a right or power under this Agreement will 
not be a waiver of the right or power.  For a waiver of a right or power to be effective, it must be in a 
writing signed by the waiving Party.  An effective waiver of a right or power will not be construed as either 
a future or continuing waiver of that same right or power, or the waiver of any other right or power. 
  
17.4.  SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction renders any part of this Agreement invalid or 
unenforceable, that part will be severed and the remainder of this Agreement will continue in full force and 
effect. 
  
17.5.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.  Each Party will perform its duties under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor.  The Parties and their personnel will not be considered to be employees or 
agents of the other Party.  Nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted as granting either Party the right 
or authority to make commitments of any kind for the other.  This Agreement will not constitute, create, or 
be interpreted as a joint venture, partnership or formal business organization of any kind. 
  
17.6.  HEADINGS AND SECTION REFERENCES.  The section headings in this Agreement are 
inserted only for convenience and are not to be construed as part of this Agreement or as a limitation of 
the scope of the particular section to which the heading refers.  This Agreement will be fairly interpreted in 
accordance with its terms and conditions and not for or against either Party. 
  
17.7.  NOTICES.  Notices required under this Agreement to be given by one Party to the other must be 
in writing and either personally delivered or sent to the address provided by the other Party by certified 
mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid (or by a recognized courier service, such as Federal 
Express, UPS, or DHL), or by facsimile with correct answerback received, and will be effective upon 
receipt. 
  
17.8.  COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. Each Party will comply with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws, regulations and rules concerning the performance of this Agreement or use of the 
System.  Customer will obtain and comply with all Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) licenses 
and authorizations required for the installation, operation and use of the System before the scheduled 
installation of the Equipment.  Although Motorola might assist Customer in the preparation of its FCC 
license applications, neither Motorola nor any of its employees is an agent or representative of Customer 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

16 

in FCC or other matters. 
  
17.9   FUTURE REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this is an 
evolving technological area and therefore, laws and regulations regarding Services and use of Solution 
may change.  Changes to existing Services or the Solution required to achieve regulatory compliance 
may be available for an additional fee.  Any required changes may also impact the price for Services. 
  
17.10.   AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT. Each Party represents that it has obtained all 
necessary approvals, consents and authorizations to enter into this Agreement and to perform its duties 
under this Agreement; the person executing this Agreement on its behalf has the authority to do so; upon 
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Parties, it is a valid and binding contract, enforceable in 
accordance with its terms; and the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement does not 
violate any bylaw, charter, regulation, law or any other governing authority of the Party. 
  
17.11.   ADMINISTRATOR LEVEL ACCOUNT ACCESS. If applicable to the type of System purchased by 
Customer, Motorola will provide Customer with Administrative User Credentials.  Customer agrees to only 
grant access to the Administrative User Credentials to those personnel with the training and experience to 
correctly use them.  Customer is responsible for protecting Administrative User Credentials from 
disclosure and maintaining Credential validity by, among other things, updating passwords when 
required.  Customer may be asked to provide valid Administrative User Credentials when in contact with 
Motorola System support personnel.  Customer understands that changes made as the Administrative 
User can significantly impact the performance of the System.  Customer agrees that it will be solely 
responsible for any negative impact on the System or its users by any such changes.  System issues 
occurring as a result of changes made using the Administrative User Credentials may impact Motorola’s 
ability to perform Services or other obligations under the Agreement. In such cases, a revision to the 
appropriate provisions of the Agreement, including the Statement of Work, may be necessary.  To the 
extent Motorola provides assistance to correct any issues caused by or arising out of the use of or failure 
to maintain Administrative User Credentials, Motorola will be entitled to bill Customer and Customer will 
pay Motorola on a time and materials basis for resolving the issue. 
  
17.12.   SURVIVAL OF TERMS.  The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for any reason: Section 3.5 (Motorola Software); Section 3.6 (Non-Motorola Software); if any 
payment obligations exist, Sections 6.2 and 6.3 (Contract Price and Invoicing and Payment); Subsection 
10.8 (Disclaimer of Implied Warranties); Section 12 (Disputes); Section 15 (Limitation of Liability); and 
Section 16 (Confidentiality and Proprietary Rights); and all of the General provisions in Section 17. 
  
17.13.   ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement 
of the Parties regarding the subject matter of the Agreement and supersedes all previous agreements, 
proposals, and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to this subject matter.  This Agreement 
may be executed in multiple counterparts, and shall have the same legal force and effect as if the Parties 
had executed it as a single document.  The Parties may sign in writing, or by electronic signature, 
including by email.  An electronic signature, or a facsimile copy or computer image, such as a PDF or tiff 
image, of a signature, shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signature.  In 
addition, an electronic signature, a true and correct facsimile copy or computer image of this Agreement 
shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signed copy of this document.  This 
Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by authorized 
representatives of both Parties.  The preprinted terms and conditions found on any Customer purchase or 
purchase order, acknowledgment or other form will not be considered an amendment or modification of 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

17 

this Agreement, even if a representative of each Party signs that document. 
 
 
The Parties hereby enter into this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
   
Motorola Solutions, Inc. Customer 
   
By: ______________________________   By: ______________________________ 
 
Name: ___________________________   Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title: ____________________________    Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________   Date: _____________________________ 

 
  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

18 

Exhibit A 

MOTOROLA SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT 
  
This Exhibit A Motorola Software License Agreement ("Agreement") is between Motorola Solutions, Inc., 
(“Motorola"), and ______________________________________ (“Licensee”).  
  
For good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 
  
Section 1 DEFINITIONS 
  
1.1     “Designated Products” means products provided by Motorola to Licensee with which or for which 
the Software and Documentation is licensed for use. 
  
1.2     “Documentation” means product and software documentation that specifies technical and 
performance features and capabilities, and the user, operation and training manuals for the Software 
(including all physical or electronic media upon which such information is provided). 
  
1.3     “Open Source Software” means software with either freely obtainable source code, license for 
modification, or permission for free distribution. 
  
1.4     “Open Source Software License” means the terms or conditions under which the Open Source 
Software is licensed. 
  
1.5     “Primary Agreement” means the agreement to which this exhibit is attached. 
  
1.6     “Security Vulnerability” means a flaw or weakness in system security procedures, design, 
implementation, or internal controls that could be exercised (accidentally triggered or intentionally 
exploited) and result in a security breach such that data is compromised, manipulated or stolen or the 
system damaged. 
  
1.7     “Software” (i) means proprietary software in object code format, and adaptations, translations, de-
compilations, disassemblies, emulations, or derivative works of such software; (ii) means any 
modifications, enhancements, new versions and new releases of the software provided by Motorola; and 
(iii) may contain one or more items of software owned by a third party supplier.  The term "Software" does 
not include any third party software provided under separate license or third party software not licensable 
under the terms of this Agreement. 
  
Section 2 SCOPE 
  
Motorola and Licensee enter into this Agreement in connection with Motorola's delivery of certain 
proprietary software or products containing embedded or pre-loaded proprietary software, or both.  This 
Agreement contains the terms and conditions of the license Motorola is providing to Licensee, and 
Licensee’s use of the proprietary software and affiliated documentation. 
 
Section 3       GRANT OF LICENSE 
  
3.1.    Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the payment of applicable license fees, Motorola 
grants to Licensee a personal, limited, non-transferable (except as permitted in Section 7) and non-
exclusive license under Motorola’s copyrights and Confidential Information (as defined in the Primary 
Agreement) embodied in the Software to use the Software, in object code form, and the Documentation 
solely in connection with Licensee's use of the Designated Products. This Agreement does not grant any 
rights to source code. 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

19 

  
3.2.    If the Software licensed under this Agreement contains or is derived from Open Source Software, 
the terms and conditions governing the use of such Open Source Software are in the Open Source 
Software Licenses of the copyright owner and not this Agreement.  If there is a conflict between the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of the Open Source Software Licenses 
governing Licensee’s use of the Open Source Software, the terms and conditions of the license grant of 
the applicable Open Source Software Licenses will take precedence over the license grants in this 
Agreement.  If requested by Licensee, Motorola will use commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) determine 
whether any Open Source Software is provided under this Agreement; and (ii) identify the Open Source 
Software (or specify where that license may be found).  
 
3.3 TO THE EXTENT, IF ANY, THAT THERE IS A SEPARATE LICENSE AGREEMENT 
PACKAGED WITH, OR PROVIDED ELECTRONICALLY WITH,  A PARTICULAR PRODUCT THAT 
BECOMES EFFECTIVE ON AN ACT OF ACCEPTANCE BY THE END USER, THEN THAT 
AGREEMENT SUPERSEDES THE SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT AS TO THE END USER OF 
EACH SUCH PRODUCT.  
 
Section 4       LIMITATIONS ON USE 
  
4.1.    Licensee may use the Software only for Licensee's internal business purposes and only in 
accordance with the Documentation.  Any other use of the Software is strictly prohibited.  Without limiting 
the general nature of these restrictions, Licensee will not make the Software available for use by third 
parties on a "time sharing," "application service provider," or "service bureau" basis or for any other 
similar commercial rental or sharing arrangement. 
  
4.2.    Licensee will not, and will not allow or enable any third party to: (i) reverse engineer, 
disassemble, peel components, decompile, reprogram or otherwise reduce the Software or any portion to 
a human perceptible form or otherwise attempt to recreate the source code; (ii) modify, adapt, create 
derivative works of, or merge the Software; (iii) copy, reproduce, distribute, lend, or lease the Software or 
Documentation to any third party, grant any sublicense or other rights in the Software or Documentation 
to any third party, or take any action that would cause the Software or Documentation to be placed in the 
public domain; (iv) remove, or in any way alter or obscure, any copyright notice or other notice of 
Motorola's proprietary rights; (v) provide, copy, transmit, disclose, divulge or make the Software or 
Documentation available to, or permit the use of the Software by any third party or on any machine 
except as expressly authorized by this Agreement; or (vi) use, or permit the use of, the Software in a 
manner that would result in the production of a copy of the Software solely by activating a machine 
containing the Software.  Licensee may make one copy of Software to be used solely for archival, back-
up, or disaster recovery purposes; provided that Licensee may not operate that copy of the Software at 
the same time as the original Software is being operated.  Licensee may make as many copies of the 
Documentation as it may reasonably require for the internal use of the Software. 
  
4.3.    Unless otherwise authorized by Motorola in writing, Licensee will not, and will not enable or allow 
any third party to: (i) install a licensed copy of the Software on more than one unit of a Designated 
Product; or (ii) copy onto or transfer Software installed in one unit of a Designated Product onto one other 
device.  Licensee may temporarily transfer Software installed on a Designated Product to another device 
if the Designated Product is inoperable or malfunctioning, if Licensee provides written notice to Motorola 
of the temporary transfer and identifies the device on which the Software is transferred.  Temporary 
transfer of the Software to another device must be discontinued when the original Designated Product is 
returned to operation and the Software must be removed from the other device.  Licensee must provide 
prompt written notice to Motorola at the time temporary transfer is discontinued.  
 
4.4 Licensee will maintain, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years thereafter, 
accurate records relating to this license grant to verify compliance with this Agreement.  Motorola or an 
independent third party (“Auditor”) may inspect Licensee’s premises, books and records, upon reasonable 
prior notice to Licensee, during Licensee’s normal business hours and subject to Licensee's facility and 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

20 

security regulations.  Motorola is responsible for the payment of all expenses and costs of the Auditor. 
Any information obtained by Motorola and the Auditor will be kept in strict confidence by Motorola and the 
Auditor and used solely for the purpose of verifying Licensee's compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 5 OWNERSHIP AND TITLE 
  
Motorola, its licensors, and its suppliers retain all of their proprietary rights in any form in and to the 
Software and Documentation, including, but not limited to, all rights in patents, patent applications, 
inventions, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, trade names, and other proprietary rights in or relating 
to the Software and Documentation (including any corrections, bug fixes, enhancements, updates, 
modifications, adaptations, translations, de-compilations, disassemblies, emulations to or derivative works 
from the Software or Documentation, whether made by Motorola or another party, or any improvements 
that result from Motorola’s processes or, provision of information services).  No rights are granted to 
Licensee under this Agreement by implication, estoppel or otherwise, except for those rights which are 
expressly granted to Licensee in this Agreement.  All intellectual property developed, originated, or 
prepared by Motorola in connection with providing the Software, Designated Products, Documentation or 
related services, remains vested exclusively in Motorola, and Licensee will not have any shared 
development or other intellectual property rights. 
 
Section 6       LIMITED WARRANTY; DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY 
  
6.1.    Unless otherwise stated in the Primary Agreement, the commencement date and the term of the 
Software warranty will be a period of ninety (90) days from Motorola's shipment of the Software (the 
"Warranty Period").  If Licensee is not in breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement, Motorola 
warrants that the unmodified Software, when used properly and in accordance with the Documentation 
and this Agreement, will be free from a reproducible defect that eliminates the functionality or successful 
operation of a feature critical to the primary functionality or successful operation of the Software.  Whether 
a defect occurs will be determined by Motorola solely with reference to the Documentation.  Motorola 
does not warrant that Licensee’s use of the Software or the Designated Products will be uninterrupted, 
error-free, completely free of Security Vulnerabilities, or that the Software or the Designated Products will 
meet Licensee’s particular requirements.  Motorola makes no representations or warranties with respect 
to any third party software included in the Software.  Notwithstanding, any warranty provided by a 
copyright owner in its standard license terms will flow through to Licensee for third party software 
provided by Motorola. 
  
6.2     Motorola’s sole obligation to Licensee and Licensee’s exclusive remedy under this warranty is to 
use reasonable efforts to remedy any material Software defect covered by this warranty.  These efforts 
will involve either replacing the media or attempting to correct significant, demonstrable program or 
documentation errors or Security Vulnerabilities.  If Motorola cannot correct the defect within a reasonable 
time, then at Motorola’s option, Motorola will replace the defective Software with functionally-equivalent 
Software, license to Licensee substitute Software which will accomplish the same objective, or terminate 
the license and refund the Licensee’s paid license fee. 
  
6.3.    Warranty claims are described in the Primary Agreement. 
  
6.4.    The express warranties set forth in this Section 6 are in lieu of, and Motorola disclaims, any and 
all other warranties (express or implied, oral or written) with respect to the Software or Documentation, 
including, without limitation, any and all implied warranties of condition, title, non-infringement, 
merchantability, or fitness for a particular purpose or use by Licensee (whether or not Motorola knows, 
has reason to know, has been advised, or is otherwise aware of any such purpose or use), whether 
arising by law, by reason of custom or usage of trade, or by course of dealing.  In addition, Motorola 
disclaims any warranty to any person other than Licensee with respect to the Software or Documentation. 
  
Section 7       TRANSFERS 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

21 

  
Licensee will not transfer the Software or Documentation to any third party without Motorola's prior written 
consent.  Motorola’s consent may be withheld at its discretion and may be conditioned upon transferee 
paying all applicable license fees and agreeing to be bound by this Agreement. If the Designated 
Products are Motorola's radio products and Licensee transfers ownership of the Motorola radio products 
to a third party, Licensee may assign its right to use the Software (other than CPS and Motorola's 
FLASHport® software) which is embedded in or furnished for use with the radio products and the related 
Documentation; provided that Licensee transfers all copies of the Software and Documentation to the 
transferee, and Licensee and the transferee sign a transfer form to be provided by Motorola upon 
request, obligating the transferee to be bound by this Agreement. 
  
Section 8       TERM AND TERMINATION 
  
8.1     Licensee’s right to use the Software and Documentation will begin when the Primary Agreement 
is signed by both parties and will continue for the life of the Designated Products with which or for which 
the Software and Documentation have been provided by Motorola, unless Licensee breaches this 
Agreement, in which case this Agreement and Licensee's right to use the Software and Documentation 
may be terminated immediately upon notice by Motorola.  
  
8.2     Within thirty (30) days after termination of this Agreement, Licensee must certify in writing to 
Motorola that all copies of the Software have been removed or deleted from the Designated Products and 
that all copies of the Software and Documentation have been returned to Motorola or destroyed by 
Licensee and are no longer in use by Licensee. 
 
8.3     Licensee acknowledges that Motorola made a considerable investment of resources in the 
development, marketing, and distribution of the Software and Documentation and that Licensee's breach 
of this Agreement will result in irreparable harm to Motorola for which monetary damages would be 
inadequate.  If Licensee breaches this Agreement, Motorola may terminate this Agreement and be 
entitled to all available remedies at law or in equity (including immediate injunctive relief and repossession 
of all non-embedded Software and associated Documentation unless Licensee is a Federal agency of the 
United States Government).  

Section 9      Commercial Computer Software  

9.1   This Section 9 only applies to U.S. Government end users.  The Software, Documentation and 
updates are commercial items as that term is defined at 48 C.F.R. Part 2.101, consisting of “commercial 
computer software” and “computer software documentation” as such terms are defined in 48 C.F.R. Part 
252.227-7014(a)(1) and 48 C.F.R. Part 252.227-7014(a)(5), and used in 48 C.F.R. Part 12.212 and 48 
C.F.R. Part 227.7202, as applicable.  Consistent with 48 C.F.R. Part 12.212, 48 C.F.R. Part 252.227-
7015, 48 C.F.R. Part 227.7202-1 through 227.7202-4, 48 C.F.R. Part 52.227-19, and other relevant 
sections of the Code of Federal Regulations, as applicable, the Software, Documentation and Updates 
are distributed and licensed to U.S. Government end users: (i) only as commercial items, and (ii) with only 
those rights as are granted to all other end users pursuant to the terms and conditions contained herein. 

9.2    If Licensee is licensing Software for end use by the United States Government or a United States 
Government agency, Licensee may transfer such Software license, but only if: (i) Licensee transfers all 
copies of such Software and Documentation to such United States Government entity or interim 
transferee, and (ii) Licensee has first obtained from the transferee (if applicable) and ultimate end user an 
enforceable end user license agreement containing restrictions substantially identical to the ones 
contained in this Agreement.  Except as stated in the foregoing, Licensee and any transferee(s) 
authorized by this subsection 9.2 may not otherwise use or transfer or make available any Motorola 
software to any third party nor permit any party to do so. 

Section 10     CONFIDENTIALITY 
  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

22 

Licensee acknowledges that the Software and Documentation contain Motorola’s valuable proprietary 
and Confidential Information and are Motorola’s trade secrets, and that the provisions in the Primary 
Agreement concerning Confidential Information apply. 
 
Section 11     LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
 
The Limitation of Liability provision is described in the Primary Agreement. 
 
Section 12     NOTICES 
 
Notices are described in the Primary Agreement. 

Section 13     GENERAL 
  
13.1.  COPYRIGHT NOTICES. The existence of a copyright notice on the Software will not be 
construed as an admission or presumption of publication of the Software or public disclosure of any trade 
secrets associated with the Software. 
  
13.2.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Licensee acknowledges that the Software is subject to the laws 
and regulations of the United States and Licensee will comply with all applicable laws and regulations, 
including export laws and regulations of the United States.  Licensee will not, without the prior 
authorization of Motorola and the appropriate governmental authority of the United States, in any form 
export or re-export, sell or resell, ship or reship, or divert, through direct or indirect means, any item or 
technical data or direct or indirect products sold or otherwise furnished to any person within any territory 
for which the United States Government or any of its agencies at the time of the action, requires an export 
license or other governmental approval.  Violation of this provision is a material breach of this Agreement. 
  
13.3 FUTURE REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that this is an 
evolving technological area and therefore, laws and regulations regarding Services and use of Solution 
may change.  Changes to existing Services or the Solution required to achieve regulatory compliance 
may be available for an additional fee.  Any required changes may also impact the price for Services. 
  
13.4.  ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTING.  Motorola may assign its rights or subcontract its 
obligations under this Agreement, or encumber or sell its rights in any Software, without prior notice to or 
consent of Licensee. 
  
13.5.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States to the extent 
that they apply and otherwise by the internal substantive laws of the State to which the Software is 
shipped if Licensee is a sovereign government entity, or the internal substantive laws of the State of 
Illinois if Licensee is not a sovereign government entity.  The terms of the U.N. Convention on Contracts 
for the International Sale of Goods do not apply.  In the event that the Uniform Computer Information 
Transaction Act, any version of this Act, or a substantially similar law (collectively "UCITA") becomes 
applicable to a party's performance under this Agreement, UCITA does not govern any aspect of this 
Agreement or any license granted under this Agreement, or any of the parties' rights or obligations under 
this Agreement.  The governing law will be that in effect prior to the applicability of UCITA. 
  
13.6.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of 
Motorola and Licensee.  No third party has the right to make any claim or assert any right under this 
Agreement, and no third party is deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

23 

any licensor or supplier of third party software included in the Software will be a direct and intended third 
party beneficiary of this Agreement. 
  
13.7.  SURVIVAL.  Sections 4, 5, 6.4, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 13 survive the termination of this Agreement. 
  
13.8.  ORDER OF PRECEDENCE.  In the event of inconsistencies between this Exhibit and the 
Primary Agreement, the parties agree that this Exhibit prevails, only with respect to the specific subject 
matter of this Exhibit, and not the Primary Agreement or any other exhibit as it applies to any other 
subject matter. 
  
13.9.     SECURITY.  Motorola uses reasonable means in the design and writing of its own Software and 
the acquisition of third party Software to limit Security Vulnerabilities.  While no software can be 
guaranteed to be free from Security Vulnerabilities, if a Security Vulnerability is discovered, Motorola will 
take the steps set forth in Section 6 of this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

24 

 
 

Exhibit B 
PAYMENT  

Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make payments to Motorola within 
thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice.  Customer will make payments when due in the form of a 
check, cashier’s check, or wire transfer drawn on a U.S. financial institution. If Customer has purchased 
additional Professional or Subscription services, payment will be in accordance with the applicable 
addenda. Payment for the System purchase will be in accordance with the following milestones.   

  
System Purchase: 

  
1.     100% of Contract Price due upon installation of equipment before testing and 
acceptance  
 
Motorola shall make partial shipments of equipment and will request payment upon shipment of such 
equipment. In addition, Motorola shall invoice for installations completed on a site-by-site basis or when 
professional services are completed, when applicable.  The value of the equipment shipped/services 
performed will be determined by the value shipped/services performed as a percentage of the total 
milestone value.  Unless otherwise specified, contract discounts are based upon all items proposed and 
overall system package.  For invoicing purposes only, discounts will be applied proportionately to the FNE 
and Subscriber equipment values to total contract price.  Overdue invoices will bear simple interest at the 
maximum allowable rate by state law. 
  
 
The chart below outlines the hourly labor rates for Motorola System Integration resources to be used.  The staffing 
requirements shall be multiplied by the appropriate rate per resource in the table below. The hourly labor rates are 
fully burdened.   The hourly rates per resource type and level are listed in Table 1. 

 
These rates apply to ordinary days and times (Monday to Friday during the hours 8am to 5pm).  Additional 
surcharges may apply to work done outside these timeframes.  The minimum charge for any resource will be 4 hours.  
Travel expenses are not included in these rates and may be charged separately. The qualifications of each type and 
level of resource are defined in the tables found at 
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/labor-rates-exhibit-160408.pdf.  All 
Motorola System Integration personnel assigned to this project will be classified according these levels.  Project 
Administrative roles are varied and their specific duties and qualifications will be determined by the complexity and 
requirements of each project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

25 

EXHIBIT D 
  

System Acceptance Certificate 
  
  

  

Customer Name: ______________________________________________________ 
  
  
Project Name: ________________________________________________________ 
  
  
This System Acceptance Certificate memorializes the occurrence of System Acceptance.  Motorola and 
Customer acknowledge that: 

  
1.  The Acceptance Tests set forth in the Acceptance Test Plan have been successfully completed. 
  
2.  The System is accepted. 
  
Customer Representative:                                           Motorola Representative: 
  

  
                                                                                                                                                    
Signature: ____________________________                Signature: ____________________________ 
Print Name: ___________________________                Print Name: ___________________________ 
Title: ________________________________                 Title: ________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________                Date: ________________________________ 
  
FINAL PROJECT ACCEPTANCE: 
Motorola has provided and Customer has received all deliverables, and Motorola has performed all other 
work required for Final Project Acceptance. 
  
Customer Representative:                                           Motorola Representative: 
                                                                                                                                                   
Signature: ____________________________                Signature: ____________________________ 
Print Name: ___________________________                Print Name: ___________________________ 
Title: ________________________________                 Title: ________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________                Date: ________________________________  
 
 
 
  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

26 

 
 
 

MAINTENANCE, SUPPORT AND LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT ADDENDUM  
 

This Addendum to the Communications System and Services Agreement or other previously 
executed Agreement currently in force, as applicable (“Primary Agreement”) provides additional 
or different terms and conditions to govern the sale of Maintenance, Support and Lifecycle 
Management services.  The terms in this Addendum are integral to and incorporated into the 
Primary Agreement signed by the Parties.   
 
1. DEFINITIONS    
 
All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as defined in 
the Primary Agreement. 
 
"MUA" means Microwave Upgrade Agreement (MUA). 
 
"NUA" means Network Upgrade Agreement (NUA). 
 
“SUA” or “SUA II” means Motorola’s Software Upgrade Agreement program for Motorola’s P25 
radio system. 
 
2. SCOPE 
 
Motorola will provide Maintenance and Support Services and/or Lifecycle Management as 
further described in the applicable Statement of Work, or attachment to Motorola’s proposal for 
additional services. 
 
 
3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The terms of the Primary Agreement combined with the terms of this Addendum will govern the 
products and services offered pursuant to this Addendum.  To the extent there is a conflict 
between the terms and conditions of the Primary Agreement and the terms and conditions of 
this Addendum, this Addendum takes precedence. 
 
3.1 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

3.1.1 PURCHASE ORDER ACCEPTANCE.  Purchase orders for additional, continued, 
or expanded maintenance and  software support, during the Warranty Period or after the 
Warranty Period, become binding only when accepted in writing by Motorola.   

 
3.1.2 START DATE.  The “Start Date” for Maintenance and Support Services will be 

indicated in the proposal or a cover page entitled “Service Agreement”.   
 
3.1.3 AUTO RENEWAL.  Unless the cover page or SOW specifically states a 

termination date or one Party notifies the other in writing of its intention to discontinue the 
Services, this Agreement will renew  for an additional one (1) year term on every anniversary of 
the Start Date.  At the anniversary date, Motorola may adjust the price of the Services to reflect 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

27 

the renewal rate. 
 
3.1.4 TERMINATION.  Written notice of intent to terminate must be provided thirty (30) 

days or more prior to the anniversary date.  If Motorola provides Services after the termination 
or expiration of this Addendum, the terms and conditions in effect at the time of termination or 
expiration will apply to those Services and Customer agrees to pay for those services on a time 
and materials basis at Motorola’s then effective hourly rates. 

 
3.1.5 EQUIPMENT DEFINITION.  For maintenance and support services, Equipment 

will be defined to mean the hardware specified in the applicable SOW or attachments to the 
maintenance and support proposal.   

 
3.1.6 ADDITIONAL HARDWARE.  If Customer purchases additional hardware from 

Motorola that becomes part of the System, the additional hardware may be added to this 
Addendum and will be billed at the applicable rates after the warranty period for that additional 
equipment expires. Such hardware will be included in the definition of Equipment. 

 
3.1.7 MAINTENANCE.  Equipment will be maintained at levels set forth in the 

manufacturer’s product manuals and routine procedures that are prescribed by Motorola will be 
followed. Motorola parts or parts of equal quality will be used for Equipment maintenance.  

 
3.1.8 EQUIPMENT CONDITION.  All Equipment must be in good working order on the 

Start Date or when additional equipment is added to the Addendum.  Upon reasonable request 
by Motorola, Customer will provide a complete serial and model number list of the Equipment.  
Customer must promptly notify Motorola in writing when any Equipment is lost, damaged, stolen 
or taken out of service.  Customer’s obligation to pay maintenance and support fees for this 
Equipment will terminate at the end of the month in which Motorola receives the written notice.  
If Equipment cannot, in Motorola’s reasonable opinion, be properly or economically maintained 
for any reason, Motorola may modify the scope of Services related to that Equipment; remove 
that Equipment from the Agreement; or increase the price to maintain that Equipment. 

 
3.1.9 EQUIPMENT FAILURE.  Customer must promptly notify Motorola of any 

Equipment failure.  Motorola will respond to Customer's notification in a manner consistent with 
the level of Service purchased as indicated in this Addendum and applicable SOW.    

 
3.1.10 INTRINSICALLY SAFE.  Customer must specifically identify any Equipment that 

is labeled intrinsically safe for use in hazardous environments. 
 
3.1.11 EXCLUDED SERVICES. 
 

a) Service excludes the repair or replacement of Equipment that has 
become defective or damaged from use in other than the normal, customary, 
intended, and authorized manner; use not in compliance with applicable industry 
standards; excessive wear and tear; or accident, liquids, power surges, neglect, acts 
of God or other force majeure events. 
 

b) Unless specifically included in this Addendum, Service excludes items 
that are consumed in the normal operation of the Equipment, such as batteries or 
magnetic tapes.; upgrading or reprogramming Equipment; accessories, belt clips, 
battery chargers, custom or special products, modified units, or software; and repair 
or maintenance of any transmission line, antenna, microwave equipment, tower or 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

28 

tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or multicoupler.  Motorola has no obligations for 
any transmission medium, such as telephone lines, computer networks, the internet 
or the worldwide web, or for Equipment malfunction caused by the transmission 
medium.  
 

3.1.12 TIME AND PLACE.  Service will be provided at the location specified in this 
Addendum and/or the SOW.  When Motorola performs maintenance, support, or installation at 
Customer’s location, Customer will provide Motorola, at no charge, a non-hazardous work 
environment with adequate shelter, heat, light, and power and with full and free access to the 
Equipment.  Waivers of liability from Motorola or its subcontractors will not be imposed as a site 
access requirement.  Customer will provide all information pertaining to the hardware and 
software elements of any system with which the Equipment is interfacing so that Motorola may 
perform its Services.  Unless otherwise stated in this Addendum or applicable SOW, the hours 
of Service will be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., local time, excluding weekends and holidays.  Unless 
otherwise stated in this Addendum or applicable SOW, the price for the Services exclude any 
charges or expenses associated with helicopter or other unusual access requirements; if these 
charges or expenses are reasonably incurred by Motorola in rendering the Services, Customer 
agrees to reimburse Motorola for those charges and expenses. 

 
3.1.13 CUSTOMER CONTACT.  Customer will provide Motorola with designated points 

of contact (list of names and phone numbers) that will be available twenty-four (24) hours per 
day, seven (7) days per week, and an escalation procedure to enable Customer’s personnel to 
maintain contact, as needed, with Motorola. 
 
3.2 LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

3.2.1 The Software License Agreement included as Exhibit A to the Primary 
Agreement applies to any Motorola Software provided as part of the Lifecycle Management 
transactions. 
 

3.2.2 The term of this Addendum is __________ years, commencing on _________, 
201_.  The Lifecycle Management Price for the ___ years of services is $______________, 
excluding applicable sales or use taxes but including discounts as more fully set forth in the 
pricing pages.  Because the Lifecycle Management is a subscription service as more fully 
described in the applicable Lifecycle Management Statement of Work, payment from Customer 
is due in advance and will not be in accordance with any Payment Milestone Schedule. 
 

3.2.3 The System upgrade will be scheduled during the subscription period and will be 
performed when Motorola’s system upgrade operation resources are available.  Because there 
might be a significant time frame between when this Addendum is executed and when a System 
upgrade transaction is performed, Motorola may substitute any of the promised Equipment or 
Software so long as the substitute is equivalent or superior to the initially promised Equipment 
or Software. 
 

3.2.4  Acceptance of a Lifecycle Management transaction occurs when the Equipment 
(if any) and Software are delivered and the Lifecycle Management services are fully performed; 
there is no Acceptance Testing with a Lifecycle Management transaction.  



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

29 

 
3.2.5 The Warranty Period for any Equipment or Motorola Software provided under a 

Lifecycle Management transaction will commence upon shipment and not on System 
Acceptance or Beneficial Use, and is for a period of ninety (90) days rather than one (1) year.  
The ninety (90) day warranty for Lifecycle Management services is set forth in the Lifecycle 
Management Statement of Work. 
 

3.2.6 In addition to the description of the Lifecycle Management services and 
exclusions provided in the Lifecycle Management Statement of Work, the following apply:  
 

a) Upon reasonable request by Motorola, Customer will 
provide a complete serial and model number list of the Equipment.   
 

b) Lifecycle Management services exclude the repair or replacement of 
Equipment that has become defective or damaged from use in other than the 
normal, customary, intended, and authorized manner; use not in compliance 
with applicable industry standards; excessive wear and tear; or accident, 
liquids, power surges, neglect, acts of God or other force majeure events.   

 
c) Unless specifically included in this Addendum or the Lifecycle Management 

Statement of Work, Lifecycle Management services exclude items that are 
consumed in the normal operation of the Equipment; accessories; and repair 
or maintenance of any transmission line, antenna, microwave equipment, 
tower or tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or multicoupler.  Motorola has no 
obligations for any transmission medium, such as telephone lines, computer 
networks, the internet or the worldwide web, or for Equipment malfunction 
caused by the transmission medium.   

 
d) Customer will provide Motorola with designated points of contact (list of 

names and phone numbers) that will be available during the performance of 
the Lifecycle Management services. 

 
3.2.7 The Lifecycle Management annualized price is based on the fulfillment of the two 

year cycle.  If Customer terminates this service during a two year cycle, except for Motorola’s 
default, then Customer will be required to pay for the balance of payments owed for the two 
year cycle if a major system release has been implemented before the point of termination. 
    

3.2.8  If Customer terminates this service and contractual commitment before the end 
of the __ year term, for any reason other than Motorola’s default, then the Customer will pay to 
Motorola a termination fee equal to the discount applied to the last three years of service 
payments related to the __ year commitment.   

 



 
HGAC Communication System and Services Agreement v.1.22.2020 

30 

4. PAYMENT 
4.1 Unless alternative payment terms are stated in this Agreement, Motorola will invoice 
Customer in advance for each payment period.  All other charges will be billed monthly, and the 
Customer must pay each invoice in U.S. dollars within thirty (30) days of the invoice date.  
Customer will reimburse Motorola for all property taxes, sales and use taxes, excise taxes, and 
other taxes or assessments that are levied as a result of Services rendered under this 
Agreement (except income, profit, and franchise taxes of Motorola) by any governmental entity.  
4.2 INFLATION ADJUSTMENT. For multi-year agreements, at the end of the first year of the 
Agreement and each year thereafter, a CPI percentage change calculation shall be performed 
using the U.S. Department of Labor, Consumer Price Index, all Items, Unadjusted Urban Areas 
(CPI-U).  Should the annual inflation rate increase greater than 3% during the previous year, 
Motorola shall have the right to increase all future maintenance prices by the CPI increase 
amount exceeding 3%.   All items, not seasonally adjusted shall be used as the measure of CPI 
for this price adjustment. Measurement will take place once the annual average for the new year 
has been posted by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. For purposes of illustration, if in year 5 the 
CPI reported an increase of 8%, Motorola may increase the Year 6 price by 5% (8%-3% base). 
 
5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Addendum, any related attachments, and the Primary 
Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the subject matter of this 
Addendum and supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and understandings, whether 
written or oral, relating to this subject matter.  This Addendum may be amended or modified 
only by a written instrument signed by authorized representatives of both Parties.  The 
preprinted terms and conditions found on any Customer purchase or purchase order, 
acknowledgment or other form will not be considered an amendment or modification of this 
Addendum, even if a representative of each Party signs that document. 
 
 

END 
 
 
 
 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 1  
 

Subscription Software Agreement 

This Subscription Software Agreement (the “Subscription Software Agreement”) is entered into 
between Motorola Solutions, Inc., with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 4400, Chicago, IL 
60661 (“Motorola”) and the entity set forth in the signature block below (“Customer”). Motorola 
and Customer will each be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. This 
Agreement (as defined below) is effective as of the date of the last signature (the “Effective 
Date”).   

1. Agreement.  

1.1. Scope; Agreement Documents. This Subscription Software Agreement governs 
Customer’s purchase of cloud-based software as a service products and other software which is 
licensed to Customer by Motorola on a subscription basis (“Subscription Software”) and related 
services, which may be recurring or one-time (“Services”) provided by Motorola. Subscription 
Software and Services are collectively referred to as the “Software and Services”. Additional 
terms and conditions applicable to specific Software and Services are set forth in one or more 
addenda attached to this Subscription Software Agreement (each an “Addendum”, and 
collectively the “Addenda”). In addition, the Parties may agree upon statements of work, 
schedules, technical specifications, and other ordering documents setting forth the Software and 
Services to be purchased by Customer and provided by Motorola and additional rights and 
obligations of the Parties (the “Ordering Documents”). To the extent required by applicable 
procurement law, a proposal submitted by Motorola in response to a competitive procurement 
process will be included within the meaning of the term Ordering Documents. This Subscription 
Software Agreement, the Addenda, and any Ordering Documents collectively form the Parties’ 
“Agreement”.  

1.2. Order of Precedence. Each Addendum will control with respect to conflicting terms in this 
Subscription Software Agreement, but only as applicable to the Software and Services described 
in such Addendum. Each Ordering Document will control with respect to conflicting terms in this 
Subscription Software Agreement or any Addenda, but only as applicable to the Software and 
Services described on such Ordering Document. 

2. Subscription Software. 

2.1. Delivery. During the applicable Subscription Term (as defined below), Motorola will 
provide to Customer the Subscription Software set forth in an Ordering Document, in accordance 
with the terms of the Agreement. Motorola will provide Customer advance notice (which may be 
provided electronically) of any planned downtime. Delivery will occur upon Customer’s receipt of 
credentials required for access to the Subscription Software or upon Motorola otherwise providing 
access to the Subscription Software. If agreed upon in an Ordering Document, Motorola will also 
provide Services related to such Subscription Software. 

2.2. Modifications. Motorola may modify the Subscription Software, recurring Services and any 
related systems so long as their functionality (as described in the applicable Ordering Document) 
is not materially degraded. Documentation (as defined below) for the Subscription Software may 
be updated to reflect such modifications. For clarity, new features or enhancements that are 
added to any Subscription Software or Services may be subject to additional Fees. 

2.3. User Credentials. If applicable, Motorola will provide Customer with administrative user 
credentials for the Subscription Software, and Customer will ensure such administrative user 
credentials are accessed and used only by Customer’s employees with training on their proper 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 2  
 

use. Customer will protect, and will cause its Authorized Users to protect, the confidentiality and 
security of all user credentials, including any administrative user credentials, and maintain user 
credential validity, including by updating passwords. Customer will be liable for any use of the 
Subscription Software through such user credential (including through any administrative user 
credentials), including any changes made to the Subscription Software or issues or user impact 
arising therefrom. To the extent Motorola provides Services to Customer in order to help resolve 
issues resulting from changes made to the Subscription Software through user credentials, 
including through any administrative user credentials, or issues otherwise created by Authorized 
Users, such Services will be billed to Customer on a time and materials basis, and Customer will 
pay all invoices in accordance with the payment terms below.  

2.4. Beta Services. If Motorola makes any beta version of a software application (“Beta 
Service”) available to Customer, Customer may choose to use such Beta Service at its own 
discretion, provided, however, that Customer will use the Beta Service solely for purposes of 
Customer’s evaluation of such Beta Service, and for no other purpose. Customer acknowledges 
and agrees that all Beta Services are offered “as-is” and without any representations or warranties 
or other commitments or protections from Motorola. Motorola will determine the duration of the 
evaluation period for any Beta Service, in its sole discretion, and Motorola may discontinue any 
Beta Service at any time. Customer acknowledges that Beta Services, by their nature, have not 
been fully tested and may contain defects or deficiencies. 

2.5. Customer Obligations. Customer will ensure that information Customer provides to 
Motorola in connection with receipt of Software and Services are accurate and complete in all 
material respects. Customer will make timely decisions and obtain any required management 
approvals that are reasonably necessary for Motorola to provide the Software and Services and 
perform its other duties under this Agreement. Unless the applicable Ordering Document states 
otherwise, Motorola may rely upon and is not required to evaluate, confirm, reject, modify, or 
provide advice concerning any assumptions or Customer information, decisions, or approvals 
described in this Section. If any assumptions in the Ordering Documents or information provided 
by Customer prove to be incorrect, or if Customer fails to perform any of its obligations under this 
Agreement, Motorola’s ability to perform its obligations may be impacted and changes to the 
Agreement, including the scope, Fees, and performance schedule may be required. 

2.6. Documentation. Software and Services may be delivered with documentation for the 
equipment, software, or data that specifies technical and performance features, capabilities, 
users, or operation, including training manuals, and other deliverables, such as reports, 
specifications, designs, plans, drawings, analytics, or other information (collectively, 
“Documentation”). Documentation is and will be owned by Motorola, unless otherwise expressly 
agreed in an Addendum or Ordering Document that certain Documentation will be owned by 
Customer. Motorola hereby grants Customer a limited, royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive 
license to use the Documentation solely for its internal business purposes in connection with the 
Software and Services. 

2.7. Authorized Users. Customer will ensure its employees and Authorized Users comply with 
the terms of this Agreement and will be liable for all acts and omissions of its employees and 
Authorized Users. Customer is responsible for the secure management of Authorized Users’ 
names, passwords and login credentials for access to Software and Services. “Authorized 
Users” are Customer’s employees, full-time contractors engaged for the purpose of supporting 
the Software and Services that are not competitors of Motorola, and the entities (if any) specified 
in an Ordering Document or otherwise approved by Motorola in writing (email from an authorized 
Motorola signatory accepted), which may include affiliates or other Customer agencies. 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 3  
 

2.8. Support of Downloaded Clients. If Customer purchases any Subscription Software that 
requires a client installed locally on Customer-Provided Equipment, Customer will be responsible 
for downloading and installing the current version of such client, as it may be updated from time 
to time. Motorola will use reasonable efforts to continue supporting any version of a client for forty-
five (45) days following its release, but Motorola may update the current version of its client at any 
time, including for bug fixes, product improvements, and feature updates, and Motorola makes no 
representations or warranties that any Subscription Software will support prior versions of a client. 

2.9. Export Control. Customer, its employees, and any other Authorized Users will not access 
or use the Software and Services in any jurisdiction in which the provision of such Software and 
Services is prohibited under applicable laws or regulations (a “Prohibited Jurisdiction”), and 
Customer will not provide access to the Software and Services to any government, entity, or 
individual located in a Prohibited Jurisdiction. Customer represents and warrants that (a) it and 
its Authorized Users are not named on any U.S. government list of persons prohibited from 
receiving U.S. exports, or transacting with any U.S. person; (b) it and its Authorized Users are not 
a national of, or a company registered in, any Prohibited Jurisdiction; (c) Customer will not permit 
its Authorized Users to access or use the Subscription Software or Services in violation of any 
U.S. or other applicable export embargoes, prohibitions or restrictions; and (d) Customer and its 
Authorized Users will comply with all applicable laws regarding the transmission of technical data 
exported from the U.S. and the country in which Customer, its employees, and the Authorized 
Users are located.  

3. Term and Termination.  

3.1. Subscription Terms. The duration of Customer’s subscription to the first Subscription 
Software and any recurring Services ordered under this Subscription Software Agreement (or the 
first Subscription Software or recurring Service, if multiple are ordered at once) will commence 
upon delivery of such Subscription Software (and recurring Services, if applicable) and will 
continue for a twelve (12) month period or such longer period identified in an Ordering Document 
(the “Initial Subscription Period). Following the Initial Subscription Period, Customer’s 
subscription to the Subscription Software and any recurring Services will automatically renew for 
additional twelve (12) month periods (each, a “Renewal Subscription Year”), unless either Party 
notifies the other Party of its intent not to renew at least thirty (30) days before the conclusion of 
the then-current Subscription Term. (The Initial Subscription Period and each Renewal 
Subscription Year will each be referred to herein as a “Subscription Term”.) Motorola may 
increase Fees prior to any Renewal Subscription Year. In such case, Motorola will notify Customer 
of such proposed increase no later than thirty (30) days prior to commencement of such Renewal 
Subscription Year. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Ordering Document, if Customer 
orders any additional Subscription Software or recurring Services under this Subscription 
Software Agreement during an in-process Subscription Term, the subscription for each new 
Subscription Software or recurring Service will (a) commence upon delivery of such Subscription 
Software or Service, and continue until the conclusion of Customer’s then-current Subscription 
Term (a “Partial Subscription Year”), and (b) automatically renew for Renewal Subscription 
Years thereafter, unless either Party notifies the other Party of its intent not to renew at least thirty 
(30) days before the conclusion of the then-current Subscription Term. Thus, unless otherwise 
specified in the applicable Ordering Document, the Subscription Terms for all Subscription 
Software and recurring Services hereunder will be synchronized. 

3.2. Term. The term of this Subscription Software Agreement (“Term”) will commence on the 
Effective Date and continue until the expiration or termination of all Subscription Terms under this 
Subscription Software Agreement, unless this Subscription Software Agreement is earlier 
terminated in accordance with the terms herein. 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 4  
 

3.3. Termination. 

3.3.1. For Default. Either Party may terminate the Agreement or the applicable 
Addendum or Ordering Document if the other Party breaches a material obligation 
under the Agreement and does not cure such breach within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of notice of the breach or fails to produce a cure plan within such period of 
time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Motorola may terminate the Agreement (or 
any Addendum or Ordering Documents hereunder), or suspend delivery of 
Subscription Software or Services, immediately upon notice to Customer if (a) 
Customer breaches Section 10.3 – Subscription Software License, Section 
10.4 – End User Licenses, or Section 10.5 – Customer Restrictions of this 
Subscription Software Agreement, or any other provision related to Subscription 
Software license scope or restrictions set forth in an Addendum or Ordering 
Document, or (b) it determines that Customer’s use of the Subscription Software 
poses, or may pose, a security or other risk or adverse impact to any Subscription 
Software, Motorola, Motorola’s systems, or any third party (including other 
Motorola customers). Customer acknowledges that Motorola made a considerable 
investment of resources in the development, marketing, and distribution of the 
Subscription Software and Documentation, and that Customer’s breach of the 
Agreement will result in irreparable harm to Motorola for which monetary damages 
would be inadequate. If Customer breaches this Agreement, in addition to 
termination, Motorola will be entitled to all available remedies at law or in equity 
(including immediate injunctive relief). 

3.3.2. Addenda; Ordering Documents. Each Addendum and Ordering Document may be 
separately terminable as set forth therein. 

3.3.3. Wind Down of Subscription Software. Motorola may terminate any Ordering 
Document and Subscription Term, in whole or in part, in the event Motorola plans 
to cease offering the applicable Subscription Software or Service to customers. 

3.4. Suspension of Services. Motorola may terminate or suspend any Software and Services 
under an Ordering Document if Motorola determines: (a) the related Subscription Software license 
has expired or has terminated for any reason; (b) the applicable Subscription Software is being 
used on a hardware platform, operating system, or version not approved by Motorola; (c) 
Customer fails to make any payments when due; or (d) Customer fails to comply with any of its 
other obligations or otherwise delays Motorola’s ability to perform. 

3.5. Effect of Termination or Expiration. Upon termination for any reason or expiration of this 
Subscription Software Agreement, an Addendum, or an Ordering Document, Customer and the 
Authorized Users  will stop use of any Subscription Software and return or destroy (at Motorola’s 
option) all Motorola Confidential Information in their possession or control and, as applicable, 
provide proof of such destruction. If Customer has any outstanding payment obligations under 
this Agreement, Motorola may accelerate and declare all such obligations of Customer 
immediately due and payable by Customer. Notwithstanding the reason for termination or 
expiration, Customer must pay Motorola for Software and Services already delivered. Customer 
has a duty to mitigate any damages under this Agreement, including in the event of default by 
Motorola and Customer’s termination of this Agreement. 

4. Payment and Invoicing. 

4.1. Fees. Unless otherwise provided in an Ordering Document, Customer will prepay an 
annual subscription fee for each Subscription Software and recurring Service, and pay any fees 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 5  
 

specified for other Services provided hereunder in accordance with the applicable Addendum or 
Ordering Document (the “Fees”), before the commencement of each Subscription Term. For any 
Partial Subscription Year, the applicable annual subscription Fee will be prorated based on the 
number of months in the Partial Subscription Year. The annual subscription Fee for Subscription 
Software and recurring Services may include certain one-time Fees, such as start-up fees, license 
fees, or other fees set forth in an Ordering Document. Motorola will have the right to suspend the 
Subscription Software and any recurring Services if Customer fails to make any payments when 
due. Fees may be changed by Motorola at any time, except that Motorola will not change the 
applicable Fees during a Subscription Term.  

4.2. Taxes. The Fees do not include any excise, sales, lease, use, property, or other taxes, 
assessments, duties, or regulatory charges or contribution requirements (collectively, “Taxes”), 
all of which will be paid by Customer, except as exempt by law, unless otherwise specified in an 
Ordering Document. If Motorola is required to pay any Taxes, Customer will reimburse Motorola 
for such Taxes (including any interest and penalties) within thirty (30) days after Customer’s 
receipt of an invoice therefore. Motorola will be solely responsible for reporting taxes on its income 
and net worth. 

4.3. Invoicing; Payment. Customer will pay Fees upon the earlier of (a) thirty (30) days prior to 
the commencement of the applicable Subscription Term, and (b) within thirty (30) days of the 
applicable invoice date, or as otherwise specified in the applicable Addendum or Ordering 
Document. Late payments will be subject to interest charges at the maximum rate permitted by 
law, commencing upon the due date. Motorola may invoice electronically via email, and Customer 
agrees to receive invoices via email at the email address set forth in an Ordering Document. 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that a purchase order or other notice to proceed is not 
required for payment for Software and Services. 

4.4. License True-Up. Motorola will have the right to conduct an audit of total user licenses 
credentialed by Customer for any Subscription Software during a Subscription Term, and 
Customer will cooperate with such audit. If Motorola determines that Customer’s usage of the 
Subscription Software during the applicable Subscription Term exceeded the total number of 
licenses purchased by Customer, Motorola may invoice Customer for the additional licenses used 
by Customer, pro-rated for each additional license from the date such license was activated, and 
Customer will pay such invoice in accordance with the payment terms in this Section 4 – 
Payment and Invoicing. 

5. Customer-Provided Equipment; Non-Motorola Content. 

5.1. Customer-Provided Equipment. Certain components, including equipment and software, 
not provided by Motorola may be required for use of the Software and Services (“Customer-
Provided Equipment”). Customer will be responsible, at its sole cost and expense, for providing 
and maintaining the Customer-Provided Equipment in good working order. Customer represents 
and warrants that it has all rights in Customer-Provided Equipment to permit Motorola to access 
and use the applicable Customer-Provided Equipment to provide the Software and Services 
under this Agreement, and such access and use will not violate any laws or infringe any third-
party rights (including intellectual property rights). Customer (and not Motorola) will be fully liable 
for Customer-Provided Equipment, and Customer will immediately notify Motorola of any 
Customer-Provided Equipment damage, loss, change, or theft that may impact Motorola’s ability 
to provide the Software and Services under this Agreement, and Customer acknowledges that 
any such events may cause a change in the Fees or performance schedule under the applicable 
Ordering Document.  



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 6  
 

5.2. Non-Motorola Content. In certain instances, Customer may be permitted to access, use, 
or integrate Customer or third-party software, services, content, and data that is not provided by 
Motorola (collectively, “Non-Motorola Content”) with or through the Software and Services. If 
Customer accesses, uses, or integrates any Non-Motorola Content with the Software and 
Services, Customer will first obtain all necessary rights and licenses to permit Customer’s and its 
Authorized Users’ use of the Non-Motorola Content in connection with the Software and Services. 
Customer will also obtain the necessary rights for Motorola to use such Non-Motorola Content in 
connection with providing the Software and Services, including the right for Motorola to access, 
store, and process such Non-Motorola Content (e.g., in connection with the Subscription 
Software), and to otherwise enable interoperation with the Software and Services. Customer 
represents and warrants that it will obtain the foregoing rights and licenses prior to accessing, 
using, or integrating the applicable Non-Motorola Content with the Software and Services, and 
that Customer and its Authorized Users will comply with any terms and conditions applicable to 
such Non-Motorola Content. If any Non-Motorola Content require access to Customer Data (as 
defined below), Customer hereby authorizes Motorola to allow the provider of such Non-Motorola 
Content to access Customer Data, in connection with the interoperation of such Non-Motorola 
Content with the Software and Services. Customer acknowledges and agrees that Motorola is not 
responsible for, and makes no representations or warranties with respect to, the Non-Motorola 
Content (including any disclosure, modification, or deletion of Customer Data resulting from use 
of Non-Motorola Content or failure to properly interoperate with the Software and Services). If 
Customer receives notice that any Non-Motorola Content must be removed, modified, or disabled 
within the Software and Services, Customer will promptly do so. Motorola will have the right to 
disable or remove Non-Motorola Content if Motorola believes a violation of law, third-party rights, 
or Motorola’s policies is likely to occur, or if such Non-Motorola Content poses or may pose a 
security or other risk or adverse impact to the Software and Services, Motorola, Motorola’s 
systems, or any third party (including other Motorola customers). Nothing in this Section will limit 
the exclusions set forth in Section 7.1 – Intellectual Property Infringement.   

6. Representations and Warranties. 

6.1. Mutual Representations and Warranties. Each Party represents and warrants to the other 
Party that (a) it has the right to enter into the Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, 
and (b) the Agreement will be binding on such Party. 

6.2. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES IN THIS 
AGREEMENT, SOFTWARE AND SERVICES PURCHASED HEREUNDER ARE PROVIDED 
“AS IS” AND WITH ALL FAULTS. WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THE AGREEMENT ARE THE 
COMPLETE WARRANTIES FOR THE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AND MOTOROLA 
DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, TITLE, AND QUALITY. MOTOROLA DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT 
THAT USE OF THE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE, 
OR FREE OF SECURITY VULNERABILITIES, OR THAT THEY WILL MEET CUSTOMER’S 
PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS.  

7. Indemnification. 

7.1. Intellectual Property Infringement. Motorola will defend Customer against any third-party 
claim alleging that a Motorola-developed Subscription Software (the “Infringing Product”) 
directly infringes a United States patent or copyright (“Infringement Claim”), and Motorola will 
pay all damages finally awarded against Customer by a court of competent jurisdiction for an 
Infringement Claim, or agreed to in writing by Motorola in settlement of an Infringement Claim. 
Motorola’s duties under this Section 7.1 – Intellectual Property Infringement are conditioned 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 7  
 

upon: (a) Customer promptly notifying Motorola in writing of the Infringement Claim; (b) Motorola 
having sole control of the defense of the suit and all negotiations for its settlement or compromise; 
and (c) Customer cooperating with Motorola and, if requested by Motorola, providing reasonable 
assistance in the defense of the Infringement Claim.  

7.1.1. If an Infringement Claim occurs, or in Motorola’s opinion is likely to occur, Motorola 
may at its option and expense: (a) procure for Customer the right to continue using 
the Infringing Product; (b) replace or modify the Infringing Product so that it 
becomes non-infringing; or (c) grant Customer a pro-rated refund of any amounts 
pre-paid for the Infringing Product.  

7.1.2. In addition to the other damages disclaimed under this Agreement, Motorola will 
have no duty to defend or indemnify Customer for any Infringement Claim that 
arises from or is based upon: (a) Customer Data, Customer-Provided Equipment, 
Non-Motorola Content, or third-party equipment, hardware, software, data, or other 
third-party materials; (b) the combination of the Subscription Software or Services 
with any products or materials not provided by Motorola; (c) any Subscription 
Software or Service designed, modified, or manufactured in accordance with 
Customer’s designs, specifications, guidelines or instructions; (d) a modification of 
the Subscription Software or Services by a party other than Motorola; (e) use of 
the Subscription Software or Services in a manner for which the Subscription 
Software or Service was not designed or that is inconsistent with the terms of this 
Agreement; or (f) the failure by Customer to use or install an update to the 
Subscription Software or Services that is intended to correct the claimed 
infringement. In no event will Motorola’s liability resulting from an Infringement 
Claim extend in any way to any payments due on a royalty basis, other than a 
reasonable royalty based upon revenue derived by Motorola from Customer from 
sales or license of the Infringing Product. 

7.1.3. This Section 7.1 – Intellectual Property Infringement provides Customer’s sole 
and exclusive remedies and Motorola’s entire liability in the event of an 
Infringement Claim. For clarity, the rights and remedies provided in this Section 
are subject to, and limited by, the restrictions set forth in Section 8 – Limitation 
of Liability below. 

7.2. Customer Indemnity. Customer will defend, indemnify, and hold Motorola and its 
subcontractors, subsidiaries and other affiliates harmless from and against any and all damages, 
losses, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys) arising 
from any actual or threatened third-party claim, demand, action, or proceeding arising from or 
related to (a) Customer-Provided Equipment, Customer Data, or Non-Motorola Content, including 
any claim, demand, action, or proceeding alleging that any such equipment, data, or materials (or 
the integration or use thereof with the Software and Services) infringes or misappropriates a third-
party intellectual property or other right, violates applicable law, or breaches the Agreement, (b) 
Customer-Provided Equipment’s failure to meet the minimum requirements set forth in the 
applicable Documentation or match the applicable specifications provided to Motorola by 
Customer in connection with the Subscription Software or Services; (c) Customer’s (or its service 
providers, agents, employees, or Authorized User’s) negligence or willful misconduct; and (d) 
Customer’s or its Authorized User’s breach of this Agreement. This indemnity will not apply to the 
extent any such claim is caused by Motorola’s use of Customer-Provided Equipment, Customer 
Data, or Non-Motorola Content in violation of the Agreement. Motorola will give Customer prompt, 
written notice of any claim subject to the foregoing indemnity. Motorola will, at its own expense, 
cooperate with Customer in its defense or settlement of the claim. 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 8  
 

8. Limitation of Liability. 

8.1. DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY 
OR DEATH, MOTOROLA, ITS AFFILIATES, AND ITS AND THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “MOTOROLA PARTIES”) WILL NOT BE LIABLE IN CONNECTION 
WITH THIS AGREEMENT (WHETHER UNDER MOTOROLA’S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS, A 
CAUSE OF ACTION FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT, UNDER TORT THEORY, OR 
OTHERWISE) FOR, ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES, EVEN IF 
MOTOROLA HAS BEEN ADVISED BY CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH DAMAGES 
OR LOSSES ARE FORESEEABLE. 

8.2. DIRECT DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, THE TOTAL 
AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF THE MOTOROLA PARTIES, WHETHER BASED ON A CLAIM IN 
CONTRACT OR IN TORT, LAW OR EQUITY, RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF THE 
AGREEMENT WILL NOT EXCEED  THE TOTAL FEES PAID FOR THE SUBSCRIPTION 
SOFTWARE TO WHICH THE CLAIM IS RELATED DURING THE CONSECUTIVE TWELVE (12) 
MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE EVENT FROM WHICH THE FIRST CLAIM 
AROSE. 

8.3. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT, MOTOROLA WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF (A) 
CUSTOMER DATA, INCLUDING ITS TRANSMISSION TO MOTOROLA, OR ANY OTHER DATA 
AVAILABLE THROUGH THE SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR SERVICES; (B) CUSTOMER-
PROVIDED EQUIPMENT, NON-MOTOROLA CONTENT, CUSTOMER’S SITES, OR THIRD-
PARTY EQUIPMENT, HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, DATA, OR OTHER THIRD-PARTY 
MATERIALS, OR THE COMBINATION OF THE SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR SERVICES 
WITH ANY OF THE FOREGOING; (C) LOSS OF DATA OR HACKING; (D) MODIFICATION OF 
SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR SERVICES BY ANY PERSON OTHER THAN MOTOROLA; 
(E) RECOMMENDATIONS PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH OR BY THE SUBSCRIPTION 
SOFTWARE AND SERVICES; (F) DATA RECOVERY SERVICES OR DATABASE 
MODIFICATIONS; (G) INTERRUPTION OR FAILURE OF CONNECTIVITY, VULNERABILITIES, 
OR SECURITY EVENTS; (H) DISRUPTION OF OR DAMAGE TO CUSTOMER’S OR THIRD 
PARTIES’ SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT, OR DATA, INCLUDING DENIAL OF ACCESS TO USERS, 
OR SHUTDOWN OF SYSTEMS CAUSED BY INTRUSION DETECTION SOFTWARE OR 
HARDWARE; (I) AVAILABILITY OR ACCURACY OF ANY DATA AVAILABLE THROUGH THE 
SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR SERVICES, OR INTERPRETATION, USE, OR MISUSE 
THEREOF; (J) TRACKING AND LOCATION-BASED SERVICES; (K) BETA SERVICES; OR (L) 
CUSTOMER’S OR ANY AUTHORIZED USER’S BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT OR MISUSE 
OF THE SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR SERVICES. 

8.4. Voluntary Remedies. Motorola is not obligated to remedy, repair, replace, or refund the 
purchase price for the disclaimed issues in Section 8.3 – Additional Exclusions above, but if 
Motorola agrees to provide Services to help resolve such issues, Customer will reimburse 
Motorola for its reasonable time and expenses, including by paying Motorola any Fees set forth 
in an Ordering Document for such Services, if applicable. 

8.5. Statute of Limitations. Customer may not bring any claims against a Motorola Party in 
connection with this Agreement or the Software and Services more than one (1) year after the 
date of accrual of the cause of action.  



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 9  
 

9. Confidentiality.  

9.1. Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” means any and all non-public 
information provided by one Party (“Discloser”) to the other (“Recipient”) that is disclosed under 
this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, or sample form, being clearly 
designated, labeled or marked as confidential or its equivalent or that a reasonable 
businessperson would consider non-public and confidential by its nature. With respect to 
Motorola, Confidential Information will also include Software and Services, and Documentation, 
as well as any other information relating to the Software and Services. The nature and existence 
of this Agreement are considered Confidential Information of the Parties. In order to be considered 
Confidential Information, information that is disclosed orally must be identified as confidential at 
the time of disclosure and confirmed by Discloser by submitting a written document to Recipient 
within thirty (30) days after such disclosure. The written document must contain a summary of the 
Confidential Information disclosed with enough specificity for identification purpose and must be 
labeled or marked as confidential or its equivalent. 

9.2. Obligations of Confidentiality. During the Term and for a period of three (3) years from the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Recipient will (a) not disclose Confidential Information 
to any third party, except as expressly permitted in this Section 9 – Confidentiality; (b) restrict 
disclosure of Confidential Information to only those employees (including, employees of any 
wholly owned subsidiary, a parent company, any other wholly owned subsidiaries of the same 
parent company), agents or consultants who must access the Confidential Information for the 
purpose of, and who are bound by confidentiality terms substantially similar to those in, this 
Agreement; (c) not copy, reproduce, reverse engineer, de-compile or disassemble any 
Confidential Information; (d) use the same degree of care as for its own information of like 
importance, but at least use reasonable care, in safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential 
Information; (e) promptly notify Discloser upon discovery of any unauthorized use or disclosure 
of the Confidential Information and take reasonable steps to regain possession of the Confidential 
Information and prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of this Agreement; and (f) 
only use the Confidential Information as needed to fulfill its obligations and secure its rights under 
this Agreement.  

9.3. Exceptions. Recipient is not obligated to maintain as confidential any information that 
Recipient can demonstrate by documentation (a) is publicly available at the time of disclosure or 
becomes available to the public without breach of this Agreement; (b) is lawfully obtained from a 
third party without a duty of confidentiality to Discloser; (c) is otherwise lawfully known to Recipient 
prior to such disclosure without a duty of confidentiality to Discloser; or (d) is independently 
developed by Recipient without the use of, or reference to, any of Discloser’s Confidential 
Information or any breach of this Agreement. Additionally, Recipient may disclose Confidential 
Information to the extent required by law, including a judicial or legislative order or proceeding. 

9.4. Ownership of Confidential Information. All Confidential Information is and will remain the 
property of Discloser and will not be copied or reproduced without the express written permission 
of Discloser (including as permitted herein). Within ten (10) days of receipt of Discloser’s written 
request, Recipient will return or destroy all Confidential Information to Discloser along with all 
copies and portions thereof, or certify in writing that all such Confidential Information has been 
destroyed. However, Recipient may retain (a) one (1) archival copy of the Confidential Information 
for use only in case of a dispute concerning this Agreement and (b) Confidential Information that 
has been automatically stored in accordance with Recipient’s standard backup or recordkeeping 
procedures, provided, however that Recipient will remain subject to the obligations of this 
Agreement with respect to any Confidential Information retained subject to clauses (a) or (b). No 
license, express or implied, in the Confidential Information is granted to the Recipient other than 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 10  
 

to use the Confidential Information in the manner and to the extent authorized by this Agreement. 
Discloser represents and warrants that it is authorized to disclose any Confidential Information it 
discloses pursuant to this Agreement. 

10. Proprietary Rights and Subscription Software License; Data; Feedback. 

10.1. Data Definitions. The following terms will have the stated meanings: “Customer Contact 
Data” means data Motorola collects from Customer, its Authorized Users, and their end users for 
business contact purposes, including marketing, advertising, licensing and sales purposes; 
“Service Use Data” means data generated by Customer’s use of the Software and Services or 
by Motorola’s support of the Software and Services, including personal information, location, 
monitoring and recording activity, product performance and error information, activity logs and 
date and time of use; “Customer Data” means data, information, and content, including images, 
text, videos, documents, audio, telemetry and structured data base records, provided by, through, 
or on behalf of Customer, its Authorized Users, and their  end users through the use of the 
Software and Services. Customer Data does not include Customer Contact Data, Service Use 
Data, or information from publicly available sources or other Third-Party Data or Motorola Data; 
“Third-Party Data” means information obtained by Motorola from publicly available sources or its 
third party content providers and made available to Customer through the Subscription Software 
or Services; “Motorola Data” means data owned or licensed by Motorola; “Feedback” means 
comments or information, in oral or written form, given to Motorola by Customer or Authorized 
Users, including their end users, in connection with or relating to the Subscription Software or 
Services; and “Process” or “Processing” means any operation or set of operations which is 
performed on personal information or on sets of personal information, whether or not by 
automated means, such as collection, recording, copying, analyzing, caching, organization, 
structuring, storage, adaptation, or alteration, retrieval, consultation, use, disclosure by 
transmission, dissemination or otherwise making available, alignment or combination, restriction, 
erasure or destruction. 

10.2. Motorola Materials. Customer acknowledges that Motorola may use or provide Customer 
with access to software, tools, data, and other materials, including designs, utilities, models, 
methodologies, systems, and specifications, which Motorola has developed or licensed from third 
parties (including any corrections, bug fixes, enhancements, updates, modifications, adaptations, 
translations, de-compilations, disassemblies, or derivative works of the foregoing, whether made 
by Motorola or another party) (collectively, “Motorola Materials”). The Software and Services, 
Motorola Data, Third-Party Data, and Documentation, are considered Motorola Materials. Except 
when Motorola has expressly transferred title or other interest to Customer by way of an 
Addendum or Ordering Document, the Motorola Materials are the property of Motorola or its 
licensors, and Motorola or its licensors retain all right, title and interest in and to the Motorola 
Materials (including, all rights in patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, trade secrets, 
know-how, other intellectual property and proprietary rights, and all associated goodwill and moral 
rights). For clarity, this Agreement does not grant to Customer any shared development rights in 
or to any Motorola Materials or other intellectual property, and Customer agrees to execute any 
documents and take any other actions reasonably requested by Motorola to effectuate the 
foregoing. Motorola and its licensors reserve all rights not expressly granted to Customer, and no 
rights, other  than those expressly  granted herein, are granted to Customer by implication, 
estoppel or otherwise. Customer will not modify, disassemble, reverse engineer, derive source 
code or create derivative works from, merge with other software, distribute, sublicense, sell, or 
export the Software and Services or other Motorola Materials, or permit any third party to do so. 

10.3. Subscription Software License. Subject to Customer’s and its Authorized Users’ 
compliance with the Agreement (including payment terms), Motorola hereby grants Customer and 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 11  
 

its Authorized Users a limited, non-transferable, non-sublicenseable, and non-exclusive license 
to use the Subscription Software identified in an Ordering Document, and the associated 
Documentation, solely for Customer’s internal business purposes. The foregoing license grant will 
be limited to use in the territory and to the number of licenses set forth in an Ordering Document 
(if applicable), and will continue for the applicable Subscription Term. Customer may access, and 
use the Subscription Software only in Customer’s owned or controlled facilities, including any 
authorized mobile sites; provided, however, that Authorized Users using authorized mobile or 
handheld devices may also log into and access the Subscription Software remotely from any 
location. No custom development work will be performed under this Agreement. 

10.4. End User Licenses. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the Agreement, 
certain Subscription Software is governed by a separate license, EULA, or other agreement, 
including terms governing third-party software, such as open source software, included in the 
Subscription Software. Customer will comply, and ensure its Authorized Users comply, with such 
additional license agreements. 

10.5. Customer Restrictions. Customers and Authorized Users will comply with the applicable 
Documentation and the copyright laws of the United States and all other relevant jurisdictions 
(including the copyright laws where Customer uses the Subscription Software) in connection with 
their use of the Subscription Software. Customer will not, and will not allow others, including the 
Authorized Users, to make the Subscription Software available for use by unauthorized third 
parties, including via a commercial rental or sharing arrangement; reverse engineer, disassemble, 
or reprogram software used to provide the Subscription Software or any portion thereof to a 
human-readable form; modify, create derivative works of, or merge the Subscription Software or 
software used to provide the Subscription Software with other software; copy, reproduce, 
distribute, lend, or lease the Subscription Software, software used to provide the Subscription 
Software, or Documentation for or to any third party; take any action that would cause the 
Subscription Software or Documentation to be placed in the public domain; use the Subscription 
Software to compete with Motorola; remove, alter, or obscure, any copyright or other notice; share 
user credentials (including among Authorized Users); use the Subscription Software to store or 
transmit malicious code; or attempt to gain unauthorized access to the Subscription Software or 
its related systems or networks. 

10.6. Ownership of Customer Data. Customer retains all right, title and interest, including 
intellectual property rights, if any, in and to Customer Data. Motorola acquires no rights to 
Customer Data except those rights granted under this Agreement including the right to Process 
and use the Customer Data as set forth in Section 10.7 – Processing Customer Data below 
and in other applicable Addenda. The Parties agree that with regard to the Processing of personal 
information which may be part of Customer Data, Customer is the controller and Motorola is the 
processor, and may engage sub-processors pursuant to Section 10.7.3 – Sub-processors. 

10.7. Processing Customer Data.  

10.7.1. Motorola Use of Customer Data. To the extent permitted by law, Customer grants 
Motorola and its subcontractors a right to use Customer Data and a royalty-free, 
worldwide, non-exclusive license to use Customer Data (including to process, host, 
cache, store, reproduce, copy, modify, combine, analyze, create derivative works 
from such Customer Data and to communicate, transmit, and distribute such 
Customer Data to third parties engaged by Motorola) to (a) perform Services and 
provide the Subscription Software under the Agreement, (b) analyze the Customer 
Data to operate, maintain, manage, and improve Motorola products and services, 
and (c) create new products and services. Customer agrees that this Agreement, 
along with the Documentation, are Customer’s complete and final documented 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 12  
 

instructions to Motorola for the processing of Customer Data. Any additional or 
alternate instructions must be agreed to according to the Change Order process. 
Customer represents and warrants to Motorola that Customer’s instructions, 
including appointment of Motorola as a processor or sub-processor, have been 
authorized by the relevant controller. 

10.7.2. Collection, Creation, Use of Customer Data. Customer further represents and 
warrants that the Customer Data, Customer’s collection, creation, and use of the 
Customer Data (including in connection with Motorola’s Software and Services), 
and Motorola’s use of such Customer Data in accordance with the Agreement, will 
not violate any laws or applicable privacy notices or infringe any third-party rights 
(including intellectual property and privacy rights). Customer also represents and 
warrants that the Customer Data will be accurate and complete, and that Customer 
has obtained all required consents, provided all necessary notices, and met any 
other applicable legal requirements with respect to collection and use (including 
Motorola’s and its subcontractors’ use) of the Customer Data as described in the 
Agreement.  

10.7.3. Sub-processors. Customer agrees that Motorola may engage sub-processors who 
in turn may engage additional sub-processors to Process personal data in 
accordance with this Agreement. When engaging sub-processors, Motorola will 
enter into agreements with the sub-processors to bind them to data processing 
obligations to the extent required by law. 

10.8. Data Retention and Deletion. Except for anonymized Customer Data, as described above, 
or as otherwise provided under the Agreement, Motorola will delete all Customer Data following 
termination or expiration of this Subscription Software Agreement or the applicable Addendum or 
Ordering Document, with such deletion to occur no later than ninety (90) days following the 
applicable date of termination or expiration, unless otherwise required to comply with applicable 
law. Any requests for the exportation or download of Customer Data must be made by Customer 
to Motorola in writing before expiration or termination, subject to Section 14.9 – Notices. Motorola 
will have no obligation to retain such Customer Data beyond expiration or termination unless the 
Customer has purchased extended storage from Motorola through a mutually executed Ordering 
Document. 

10.9. Service Use Data. Customer understands and agrees that Motorola may collect and use 
Service Use Data for its own purposes, including the uses described below.  Motorola may use 
Service Use Data to (a) operate, maintain, manage, and improve existing and create new 
products and services, (b) test products and services, (c) to aggregate Service Use Data and 
combine it with that of other users, and (d) to use anonymized or aggregated data for marketing, 
research or other business purposes. Service Use Data may be disclosed to third parties.  It is 
Customer’s responsibility to notify Authorized Users of Motorola’s collection and use of Service 
Use Data and to obtain any required consents, provide all necessary notices, and meet any other 
applicable legal requirements with respect to such collection and use, and Customer represents 
and warrants to Motorola that it has complied and will continue to comply with this Section. 

10.10. Third-Party Data and Motorola Data. Motorola Data and Third-Party Data may be available 
to Customer through the Software and Services. Customer and its Authorized Users may use 
Motorola Data and Third-Party Data as permitted by Motorola and the applicable Third-Party Data 
provider, as described in the applicable Addendum. Unless expressly permitted in the applicable 
Addendum, Customer will not, and will ensure its Authorized Users will not: (a) use the Motorola 
Data or Third-Party Data for any purpose other than Customer’s internal business purposes; (b) 
disclose the data to third parties; (c) “white label” such data or otherwise misrepresent its source 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 13  
 

or ownership, or resell, distribute, sublicense, or commercially exploit the data in any manner; (d) 
use such data in violation of applicable laws; (e) remove, obscure, alter, or falsify any marks or 
proprietary rights notices indicating the source, origin, or ownership of the data; or (f) modify such 
data or combine it with Customer Data or other data or use the data to build databases. Additional 
restrictions may be set forth in the applicable Addendum. Any rights granted to Customer or 
Authorized Users with respect to Motorola Data or Third-Party Data will immediately terminate 
upon termination or expiration of the applicable Addendum, Ordering Document, or this 
Subscription Software Agreement. Further, Motorola or the applicable Third-Party Data provider 
may suspend, change, or terminate Customer’s or any Authorized User’s access to Motorola Data 
or Third-Party Data if Motorola or such Third-Party Data provider believes Customer’s or the 
Authorized User’s use of the data violates the Agreement, applicable law or Motorola’s agreement 
with the applicable Third-Party Data provider. Upon termination of Customer’s rights to use any 
Motorola Data or Third-Party Data, Customer and all Authorized Users will immediately 
discontinue use of such data, delete all copies of such data, and certify such deletion to Motorola. 
Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary, Motorola will have no liability for 
Third-Party Data or Motorola Data available through the Software and Services. Motorola and its 
Third-Party Data providers reserve all rights in and to Motorola Data and Third-Party Data not 
expressly granted in an Addendum or Ordering Document. 

10.11. Feedback. Any Feedback provided by Customer is entirely voluntary, and will not create 
any confidentiality obligation for Motorola, even if designated as confidential by Customer.  
Motorola may use, reproduce, license, and otherwise distribute and exploit the Feedback without 
any obligation or payment to Customer or Authorized Users and Customer represents and 
warrants that it has obtained all necessary rights and consents to grant Motorola the foregoing 
rights. 

10.12. Improvements; Software and Services. The Parties agree that, notwithstanding any 
provision of this Subscription Software Agreement or the Agreement to the contrary, all fixes, 
modifications and improvements to the services or products conceived of or made by or on behalf 
of Motorola that are based either in whole or in part on the Feedback, Customer Data, or Service 
Use Data (or otherwise) are the exclusive property of Motorola and all right, title and interest in 
and to such fixes, modifications or improvements will vest solely in Motorola.  Customer agrees 
to execute any written documents necessary to assign any intellectual property or other rights it 
may have in such fixes, modifications or improvements to Motorola. 

11. Motorola as a Controller or Joint Controller. In all instances where Motorola acts as a 
controller of data, it will comply with the applicable provisions of the Motorola Privacy Statement 
at https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/privacy-policy.html#privacystatement, as may 
be updated from time to time.  Motorola holds all Customer Contact Data as a controller and shall 
Process such Customer Contact Data in accordance with the Motorola Privacy Statement. In 
instances where Motorola is acting as a joint controller with Customer, the Parties will enter into 
a separate Addendum to the Agreement to allocate the respective roles as joint controllers. 

12. Force Majeure; Delays Caused by Customer. 

12.1. Force Majeure. Except for Customer’s payment obligations hereunder, neither Party will 
be responsible for nonperformance or delayed performance due to events outside of its 
reasonable control. If performance will be significantly delayed, the affected Party will provide 
notice to the other Party, and the Parties will agree (in writing) upon a reasonable extension to 
any applicable performance schedule. 

12.2. Delays Caused by Customer. Motorola’s performance of the Software and Services will 
be excused for delays caused by Customer or its Authorized Users or subcontractors, or by failure 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 14  
 

of any assumptions set forth in this Agreement (including in any Addendum or Ordering 
Document). In the event of a delay under this Section 12.2 – Delays Caused by Customer, (a) 
Customer will continue to pay the Fees as required hereunder, (b) the Parties will agree (in writing) 
upon a reasonable extension to any applicable performance schedule, and (c) Customer will 
compensate Motorola for its out-of-pocket costs incurred due to the delay (including those 
incurred by Motorola’s affiliates, vendors, and subcontractors).  

13. Disputes. The Parties will use the following procedure to resolve any disputes relating to 
or arising out of this Agreement (each, a “Dispute”): 

13.1. Governing Law. All matters relating to or arising out of the Agreement are governed by the 
laws of the State of Illinois, unless Customer is the United States Government (or an agency 
thereof), in which case all matters relating to or arising out of the Agreement will be governed by 
the laws of the State in which the Software and Services are provided. The terms of the U.N. 
Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods and the Uniform Computer 
Information Transactions Act will not apply. 

13.2. Negotiation; Mediation. Either Party may initiate dispute resolution procedures by sending 
a notice of Dispute (“Notice of Dispute”) to the other Party. The Parties will attempt to resolve 
the Dispute promptly through good faith negotiations, including timely escalation of the Dispute to 
executives who have authority to settle the Dispute (and who are at a higher level of management 
than the persons with direct responsibility for the matter). If a Dispute is not resolved through 
negotiation, either Party may initiate mediation by sending a notice of mediation (“Notice of 
Mediation”) to the other Party. The Parties will choose an independent mediator within thirty (30) 
days of such Notice of Mediation. Neither Party may unreasonably withhold consent to the 
selection of a mediator, but if the Parties are unable to agree upon a mediator, either Party may 
request that the American Arbitration Association nominate a mediator. Each Party will bear its 
own costs of mediation, but the Parties will share the cost of the mediator equally. Each Party will 
participate in the mediation in good faith and will be represented at the mediation by a business 
executive with authority to settle the Dispute. All in person meetings under this Section 13.2 – 
Negotiation; Mediation will take place in Chicago, Illinois, and all communication relating to the 
Dispute resolution will be maintained in strict confidence by the Parties. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, any Dispute arising from or relating to Motorola’s intellectual property rights will not be 
subject to negotiation or mediation in accordance with this Section, but instead will be decided by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, in accordance with Section 13.3 – Litigation, Venue, 
Jurisdiction below. 

13.3. Litigation, Venue, Jurisdiction. If the Dispute has not been resolved by mediation within 
sixty (60) days from the Notice of Mediation, either Party may submit the Dispute exclusively to a 
court in Cook County, Illinois. Each Party expressly consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such 
courts for resolution of any Dispute and to enforce the outcome of any mediation.  

14. General. 

14.1. Compliance with Laws. Each Party will comply with applicable laws in connection with the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including that Customer will ensure its and 
its Authorized Users’ use of the Software and Services complies with law (including privacy laws), 
and Customer will obtain any FCC and other licenses or authorizations (including licenses or 
authorizations required by foreign regulatory bodies) required for its and its Authorized Users’ use 
of the Software and Services. Motorola may, at its discretion, cease providing or otherwise modify 
Software and Services (or any terms related thereto in an Addendum or Ordering Document), in 
order to comply with any changes in applicable law. 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 15  
 

14.2. Audit; Monitoring. Motorola will have the right to monitor and audit use of the Subscription 
Software, which may also include access by Motorola to Customer Data and Service Use Data. 
Customer will provide notice of such monitoring to its Authorized Users and obtain any required 
consents, including individual end users, and will cooperate with Motorola in any monitoring or 
audit. Customer will maintain during the Term, and for two (2) years thereafter, accurate records 
relating to the Subscription Software licenses granted under this Agreement to verify compliance 
with this Agreement.  Motorola or a third party (“Auditor”) may inspect Customer’s and, as 
applicable, Authorized Users’ premises, books, and records. Motorola will pay expenses and 
costs of the Auditor, unless Customer is found to be in violation of the terms of the Agreement, in 
which case Customer will be responsible for such expenses and costs.  

14.3. Assignment and Subcontracting. Neither Party may assign or otherwise transfer this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other Party. Motorola may assign or otherwise 
transfer this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement without consent 
(a) for financing purposes, (b) in connection with a merger, acquisition or sale of all or substantially 
all of its assets, (c) as part of a corporate reorganization, or (d) to a subsidiary corporation. Subject 
to the foregoing, this Agreement will be binding upon the Parties and their respective successors 
and assigns.  

14.4. Waiver. A delay or omission by either Party to exercise any right under this Agreement will 
not be construed to be a waiver of such right.  A waiver by either Party of any of the obligations 
to be performed by the other, or any breach thereof, will not be construed to be a waiver of any 
succeeding breach or of any other obligation. All waivers must be in writing and signed by the 
Party waiving its rights. 

14.5. Severability. If any provision of the Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable, such provision will be deemed to be modified to 
reflect as nearly as possible the original intentions of the Parties in accordance with applicable 
law. The remaining provisions of this Agreement will not be affected, and each such provision will 
be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by applicable law. 

14.6. Independent Contractors. Each Party will perform its duties under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor. The Parties and their personnel will not be considered to be employees 
or agents of the other Party. Nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted as granting either Party 
the right or authority to make commitments of any kind for the other. This Agreement will not 
constitute, create, or be interpreted as a joint venture, partnership, or formal business organization 
of any kind. 

14.7. Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Agreement is entered into solely between, and may be 
enforced only by, the Parties. Each Party intends that the Agreement will not benefit, or create 
any right or cause of action in or on behalf of, any entity other than the Parties. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, a licensor or supplier of third-party software included in the Subscription Software 
will be a direct and intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement. 

14.8. Interpretation. The section headings in this Agreement are included only for convenience 
The words “including” and “include” will be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without 
limitation”. This Agreement will be fairly interpreted in accordance with its terms and conditions 
and not for or against either Party. 

14.9. Notices. Notices required under this Agreement to be given by one Party to the other must 
be in writing and either personally delivered or sent to the address provided by the other Party by 
certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid (or by a recognized courier service, 
such as FedEx, UPS, or DHL), and will be effective upon receipt. 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 16  
 

14.10. Cumulative Remedies. Except as specifically stated in this Agreement, all remedies 
provided for in this Agreement will be cumulative and in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other 
remedies available to either Party at law, in equity, by contract, or otherwise. Except as specifically 
stated in this Agreement, the election by a Party of any remedy provided for in this Agreement or 
otherwise available to such Party will not preclude such Party from pursuing any other remedies 
available to such Party at law, in equity, by contract, or otherwise. 

14.11. Survival. The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for any reason: Section 2.5 – Customer Obligations; Section 3 – Term and 
Termination; Section 4 – Payment and Invoicing; Section 6.2 – Warranty Disclaimer; 
Section 7.2 –  Customer Indemnity; Section 8 – Limitation of Liability; Section 9 – 
Confidentiality; Section 10 – Proprietary Rights and Subscription Software License; Data; 
Feedback; Section 12 – Force Majeure; Delays Caused by Customer; Section 13 – Disputes; 
and Section 14 – General. 

14.12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including all Addenda and Ordering Documents, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the subject matter hereto, and 
supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and understandings, whether written or oral, 
relating to this subject matter. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and will 
have the same legal force and effect as if the Parties had executed it as a single document. The 
Parties may sign in writing or by electronic signature. An electronic signature, facsimile copy, or 
computer image of a signature, will be treated, and will have the same effect as an original 
signature, and will have the same effect, as an original signed copy of this document. This 
Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by authorized 
representatives of both Parties. The preprinted terms and conditions found on any Customer 
purchase order, acknowledgment, or other form will not be considered an amendment or 
modification or part of this Agreement, even if a representative of each Party signs such 
document. 

The Parties hereby enter into this Subscription Software Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

Motorola: Motorola Solutions, Inc.  Customer: [___________]   

By: ______________________________   By: ______________________________ 

Name: ___________________________   Name: ____________________________ 

Title: ____________________________    Title: _____________________________ 

Date: ____________________________   Date: ____________________________ 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 1  
 

ECH Add-on Cloud Interface Software Addendum 

This ECH Add-on Cloud Software as a Service Addendum (this “Interface Addendum”) is entered 
into between Motorola Solutions, Inc., with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 4400, Chicago, IL 
60661 (“Motorola”) and the entity set forth in the signature block below or in the Subscription 
Software Agreement (“Customer”), and will be subject to, and governed by, the terms of the 
Subscription Software Agreement entered into between the Parties, effective as of 
_____________________ (the “Subscription Software Agreement”),  and the applicable 
Addenda. Capitalized terms used in this Interface Addendum, but not defined herein, will have the 
meanings set forth in the Subscription Software Agreement or the applicable Addenda. 

1. Scope. This Interface Addendum covers certain add-on cloud products listed in EXHIBIT 1 
(the “Add-on Cloud Products”) and will control with respect to conflicting terms in the Subscription 
Software Agreement or any other applicable Addendum, but only as applicable to the products and 
Services purchased under this Interface Addendum. A list of the on-premise software available for 
license under this Interface Addendum is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 2 (collectively, the “Cloud 
Interface Software”). In connection with the Add-on Cloud Products, Customer may also purchase 
certain Add-On Cloud Services as described in Section 2.2 Services hereto. 

2. Applicable Terms and Conditions. 

2.1. Cloud Interface Software 

2.1.1.  Software License. Subject to Customer’s and its  Authorized Users’ compliance with 
the Subscription Software Agreement (including payment terms), Motorola hereby 
grants Customer and its Authorized Users a limited, non-transferable, non-
sublicenseable, and non-exclusive license to use the Cloud Interface Software 
identified in an Ordering Document, in object code form only, and the associated 
Documentation, solely in connection with the equipment provided by Motorola, or 
Customer-Provided Equipment (as applicable, the “Designated Products”) and 
solely for Customer’s internal business purposes. Unless otherwise stated in an 
Addendum or the Ordering Document, the foregoing license grant will be limited to 
the number of licenses set forth in the applicable Ordering Document and will continue 
for the life of the applicable Designated Product. Except as otherwise permitted in an 
applicable Addendum or Ordering Document, Customer may install, access, and use 
Cloud Interface Software only in Customer’s owned or controlled facilities, including 
any authorized mobile sites; provided, however, that Authorized Users using 
authorized mobile or handheld devices may also log into and access the Cloud 
Interface Software remotely from any location.  

2.1.2. End User Licenses. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the 
Subscription Software Agreement, certain Cloud Interface Software is 
governed by a separate license, end-user license agreement, or other 
agreement, including terms governing third-party equipment or software, such 
as open source software, included in the Cloud Interface Software. Customer 
will comply, and ensure its Authorized Users comply, with any such additional 
terms applicable to third-party equipment or software.   

2.1.3. Customer Restrictions. Customers and Authorized Users will comply with the 
applicable Documentation in connection with their use of the Cloud Interface 
Software Customer will not and will not allow others, including the Authorized 
Users, to: (a) make the Cloud Interface Software available for use by 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 2  
 

unauthorized third parties, including via a commercial rental or sharing 
arrangement; (b) reverse engineer, disassemble, or reprogram the Cloud 
Interface Software or any portion thereof to a human-readable form; (c) 
modify, create derivative works of, or merge the Cloud Interface Software with 
other software or equipment; (d) copy, reproduce, distribute, lend, lease, or 
transfer the Cloud Interface Software or Documentation for or to any third party 
without the prior express written permission of Motorola; (e) take any action 
that would cause the Cloud Interface Software or Documentation to be placed 
in the public domain; (f) use the Cloud Interface Software to compete with 
Motorola; or (g) remove, alter, or obscure, any copyright or other notice.  

2.1.4. Copies. Customer may make one (1) copy of the Cloud Interface Software 
solely for archival, back-up, or disaster recovery purposes during the term of 
the applicable Cloud Interface Software license. Customer may make as many 
copies of the Documentation reasonably required for the internal use of the 
Cloud Interface Software during such Cloud Interface Software’s license term. 
Unless otherwise authorized by Motorola in writing, Customer will not, and will 
not enable or allow any third party to: (a) install a licensed copy of the Cloud 
Interface Software on more than one (1) unit of a Designated Product; or (b) 
copy onto or transfer Cloud Interface Software installed in a unit of a 
Designated Product onto another device.  Customer may temporarily transfer 
Cloud Interface Software installed on a Designated Product to another device 
if the Designated Product is inoperable or malfunctioning, if Customer 
provides written notice to Motorola of the temporary transfer and identifies the 
device on which the Cloud Interface Software is transferred.  Temporary 
transfer of the Cloud Interface Software to another device must be 
discontinued when the original Designated Product is returned to operation 
and the Cloud Interface Software must be removed from the other device.  
Customer must provide prompt written notice to Motorola at the time 
temporary transfer is discontinued. 

2.1.5. Motorola Warranties.  Subject to the disclaimers and exclusions set forth in 
this Interface Addendum, (a) to the extent permitted by the providers of third-
party software included in the Add-on Cloud Products and Services, Motorola 
will pass through to Customer any warranties provided by such third parties, 
which warranties will apply for the period defined by the applicable third party, 
and (b) for a period of ninety (90) days commencing upon delivery of Motorola-
owned Cloud Interface software, Motorola represents and warrants that such 
Cloud Interface Software, when used in accordance with the Documentation 
and the Interface Addendum, will be free from reproducible defects that 
prevent operation of features critical to the primary functionality or successful 
operation of the Motorola-developed Cloud Interface Software (as determined 
by Motorola). The warranty set forth in subsection (b) will be referred as the 
“Motorola Licensed Software Warranty”. As Customer’s sole and exclusive 
remedy for any breach of the Motorola Licensed Software Warranty, Motorola 
will use commercially reasonable efforts to remedy the material defect in the 
applicable Cloud Interface Software; provided, however, that if Motorola does 
not remedy such material defect within a reasonable time, then at Motorola’s 
sole option, Motorola will either replace the defective Cloud Interface Software 
with functionally-equivalent software, provide substitute software to Customer, 
or terminate the applicable software license and refund any paid license fees 
to Customer on a pro-rata basis. For clarity, the Motorola Licensed Software 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

3 

Warranty applies only to the most current version of the Cloud Interface 
Software issued by Motorola, and issuance of updated versions of any Cloud 
Interface Software does not result in a renewal or extension of the Motorola 
Licensed Software Warranty beyond the ninety (90) day warranty period.  

2.1.6. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS AND PASS 
THROUGH WARRANTIES IN THIS INTERFACE ADDENDUM, PRODUCTS 
AND SERVICES PURCHASED HEREUNDER ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND 
WITH ALL FAULTS.  WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THE INTERFACE 
ADDENDUMARE THE COMPLETE WARRANTIES FOR THE SOFTWARE 
AND SERVICES AND MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES 
OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, TITLE, AND QUALITY.  MOTOROLA DOES NOT REPRESENT 
OR WARRANT THAT USE OF THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES WILL BE 
UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE, OR FREE OF SECURITY 
VULNERABILITIES, OR THAT THEY WILL MEET CUSTOMER’S 
PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS. 

2.1.7. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS. IN ADDITION TO THE EXCLUSIONS FROM 
DAMAGES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY PROVISION OF THE SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE AGREEMENT AND 
THIS INTERFACE ADDENDUMTO THE CONTRARY, MOTOROLA WILL 
HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR (A) TESTING, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, 
INSTALLATION, OR MODIFICATION BY PARTIES OTHER THAN 
MOTOROLA, OR (B) TRACKING AND LOCATION-BASED SERVICES 

2.2. Services. 

2.2.1. Motorola will provide services related to purchased Add-on Cloud Products 
(“Add-on Cloud Services”), to the extent set forth in an Ordering Document. 

2.2.2. Service Ordering Documents. The Fees for Add-on Cloud Services will be set 
forth in an Ordering Document and any applicable project schedules. A 
Customer point of contact will be set forth in the applicable statement of work 
for the Add-on Cloud Services. For purposes of clarity, each statement of work 
will be incorporated into, and form an integral part of, the Interface Addendum. 

2.2.3. Integration Services. If specified in an Ordering Document, Motorola will 
provide, for the term of such Ordering Document, (a) design, deployment, and 
integration Services in order to design, install, set up, configure, and/or 
integrate the applicable Add-on Cloud Products at the applicable locations, 
agreed upon by the Parties (“Integration Services”) as further described in 
the applicable statement of work.  

2.2.4. Completion of Integration Services. Unless otherwise specified in the 
applicable Ordering Document, Integration Services described in an Ordering 
Document will be deemed complete upon the earlier of Customer’s (or the 
applicable Authorized User’s) (i) Beneficial Use (as defined below) of the 
applicable Add-on Cloud Products or (ii) Motorola’s functional demonstration 
to Customer of the installation and integration of the Add-On Services. For 
clarity, if the Add-On Cloud Products are comprised of more than one product, 
Motorola may notify Customer that the installation and integration for a 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

4 

particular product have been completed, and Customer may have Beneficial 
Use of such Add-On Product prior to having Beneficial Use of other Add-On 
Products. In such case, the installation and integration  applicable to such 
product will be deemed complete upon Customer’s Beneficial Use of the 
product. As used in this Section, “Beneficial Use” means the ability to use the 
material features and functionalities of a product in material conformance with 
product descriptions in the applicable Ordering Document. 

2.2.5. Post-Installation Support and Maintenance Services.   Motorola agrees to 
provide Customer support services, if purchased, as identified in the 
applicable accepted Order Document and in accordance with the applicable 
Motorola support documentation. Support for Motorola proprietary software 
and firmware is available pursuant to Motorola’s Next Generation 9-1-1 
Software Support Program, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 3 
and incorporated herein by reference. Motorola’s Managed Services such as 
Remote Monitoring, AntiVirus Definition Update Services, Disaster Recovery 
Services and Patch Management Services are available, if purchased, 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Motorola’s Managed Services 
Offerings Policy which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 4 and incorporated 
herein by reference. The purchase of Add-on Cloud Products includes Cloud 
Interface Software that allows connectivity to the cloud services.  If 
Customer currently has or purchases a new Monitoring and Response 
agreement for VESTA 9-1-1, technical support will be included for Add-on 
Cloud Products.  Monitoring of Add-on Cloud Products events will be included 
as long as additional appropriate application licenses have been acquired and 
installed.  To the extent applicable for a given service, Motorola may, at its sole 
discretion, include storage for certain services ordered under the Agreement.



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 1  
 

EXHIBIT 1 – ADD-ON CLOUD PRODUCTS 
 

 
CommandCentral Citizen Input (“Citizen Input”) 
CommandCentral Smart Transcription (“Smart Transcription”) 
  



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 2  
 

EXHIBIT 2 –CLOUD INTERFACE PRODUCTS 
 

 
Console Transcription Application (CTA) 
VESTA API 
VESTA Edge 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 3  
 

 
EXHIBIT 3 - NEXT GENERATION 9-1-1 SOFTWARE SUPPORT PROGRAM 

 
[see attached] 

  



Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 1 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind.

NEXT GENERATION 9-1-1 
SOFTWARE SUPPORT 
PROGRAM 

Motorola Solutions 

REV. C 
10/11/2016 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 2 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

REVISION HISTORY 

Date Version Author Change 

10/11/2016 C Office of General 
Counsel 

MSI Rebranding 

    

    

    

  



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 3 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  General ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 
1.1  Definitions ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 
1.2  Term of the Support Program ------------------------------------------------------------------ 5 
1.3  Renewal of Support Program ------------------------------------------------------------------- 5 

1.3.1  Renewal ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 5 
1.3.2  Reinstatement Fee --------------------------------------------------------------------- 6 
1.3.3  Software and Firmware Support Program Renewal Effective Date -------- 6 

1.4  Cancellation of Support Program -------------------------------------------------------------- 6 
1.4.1  Cancellation by the End User -------------------------------------------------------- 6 
1.4.2  Cancellation by Motorola Solutions ------------------------------------------------ 6 

1.5  Motorola Solutions Software Versioning ----------------------------------------------------- 7 
1.6  Conditions of the Support Program ----------------------------------------------------------- 7 

1.6.1  Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program ----------------------------- 7 
1.7  Customer’s Operating Environment Responsibilities ------------------------------------- 7 

1.7.1  Hardware Operating Environment -------------------------------------------------- 7 
1.7.2  Operating System and Ancillary Software and Firmware Environment --- 8 

  Support Services Provided ---------------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.1  Motorola Solutions’ Technical Support Center --------------------------------------------- 9 

2.1.1  Telephone Support --------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.1.2  Telephone Support Procedures ----------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.1.3  Problem Diagnostics and Resolution -------------------------------------------- 10 

2.2  Application Software and Firmware Program Fixes ------------------------------------- 10 
2.3  Application Software and Firmware Program Updates --------------------------------- 11 
2.4  Application Software and Firmware Program Upgrades ------------------------------- 11 

  Support Services Not Provided --------------------------------------------------- 12 
3.1  New Software and Firmware Modules Requiring Separate License ---------------- 12 
3.2  On-site Installation or Project Management Support ----------------------------------- 12 
3.3  Training -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 12 
3.4  Remote Diagnostic and Resolution Services --------------------------------------------- 12 
3.5  Post Installation Support Limitations -------------------------------------------------------- 12 
3.6  Other Services ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 13 

  Warranty Disclaimer and Limitation of Liability ----------------------------- 14 

 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 4 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

Motorola Solutions offers application software and firmware support to purchasers of its 
proprietary application software and firmware products, in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program (“Support Program”).  
A minimum one year term is required with all software license purchases.  This Support 
Program does not apply to third party, non-proprietary application software, system 
software or ancillary software.   

 GENERAL 

1.1 Definitions 

“Customer” is defined as the party purchasing the Support Program from Motorola 
Solutions. 

“End User” is defined as the user of the application software or firmware supported 
hereunder. 

“Firmware” is defined as programs kept in semi-permanent storage, such as various 
types of read-only memory.  Firmware contains software that is so constantly called upon 
by a computer or phone system that it is “burned” into a chip, thereby becoming firmware.  
Firmware is non-volatile; it will not be forgotten when the power is turned off.  “Software” 
is defined as computer program instructions that facilitate functionality within hardware. 
There are three main types of software. System software (operating systems, i.e. 
Windows 7), which is not supported hereunder, controls the working of the computer.  
Ancillary software, which is not supported hereunder, includes database applications, 
back up products, and other third party software.  Application software is designed to 
perform specific tasks.  This Support Program applies to proprietary application software 
and firmware only. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 5 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.2 Term of the Support Program  

The Support Program may be purchased in 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year or 5-year 
terms, unless the related software or firmware has reached a point in its lifecycle where 
only a shorter Support Program term is available.  Any such limitation on Support 
Program terms will be communicated to the Customer at the time of purchase.  In all 
cases, the term commences on the date the software or firmware is shipped from 
Motorola Solutions (“Support Program Effective Date”).   In connection with the purchase 
of the Support Program for a term of any duration, or upon the expiration of the term of 
the Support Program, the Customer may purchase an extension of the term in one month 
increments provided that the one month increments are for the purpose of achieving a 
term coterminous with other active Support Programs or Managed Services Programs.  
The fee for each one month increment shall be equal to one-twelfth of the fee for a one 
year term of the applicable Support Program. In the event the Customer purchases new 
products or modules to add on to an existing system (see Section 3.1 below), the new 
products or modules will be added to and covered by the Customer’s applicable Support 
Program, and the incremental support fee shall be calculated based on the remaining 
term of the Customer’s applicable Support Program.  For example, if a new module is 
purchased and the Customer’s applicable Support Program has a remaining term of 27 
months, the Customer will be charged a support fee to cover the 27 months period.       

1.3 Renewal of Support Program 

1.3.1 Renewal 

Motorola Solutions offers renewal terms in 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year or 5-year 
durations.  The length of a renewal term may be limited if the related software or firmware 
has reached a point in its lifecycle where only a shorter support term is available.  Any 
such limitation on Support Program terms will be communicated to the Customer at the 
time of purchase. 

The renewal rate for all Support Programs offered by Motorola Solutions shall be the 
prevailing Support Program fee for the related application software or firmware at the 
time of renewal.  In order to avoid a Support Program Reinstatement Fee, the Customer 
must renew the program prior to the expiration of the initial Support Program term or 
within the Motorola Solutions provided grace period.  The applicable grace period within 
which to order and receive renewal of the initially purchased Support Program is 90 
calendar days.  Any ancillary or third party software or firmware support which the 
Customer may have purchased in addition to this Support Program terminates 
immediately upon its expiration.  Note:  To the extent a Customer has purchased support 
for ancillary or third party software or firmware, this Support Program does not apply to 
such ancillary or third party software or firmware and, therefore, no grace period is 
applicable to such support. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 6 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.3.2 Reinstatement Fee 

If the Support Program is not renewed prior to expiration of the existing term or grace 
period, if applicable, then the Customer, in addition to being charged the applicable 
Support Program Renewal Fee, will also be subject to the prevailing Support Program 
Reinstatement Fee as set forth in the applicable price list upon Support Program renewal. 

1.3.3 Software and Firmware Support Program Renewal Effective 
Date 

The renewal term will commence on the first day of the month following the month in 
which the renewal order is received from the Customer and accepted by Motorola 
Solutions or on the date on which the prior term expired, whichever is later.  The renewed 
Software and Firmware Support Program terminates upon expiration of the renewal term 
purchased.  No grace period is provided when renewing a Support Program which 
previously has been renewed. 

1.4 Cancellation of Support Program 

1.4.1 Cancellation by the End User 

The Customer may cancel the Support Program at any time and for any reason with 
written notice to Motorola Solutions.  Cancellations will be effective upon the first day of 
the month following notification (“Customer Cancellation Date”). Any prepaid Support 
Program fee shall be refunded on a prorated basis from the Customer Cancellation Date 
through the end of the purchased term, less a cancellation fee equal to ten percent of the 
initial cost (or renewal cost as applicable) of the Support Program.  Partial cancellations 
may be made for deactivation of a PSAP or positions.  Cancellations may not be made 
on a component basis.  

1.4.2 Cancellation by Motorola Solutions 

Motorola Solutions may cancel the Support Program upon 30 calendar days’ notice to the 
Customer (“Motorola Solutions Cancellation Date”), if the Customer is in material breach 
of its obligations hereunder. Motorola Solutions may also cancel the Support Program if 
Customer cannot or will not fulfill its operating environment responsibilities as described 
in Section 1.7 below, and/or as a result, the End User is not maintaining a software or 
firmware release that is a current version minus one (1), as required by Section 1.6 
below.  In the event of cancellation by Motorola Solutions, any prepaid Support Program 
fee shall be refunded on a prorated basis from the Motorola Solutions Cancellation Date, 
less a cancellation fee equal to ten percent of the initial cost (or renewal cost as 
applicable) of the Support Program. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 7 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.5 Motorola Solutions Software Versioning 

Beginning with the release of VESTA 9-1-1 R6, Motorola Solutions will adopt a new 
software versioning system.  It will move from an xx.yy scheme (such as VESTA Pallas 
3.02) to an xx.yy.zz versioning system.  For example, under the new versioning system, 
VESTA 9-1-1 R6 will be released as VESTA 9-1-1 06.00.00.  Generally, a change to the 
zz portion of the version number will reflect a Fix (defined below).  Therefore, a Fix to the 
VESTA 9-1-1 06.00.00, will be reflected as 06.00.01.  A change to the yy portion of the 
version number will reflect an Update (defined below).  Therefore, an Update to the 
VESTA 9-1-1 06.00.01 will be reflected as 06.01.01. A change to the xx portion of the 
version number will reflect an Upgrade (defined below) which may also include Updates 
and Fixes.  Therefore, an Upgrade to the VESTA 9-1-1 06.01.01, will be reflected as 
07.00.00.  As part of the Support Program customers will receive Fixes, Updates and 
Upgrades at no additional charge as further defined below. 

1.6 Conditions of the Support Program 

1.6.1 Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program 

In order to keep the Support Program active, the Customer is required to:  

1. Ensure that the End User maintains a Motorola Solutions application software 
and firmware release that is the current version or current version minus one 
Update (the yy portion of xx.yy.zz software version).  In other words if, for 
example, the current version of VESTA 9-1-1 were 06.02.03, The End User may 
be on any version of 06.02.zz regardless of the “zz” number, or they may be on 
06.01.zz regardless of the “zz” number.  In this example, the End User would be 
out of compliance with this requirement if it were on VESTA 9-1-1 06.00.01 as 
the Update (yy number) would be older than current version minus one Update; 

2. Pay all applicable Support Program Fees; 

3. Comply with all terms and conditions of this Support Program  

1.7 Customer’s Operating Environment Responsibilities 

1.7.1 Hardware Operating Environment 

It is the Customer’s responsibility to ensure that the hardware operating environment is 
fully functional and meets the Motorola Solutions and OEM minimum operating 
requirements. In the event a software or firmware Fix, Update or Upgrade is available 
hereunder and requires a hardware upgrade to implement, Customer is responsible for 
the cost of such hardware upgrade.  



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 8 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.7.2 Operating System and Ancillary Software and Firmware 
Environment 

It is the Customer’s responsibility to ensure that the operating system and ancillary 
software and firmware are fully functional, commercially available (except as otherwise 
agreed in writing by Motorola Solutions) and meet Motorola Solutions’ minimum operating 
requirements for Motorola Solutions’ software and firmware product(s).  However, 
Motorola Solutions may provide fixes and/or updates for operating systems when 
applicable and available by the respective manufacturer. In the event a software or 
firmware Fix, Update or Upgrade provided hereunder requires an operating system 
and/or ancillary and/or third party software or firmware change to implement, the 
Customer is responsible for the cost of such operating system and/or ancillary and/or 
third party software or firmware change. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 9 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 SUPPORT SERVICES PROVIDED 

2.1 Motorola Solutions’ Technical Support Center 

2.1.1 Telephone Support 

As part of the Support Program, Motorola Solutions provides 7 day / 24 hour access to its 
Technical Support Center.  This technical support is designed to support the Customer’s 
technician who has been previously trained in the product about which they are calling.  
The Customer’s technician is responsible for attempting to troubleshoot the problem prior 
to calling.  In the event a Customer’s technician is not adequately trained in the product 
about which he or she is calling, Motorola Solutions will request that additional Customer 
support be brought into the troubleshooting activity, and if the Customer is not able to 
provide additional support, Motorola Solutions may provide assistance at the prevailing 
Technical Support time and materials rates to Customers with an active Support 
Program.  Motorola Solutions does not guarantee the provision of such services but may 
provide such at its discretion on a best efforts basis.  Motorola Solutions will invoice 
Customer for such services following rendering and payment shall be due in accordance 
with Customer’s contract with Motorola Solutions which governs the related software of 
firmware purchase. 

2.1.2 Telephone Support Procedures 

Accessing Motorola Solutions’ Technical Support Center 

Motorola Solutions’ Technical Support Center may be accessed by the Customer’s 
technician via our toll free number, 1-800-491-1734 or through email at  
vesta.techsupport@motorolasolutions.com.  With respect to any issue reported, the 
following information is requested: 

 Caller’s name 

 Caller’s company 

 Call Center Name and Location 

 Caller’s contact number 

 Severity of the problem 

 Description of the problem 

 When the problem first occurred 

 If there were any recent changes to the system 

 Operational impact of the problem 

 How often the problem is occurring 

 If the problem can be recreated 

 What work was done thus far and the results of that work 

 If the problem has been escalated within your company 

 What other problems are occurring at the site 

 If documentation is on-site and is it being used to resolve the problem 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 10 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

Upon contacting Motorola Solutions’ Technical Support Center, the Customer’s 
technician will receive a Case Number for tracking the service request.  The Case 
Number will enable the Customer’s technician to check the status of a case at any time 
by calling the Technical Support Center and selecting the applicable option.   

2.1.3 Problem Diagnostics and Resolution 

Motorola Solutions technical support personnel will assist the customer’s technician in 
resolving the issue, but it is the Customer technician’s responsibility to implement the 
solution. Because of the complexity of how the application interfaces with other devices 
and applications it is necessary that the Customer technician be able to understand the 
recommended solution and determine the applicability of the solution for the system 
being supported.  

If the Customer technician is not able to resolve the issue it is expected the Customer 
bring in a second tier to support the effort.  Motorola Solutions is not responsible for the 
actions of the Customer technician.  If the problem is beyond the scope of the Motorola 
Solutions Technical Support Specialist, the problem will be escalated to a more senior 
Product Support Specialist and where necessary include development resources.  Once 
the Customer resolves the problem, the Customer’s technician will call the Technical 
Support Center to report resolution.  The Motorola Solutions Technical Support Specialist 
will document the Customers repair activity into the case and then close the case.  

2.2 Application Software and Firmware Program Fixes 

Application software and firmware program Fixes are defined as resolutions to problems 
that result from a defect in the application software or firmware product or supplied 
documentation.  Customers will be notified of the availability of program Fixes by a 
Motorola Solutions Product Change Notice.  The Customer shall then contact Motorola 
Solutions’ Order Management to order the program Fix at no additional charge provided 
that the Support Program is in effect.  The program Fix will be available only within the 
current release of the product and subsequently will be incorporated into future software 
or firmware program updates.  For the sake of accurate clarification as to the detected 
problem, the Customer is required to submit to Motorola Solutions a written description of 
the problem including date, time, position, any diagnostic data, and a general description 
of the problem.  Such written description shall be sent to, or provided electronically to 
Motorola Solutions’ Technical Support Center. Any change in the “zz” portion of the 
xx.yy.zz software version shall constitute an application software program Fix.  For 
example a change from VESTA 9-1-1 06.01.02 to 06.01.03 represents an application 
software program Fix. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 11 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

2.3 Application Software and Firmware Program Updates 

Application software and firmware program Updates are defined as minor enhancements 
to the already purchased product feature / functionality set.  A product change is 
classified as minor, in the discretion of Motorola Solutions, based upon the impact of the 
change to the core functionality of the product.  Customers will be notified by a Motorola 
Solutions Product Change Notice, of all application software and firmware program 
Updates, which occur within the term of the Support Program.  The Customer shall then 
contact Motorola Solutions’ Order Management to order the Update at no additional 
charge provided that the Support Program is in effect.  Application software and firmware 
program Updates will roll into the existing Support Program, thereby not extending the 
term of the Support Program.  Any change in the “yy” portion of the xx.yy.zz software 
version shall constitute an application software program Update.  For example a change 
from VESTA 9-1-1 06.01.02 to 06.02.00 represents an application software program 
Update. 

2.4 Application Software and Firmware Program Upgrades 

Application software and firmware program Upgrades are defined as major 
enhancements to the already purchased product feature / functionality set or incremental 
new features or functionality.  A product change is classified as an Upgrade in the 
discretion of Motorola Solutions.  Customers will be notified by a Motorola Solutions 
Product Change Notice, of all application software and firmware program Upgrades, 
which occur within the term of the Support Program.  The Customer may then contact 
Motorola Solutions’ Order Management to order the Upgrade at no additional charge 
provided that the Support Program is in effect.  Software and firmware program Upgrades 
will roll into the existing Support Program, thereby not extending the term of the Support 
Program.  Any change in the numbers. Any change in the “xx” portion of the xx.yy.zz 
software version shall constitute an application software program Upgrade.  For example 
a change from VESTA 9-1-1 06.01.02 to 07.00.00 represents an application software 
program Upgrade. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 12 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 SUPPORT SERVICES NOT PROVIDED 

3.1 New Software and Firmware Modules Requiring Separate 
License 

New software and firmware modules are defined as separate and significant functionality 
outside the already purchased feature set of the software and firmware products.  New 
software and firmware modules are not included as part of this Support Program as they 
require a separate license. New software and firmware modules will be made available at 
a price to be determined upon their release.  Examples of new products or modules 
include, but are not limited to the following: ESInet Interface Module (EIM), application 
protocol interfaces (API) such as an API for CAD, geodiversity, functionality to enable 
receipt and processing of pictures or images via MMS, fixed video files, social media, 
sensor data, video chat, DOT video cameras, security/border video cameras, streaming 
audio, and streaming video 

3.2 On-site Installation or Project Management Support 

On-site installation and/or project management services are not covered under this 
Support Program.  Such services may be provided pursuant to a separate Statement of 
Work detailing the specific services to be rendered for a given project and the applicable 
price. 

3.3 Training 

Training is not covered under this Support Program.  Training is available at Motorola 
Solutions’ prevailing rates. 

3.4 Remote Diagnostic and Resolution Services 

Remote diagnostic and resolution services such as Managed Services and remote dial-in 
are not covered under this Support Program.  Such services are available pursuant to 
Motorola Solutions’ Managed Services Program at Motorola Solutions’ prevailing rates. 

3.5 Post Installation Support Limitations 

Motorola Solutions’ support obligations hereunder will not apply to any Motorola Solutions 
supported application software or firmware if correction of an error, adjustment, repair, or 
parts replacement is required because of: 

 Accident, neglect, tampering, misuse, improper / insufficient grounding, failure of 
electric power, failure of the Customer, the End User and/or others to provide 
appropriate environmental conditions, relocation of hardware or software, or 
causes other than ordinary use. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 13 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 Repair or alteration, or attempted repair or alteration of any Motorola Solutions 
supported product (hardware and/or software) by the Customer, the End User or 
others, unless otherwise approved in writing by Motorola Solutions. 

 Connection of another machine, device, application or interface to Motorola 
Solutions supported equipment (hardware and/or software) by the Customer, the 
End User or others, which has caused damage to Motorola Solutions supported 
equipment. 

 Damage or destruction caused by natural or man-made acts or disasters. 

 Failure or degradation in performance of Motorola Solutions supported 
equipment (hardware and/or software) due to the installation of another machine, 
device, application or interface not specifically certified and approved by Motorola 
Solutions for use in the End User’s environment. 

 The operation of the software in a manner other than that currently specified by 
Motorola Solutions in its applicable Motorola Solutions product documentation. 

 The failure of the Customer to provide suitable qualified and adequately trained 
operating and maintenance staff. 

 Incompatible or faulty End User hardware and/or software interfaces.  

 Modifications made without Motorola Solutions’ written approval to the OS, 
network, hardware or software environment or software applications. 

Further, support described herein does not include cosmetic repairs, refurbishment, 
furnishing consumables, supplies or accessories, making accessory changes, 
performance of preventive maintenance or system administration, or adding additional 
devices or software applications. 

Motorola Solutions may provide assistance at the prevailing Technical Support time and 
materials rates to Customers with an active Support Program.  Motorola Solutions does 
not guarantee the provision of such services but may provide such at its discretion on a 
best efforts basis.  Motorola Solutions will invoice Customer for such services following 
rendering and payment shall be due in accordance with Customer’s contract with 
Motorola Solutions which governs the related software and/or firmware purchase. 

3.6 Other Services 

Other services not specifically identified as being included in the support services 
provided hereunder are not included. 



  
 

Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program Page 14 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 WARRANTY DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATION OF 
LIABILITY 

This Support Program shall not be construed as providing a software or firmware 
warranty.  Motorola Solutions’ software and firmware warranty is set forth in its applicable 
End User License Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the language of this 
Article IV and the agreement pursuant to which Customer purchased the applicable 
Support Program, the terms of such agreement shall prevail. 

WARRANTY DISCLAIMER: 
THE WARRANTIES IN THIS AGREEMENT, IF ANY, ARE GIVEN IN LIEU OF AND 
EXPRESSLY EXCLUDE ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION (A) ANY WARRANTY THAT ANY 
SOFTWARE OR FIRMWARE IS ERROR-FREE, WILL OPERATE WITHOUT 
INTERRUPTION, OR IS COMPATIBLE WITH ALL EQUIPMENT, HARDWARE, 
FIRMWARE AND SOFTWARE CONFIGURATIONS; AND (B) ANY AND ALL 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, 
QUALITY, OR ACCURACY OF INFORMATIONAL CONTENT. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: 
IN NO EVENT SHALL VESTA SOLUTIONS, ITS SUPPLIERS OR 
SUBCONTRACTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER 
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR ANY 
OTHER PECUNIARY LOSS ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE 
THE SOFTWARE AND/OR FIRMWARE SUPPORTED HEREUNDER OR THE 
PROVISION OF OR FAILURE TO PROVIDE SUPPORT SERVICES, EVEN IF VESTA 
SOLUTIONS HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBLITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  IN 
NO EVENT SHALL VESTA SOLUTIONS’ LIABILITY EXCEED THE AMOUNT PAID BY 
CUSTOMER FOR THIS SUPPORT PROGRAM. 

 



MOTOROLA CONFIDENTIAL 

4 

EXHIBIT 4 - MANAGED SERVICES OFFERINGS POLICY 

[see attached] 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 1 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

  

MANAGED SERVICES 
OFFERINGS POLICY 
 
Motorola Solutions 
 
 
 
 
REV. C 
07/16/2015 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 2 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

REVISION HISTORY 

Date Version Author Change 

07/16/2015 C Office of General 
Counsel 

MSI Rebranding 

    

    

    

  



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 3 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

  General ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 
1.1  Definitions ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 
1.2  Term of the Managed Services Offerings --------------------------------------------------- 4 
1.3  Renewal of Managed Services Offering ----------------------------------------------------- 5 

1.3.1  Renewal ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 5 
1.3.2  Reinstatement Fee --------------------------------------------------------------------- 5 
1.3.3  Managed Services Service Renewal Effective Date --------------------------- 5 

1.4  Cancellation of Managed Services Offering ------------------------------------------------ 5 
1.4.1  Cancellation by the End User -------------------------------------------------------- 5 
1.4.2  Cancellation by Motorola Solutions ------------------------------------------------ 6 

1.5  Conditions of Managed Services Offerings ------------------------------------------------- 6 
1.6  Customer’s Operating Environment Responsibilities ------------------------------------- 6 

1.6.1  Hardware Operating Environment -------------------------------------------------- 6 
1.6.2  Operating System and Ancillary Software and Firmware Environment --- 7 

  Services Provided ---------------------------------------------------------------------- 8 
2.1  Motorola Solutions Monitoring Offering ------------------------------------------------------ 8 
2.2  Remote Problem Resolution -------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.3  7 x 24 Telephone Support ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.4  Response Times ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.5  Response Status Reports ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
2.6  Security -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 10 
2.7  Alert Handling and Notification Process --------------------------------------------------- 10 

  Additional Fee-based Managed Services -------------------------------------- 12 
3.1  Managed Service - Patch Management --------------------------------------------------- 12 
3.2  Managed Service – Virus Protection ------------------------------------------------------- 14 
3.3  Managed Service – Disaster Recovery ---------------------------------------------------- 17 
3.4  Reviewing System Requirements ----------------------------------------------------------- 18 

  Support Services Not Provided --------------------------------------------------- 19 
4.1  On-site Installation or Project Management Support ----------------------------------- 19 
4.2  Training -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 19 
4.3  Integration Links and Interfaces ------------------------------------------------------------- 19 
4.4  Post Installation Support Limitations -------------------------------------------------------- 19 
4.5  Other Services ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 20 

  Warranty Disclaimer and Limitation of Liability ----------------------------- 21 

 
 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 4 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

For a fee, Motorola Solutions provides certain service offerings to purchasers of its 
VESTA product lines software, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Managed Services Offerings.  The scope of the services include, and are limited to, the 
services described herein. 

 GENERAL 

1.1 Definitions 

“Customer” is defined as the party purchasing the Managed Services Offering from 
Motorola Solutions. 

“End User” is defined as the user of the application software or firmware serviced 
hereunder. 

“Firmware” is defined as programs kept in semi-permanent storage, such as various 
types of read-only memory.  Firmware contains software that is so constantly called upon 
by a computer or phone system that it is “burned” into a chip, thereby becoming firmware.  
Firmware is non-volatile, it will not be forgotten when the power is turned off.  As an 
example, the ECS system contains a collection of firmware files corresponding to the 
individual system modules. 

“Software” is defined as computer program instructions that facilitate functionality within 
hardware. There are three main types of software. System software (operating systems, 
i.e. Windows 7 Server 2007) controls the working of the computer.  Ancillary software 
includes database applications, back up products, and other third party software.  SQL 
Server and Backup Exec are considered ancillary software.  Application software is 
designed to perform specific tasks.  VESTA 911® , VESTA Analytics® and VESTA 
Mapping are examples of application software.  

1.2 Term of the Managed Services Offerings 

The Managed Services Offerings can be purchased in 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year or 5-
year terms unless the related software or firmware has reached a point in its lifecycle 
where only a shorter Managed Services Offering term is available.  Any such limitation on 
Managed Services Offering terms will be communicated to the Customer at the time of 
purchase.  Further, Motorola Solutions generally notifies Customers pursuant to its 
Product Change Notice procedure of relevant lifecycle events 120 days prior to the onset 
of such event.  In all cases, the term commences on the date service Offerings are 
activated at the site.  In connection with the purchase of the Managed Services Offerings 
for a term of any duration, or upon the expiration of the term of the Managed Services 
Offering, the Customer may purchase an extension of the term in one month increments 
provided that the one month increments are for the purpose of achieving a term 
coterminous with other active Managed Services Offerings or Next Generation 9-1-1 
Software Support Program.  The fee for each one month increment shall be equal to one-
twelfth of the fee for a one year term of the applicable Managed Services Offering. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 5 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.3 Renewal of Managed Services Offering 

1.3.1 Renewal 

Motorola Solutions offers renewal terms in 1-year, 2-year, 3-year, 4-year or 5-year 
duration or monthly increments with the intent to co-term support (as described in Section 
1.2 above).  The length of a renewal term may be limited if the VESTA System has 
reached a point in its lifecycle where only a shorter term is available.  Any such limitation 
on Managed Services Offerings terms will be communicated to the Customer at the time 
of purchase.  The renewal rate for all Managed Services Offerings by Motorola Solutions 
shall be the prevailing Managed Services fee at the time of renewal.  In order to avoid a 
Service Reinstatement Fee, the Customer must renew the Service prior to the expiration 
of the applicable Managed Services Offing term.  

1.3.2 Reinstatement Fee 

If the Managed Services Service is not renewed prior to the expiration of the existing 
term, then the Customer, in addition to being charged the applicable Managed Services 
Renewal fee, will also be subject to the prevailing Managed Services Reinstatement Fee 
upon service renewal. 

1.3.3 Managed Services Service Renewal Effective Date 

The renewal term will commence on the first day of the month following the month in 
which the renewal order is received from the Customer and accepted by Motorola 
Solutions or on the date on which the prior term expired, whichever is later.  The renewed 
Managed Services Offering terminates upon expiration of the renewal term purchased.   

1.4 Cancellation of Managed Services Offering 

1.4.1 Cancellation by the End User 

The Customer may cancel the Managed Services Offering at any time and any prepaid 
support shall be refunded on a prorated basis, less a cancellation fee equal to ten 
percent of the initial cost (or renewal cost as applicable of the Managed Services 
Offering.  A separate Managed Services Offering is purchased for software license, 
therefore, a separate cancellation fee applies per license purchased. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 6 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.4.2 Cancellation by Motorola Solutions 

Motorola Solutions may cancel the Managed Services Offering upon 30 calendar days 
notice to the Customer, if the Customer is in material breach of its obligations hereunder. 
Motorola Solutions may also cancel the Managed Services Offering(s) if the related Next 
Generation 9-1-1 Software Support Program expires or is terminated or Customer cannot 
or will not fulfill its operating environment responsibilities as described in Section 1.6 
below, and as a result, the End User is not maintaining a software release that is the 
current version or current version minus one as required by Section 1.5 below.  
Additionally, Motorola Solutions may cancel the Managed Services Offering if the 
Customer is unwilling or unable to provide the required network connectivity. In the event 
of cancellation by Motorola Solutions any prepaid Managed Services Offering fee shall be 
refunded on a prorated basis, less a cancellation fee equal to ten percent of the initial 
cost (or renewal cost as applicable) of the Managed Services Offering. 

1.5 Conditions of Managed Services Offerings 

In order to keep the Managed Services Offerings active, the Customer is required to:  

1. Ensure that the VESTA System application software and firmware release that is 
the current version or current minus one. The application software and firmware 
release dates are determined by the date of the related product release notice as 
specified in the applicable published Product Change Notice; 

2. Ensure that an internet circuit providing a minim of 1.5 Mbps bidirectional 
connection is available to Motorola Solutions.  .   

3. All equipment or software not provided by Motorola Solutions has been certified 
by Motorola Solutions in accordance with the Third Party Integration/Cohabitation 
Policy.  Any alterations made to the Managed Services Offering software or 
hardware products by other than Motorola Solutions without Motorola Solutions 
written consent will result in termination of the Managed Services Offering(s); 

4. Pay all applicable Managed Services Fees; 

5. Comply with all terms and conditions of this Managed Services Offerings. 

6. All products installed and monitored must be maintained throughout the 
monitoring period under an active Next Generation 9-1-1 Software Support 
Program and Motorola Solutions Hardware Repair and Warranty Policy. 

1.6 Customer’s Operating Environment Responsibilities 

1.6.1 Hardware Operating Environment 

It is the Customer’s responsibility to ensure that the hardware operating environment is 
fully functional and meets Motorola Solutions and OEM minimum operating requirements.  
It shall be the responsibility of the Customer to correct all deficiencies at its expense. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 7 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

1.6.2 Operating System and Ancillary Software and Firmware 
Environment 

It is the Customer’s responsibility to ensure that the operating system and ancillary 
software and firmware are fully functional, commercially available (except as otherwise 
agreed to by Motorola Solutions) and meet Motorola Solutions recommended operating 
requirements for Motorola Solutions VESTA System(s).  However, Motorola Solutions 
may provide service pack updates for operating systems when applicable and available 
by the respective manufacturer.  It shall be the responsibility of the Customer to correct 
all deficiencies at its expense. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 8 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 SERVICES PROVIDED 

2.1 Motorola Solutions Monitoring Offering  

Remote monitoring is provided 7 days a week, 24 hours a day, for the designated 
Motorola Solutions systems and/or products monitored hereunder.   General product and 
system alerts, as well as specific system performance thresholds established during 
service plan implementation, are continually monitored.  Anytime an actionable alert 
event is detected or the system performance/environment exceeds a threshold limit, the 
remote monitoring team is automatically notified by the system.  A Managed Services 
Support Personnel reviews all alert notifications. An actionable alert event is one that the 
Managed Services Support Personnel deems service affecting to the End User.  When it 
is determined a response is required, Managed Services Support Personnel will begin 
the diagnostic process.  The Support Engineer may employ performance monitoring and 
other diagnostic tools to enable the interrogation of the respective site’s network, 
including routers, hubs, workstations, servers and other monitored devices.  

The designated systems and/or products monitored hereunder are as follows:   

Operating System Monitoring 

Only the operating system certified by Motorola Solutions and installed as part of the 
Motorola Solutions system is monitored.  Managed Services does not monitor Motorola 
Solutions products installed on adjoining or separate networks, e.g. city or county 
network, other system network, etc. 

Network System Monitoring 

Only those networks accepted by Motorola Solutions and installed as part of the Motorola 
Solutions system network are monitored.  Managed Services does not monitor Motorola 
Solutions products installed on adjoining or separate networks unless the customer 
contracts Motorola Solutions to perform discovery on the capability, and only after 
Motorola Solutions Managed Services Engineers identify, and the customer approves, a 
variable integration plan to support the request. 

Hardware/Software Monitoring 

Managed Services monitors the hardware/firmware shipped with the system being 
monitored.  Upgrades to the hardware/firmware may be required for existing systems 
where Managed Services are purchased after the original shipment of the system. 

Application Software Monitoring 

Managed Services monitors all application software developed by Motorola Solutions, 
and third party application provided with the system that generate SNMP traps or events 
captured by the Microsoft Operating System Event Logs. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 9 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

2.2 Remote Problem Resolution 

Managed Services responsibilities are limited to resolving those alerts actually detected 
via remote monitoring.  Once detected, a Managed Services Support Personnel will 
diagnose and attempt to resolve problems using remote access tools. In cases where the 
alert is not remotely correctable, or on-site support is required to continue diagnostic 
process, the Customer will be notified that a Customer technician is required on site.   

The Support Engineer will contact the Customer and provide the following information: 

 Site Name where an alert has been received from  

 Problem Description 

 Description of any work performed 

 Equipment affected 

 Parts required, if any 

 Software required, if any 

 Action required by the responding on-site technician 

It is up to the Customer to determine their response to the site based on their contracted 
service level.   

Problems detected or identified by any means other than Managed Services remain the 
sole responsibility of the Customer technician to troubleshoot and correct. 

2.3 7 x 24 Telephone Support 

Managed Services is staffed 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  Managed Services 
Customers will be provided a separate support code to access Support Personnel via 
Motorola Solutions Technical Services toll free number 1-800-491-1734 option 4.  This 
access is provided to Customers who have questions relative to remote monitoring or 
other services contracted by the customer.  Customers also have access to Motorola 
Solutions Technical Support Center to request assistance in supporting non Managed 
Service services. 

2.4 Response Times 

Response time is defined as the period of time between alert or call receipt and the time 
a Motorola Solutions Support Engineer begins analyzing the alert.  Motorola Solutions 
response time commitment for response to alerts detected and received by Managed 
Services is and average of five minutes.  

2.5 Response Status Reports 

Managed Services maintains a website at www.MC911.com for Managed Services 
Customers to access, view, and retrieve statistical information.  Upon site activation, 
Motorola Solutions will provide the Customer access to this web site.   



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 10 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

Based on the services provided, customers will have insight into: specific equipment 
reliability; the need for equipment replacement or upgrade; application and operating 
system issues; and at times, operational issues that need to be addressed. 

Data will include the following information:1 

 All alert events received (each with unique event ID) 

 Categorized alert severity 

 Alert event date and time 

 Alert notification by device 

 Responses by message text 

 Total number of alerts received (by defined time period) 

 Alert events requiring a Motorola Solutions case 

 Case status information 

 Third party case number (if applicable) 

 Alert events dispatched 

 Case close date and time 

2.6 Security 

Security is an important, necessary concern for Customers considering remote 
management. Security itself is a function of the method of system access (frame relay, 
virtual private network, etc.) and the software product configuration as well as Customers 
and Managed Services policies.   

Motorola Solutions will work directly with Customers to ensure that particular security 
concerns, as they pertain to Managed Service Offerings, are met.  Proper network 
access configuration will be established for every participating Customer.  To maintain 
the highest network security, Motorola Solutions requires Managed Services Customers 
to contact Managed Services prior to modification to the network or security 
configuration.  

2.7 Alert Handling and Notification Process 

Below is the standard flowchart for Alert Handling and Notification Process followed by 
Motorola Solutions Managed Services. 

                                                 
 

 

1 Customer login determines access to site data and statistical information. 

 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 11 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 

 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 12 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 ADDITIONAL FEE-BASED MANAGED SERVICES  

The additional services described below are available for additional fees.  Customers 
may contact Motorola Solutions Inside Sales for details and pricing for all fee-based 
managed services. 

3.1 Managed Service - Patch Management 

This service provides remote, schedulable delivery of critical (Motorola Solutions tested) 
Microsoft Security patches to computers. Installation of critical security patches is a 
crucial part of securing the VESTA System against today’s threats.  

Scope of Service 

 Patch Deployment. Through high-speed, secure (VPN) remote connections 
Motorola Solutions has the ability to automatically deploy newly certified patches 
to sites. The deployment of the patch, including optimum installation time, 
acceptable reboot sequences, further 3rd Party testing, limited rollout, etc, is 
completely custom in nature (within the confines of the software and Motorola 
Solutions Patch Management Policy).  Each site will require a collaborative 
agreement between the Customer and Motorola Solutions.  

 Recovery. Where a system requires reinstallation of the Operating System, this 
service will provide for the reinstallation of all previously tested Security Patches 
bringing the system to the latest release.  

 Testing. Motorola Solutions conducts patch testing in accordance with Motorola 
Solutions Patch Management Policy. In many cases, it may be prudent for sites 
to conduct additional testing in conjunction with Motorola Solutions. Motorola 
Solutions prefers to rollout patches to a ‘test-environment’ at the Customer site 
before deploying in masse; however, this is subject to availability and Customer 
approval.   



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 13 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

Service Processes 

 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 14 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

3.2 Managed Service – Virus Protection 

This service provides remote, schedulable delivery of critical (Motorola Solutions tested) 
anti-virus definition updates to systems eliminating cumbersome and costly manual 
delivery of updates and significantly assisting in the reduction (although the risk of 
infection can never be completely eliminated—such is the nature of a reactionary 
measure like anti-virus software) of virus infections. Anti-virus software and the 
maintenance thereof is a crucial part of securing today’s Systems.   

Scope of Service 

 Antivirus Updates. The application we use has a client and server component; 
client software would be installed on all clients/servers within the scope of the 
contract. An Application server component would be installed on an applicable 
server in the site (see hardware section below). Clients communicate with the 
Applications server to obtain updates. The Application server securely 
communicates upstream with Motorola Solutions Managed Services to obtain 
updates.  Through high-speed, secure (VPN) remote connections Motorola 
Solutions has the ability to automatically deploy new Virus definitions to remote 
sites. The actual deployment of the update, including optimum installation time, 
etc. custom in nature (within the confines of the software and Motorola Solutions 
AV Policy), and will be collaboratively agreed to between the Customer and 
Motorola Solutions.  

 Eradication. Antivirus is an effective and necessary means to protect against 
virus infections. However, because the technology is reactive in nature it can 
never provide 100% guarantee of zero infections, although they are rare.   

 In the case where an unknown virus is introduced into the environment, the 
Managed Services Team will attempt to compartmentalize the virus.  They will 
then notify the customer of the compromise and request an on-site dispatch to 
assist in the process of eradication.  



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 15 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

Service Processes 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 16 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 

 

  



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 17 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

3.3 Managed Service – Disaster Recovery 

Motorola Solutions Disaster Recovery Services is highly effective in minimizing call-taker 
position and server downtime. Through snapshots of the monitored system, a system can 
be quickly restored to any saved working state while preserving current data files. 

Scope of Service 

 Snapshot Backups. Disaster Recovery “snapshot” software consists of a client 
and server component; client software would be installed on all clients/servers 
within the scope of the specific contract between Motorola Solutions and 
Customer addressing this issue. Clients are backed up to the appropriate 
Management Server location.   

 Disaster Recovery. If a system fails, using the normal notification processes, 
Motorola Solutions will roll the system back to a known good state. This is 
conducted in concert with customer support team. 

Service Processes 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 18 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

3.4 Reviewing System Requirements 

In order to implement any of the above Motorola Solutions Managed Services, the 
following system requirements are applicable: 

 High Speed Secure Network Access. High speed, internet circuit providing a 
minim of 1.5 Mbps bidirectional connection is available to Motorola Solutions. , 
per site, is mandatory in most cases. In the case that an existing high speed 
Wide Area Network already exists, Motorola Solutions requires (2) points of 
access (to Motorola Solutions Managed Services Datacenter); 1 primary ) 
connection.  

 Hardware. The following hardware requirements are applicable:  

 Servers. Motorola Solutions Managed Services other than Remote Monitoring 
are designed to be installed on a standalone member server. This affordable 
server will be quoted as part of the overall solution. Motorola Solutions refers to 
this server as an NMS, or Network Management Server.  

 Network Equipment. Because a high speed secure connection is required in 
most cases, Motorola Solutions highly recommends using our firewall solution to 
connect to Motorola Solutions Managed Services the site.  

 Motorola Solutions supports Windows based operating systems (Windows 2003 
or greater) only for patch management, antivirus and disaster recovery software. 
Remote Monitoring and Response can monitor additional components (i.e. 
routers) as necessary and purchased.  

 Miscellaneous. As necessary, other equipment or software pertinent to the 
specific solution may be quoted. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 19 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 SUPPORT SERVICES NOT PROVIDED 

4.1 On-site Installation or Project Management Support 

On-site installation and / or project management services are not covered under this 
Managed Services Program.  Such services may be provided pursuant to a separate 
Statement of Work detailing the specific services to be rendered for a given project and 
the applicable price.   

4.2 Training 

Training is not covered under this Managed Services Program.  Training is available at 
Motorola Solutions prevailing rates.  

4.3 Integration Links and Interfaces 

Integration links and Interfaces are not covered under this Managed Services Program 
including the remote monitoring service.  Integration links may be provided pursuant to a 
separate Statement of Work detailing specifications, support, and the applicable price.  

4.4 Post Installation Support Limitations 

Motorola Solutions support obligations hereunder will not apply to any Motorola Solutions 
supported application software or firmware if correction of an error, adjustment, repair, or 
parts replacement is required because of: 

 Accident, neglect, tampering, misuse, improper / insufficient grounding, failure of 
electric power, failure of the Customer, the End User and/or others to provide 
appropriate environmental conditions, relocation of hardware or software, or 
causes other than ordinary use. 

 Repair or alteration, or attempted repair or alteration of any Motorola Solutions 
supported product (hardware and/or software) by the Customer, the End User or 
others. 

 Connection of another machine, device, application or interface to Motorola 
Solutions supported equipment (hardware and/or software) by the Customer, the 
End User or others, which has caused damage to Motorola Solutions supported 
equipment. 

 Damage or destruction caused by natural or man-made acts or disasters 

 Failure or degradation in performance of Motorola Solutions supported 
equipment (hardware and/or software) due to the installation of another machine, 
device, application or interface not specifically certified and approved by Motorola 
Solutions for use. 

 The operation of the software in a manner other than that currently specified by 
Motorola Solutions. 

 The failure of the Customer to provide suitable qualified and adequately trained 
operating and maintenance staff. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 20 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 Incompatible or faulty end user or Customer equipment. 

 Modifications made without Motorola Solutions written approval to the OS, 
network, hardware or software environment or software applications. 

Further, support described herein does not include cosmetic repairs, refurbishment, 
furnishing consumables, supplies or accessories, making accessory changes, 
performance of preventive maintenance or system administration, or adding additional 
devices or software applications. 

Telephone support and/or field engineering to rectify such unsupported failures as 
described above may be obtained from Motorola Solutions on a time & materials basis. 
Motorola Solutions does not guarantee the provision of such services but will provide 
such on a best efforts basis.   The labor rate charged will be the current Motorola 
Solutions labor rate (plus expenses) at the time service is requested.  Motorola Solutions 
will invoice Customer for such services within 30 days of rendering and payment shall be 
due in accordance with Customer’s contract with Motorola Solutions which governs the 
related software of firmware purchase. 

4.5 Other Services 

Other services not specifically identified as being included in the support services 
provided section of this program are not included. 



  
 

Managed Services Offerings Policy Page 21 

© 2020 Motorola Solutions. All rights reserved. This document is for informational purposes only. All trademarks, service marks, product names, 
brands, company names and logos appearing in this document are the property of their respective owners. This document is provided “AS IS” without 
warranty of any kind. 

 WARRANTY DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATION OF 
LIABILITY 

This Managed Services Program shall not be construed as providing a software or 
firmware warranty.  Motorola Solutions software and firmware warranty is set forth in its 
applicable End User License Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the language 
of this Article V and the agreement pursuant to which Customer purchased the applicable 
Managed Services Program, the terms of such agreement shall prevail. 

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES 
THE WARRANTIES IN THIS AGREEMENT, IF ANY, ARE GIVEN IN LIEU OF AND 
EXPRESSLY EXCLUDE ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION (A) ANY WARRANTY THAT ANY 
SOFTWARE OR FIRMWARE IS ERROR-FREE, WILL OPERATE WITHOUT 
INTERRUPTION, OR IS COMPATIBLE WITH ALL EQUIPMENT, FIRMWARE AND 
SOFTWARE CONFIGURATIONS; (B) ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, QUALITY, NONINFRINGEMENT AND ACCURACY OF 
INFORMATIONAL CONTENT; AND (C) ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES OF FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
IN NO EVENT SHALL VESTA SOLUTIONS, ITS SUPPLIERS OR 
SUBCONTRACTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER 
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR ANY 
OTHER PECUNIARY LOSS ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE 
THE SOFTWARE AND/OR FIRMWARE SUPPORTED HEREUNDER OR THE 
PROVISION OF OR FAILURE TO PROVIDE SUPPORT SERVICES, EVEN IF VESTA 
SOLUTIONS HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBLITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  IN 
NO EVENT SHALL MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS’ LIABILITY EXCEED THE AMOUNT 
PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THIS SUPPORT PROGRAM. 

 



 Motorola Confidential 

1 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

Cyber Addendum 
 
 

Motorola Solutions Inc. ("Motorola") and the customer named in this Agreement ("Customer") 
hereby agree as follows: 
 
  
Section 1.  APPLICABILITY  
 
1.1 This Addendum sets out additional and superseding terms applicable to Customer’s 
purchase of cyber security services, including Remote Security Update Service, Security Update 
Service, and Managed Detection & Response subscription services, among other subscription 
services,(ii) professional services, and/or (iii) retainer services (i.e., professional services when 
expressly purchased as a block of pre-paid hours for use, subject to expiration, within a specified 
period across certain offered service categories (“Retainer Services”) (all collectively herein, 
“Services”). 
 
Section 2.  ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION  
 
2.1.   “Customer Contact Data” means data Motorola collects from Customer, its Authorized Users, 
and their end users for business contact purposes, including marketing, advertising, licensing and 
sales purposes.  
 
2.2 “Customer Data” means Customer data, information, and content, provided by, through, or on 
behalf of Customer, its Authorized Users, and their end users through the use of the Services.  
Customer Data does not include Customer Contact Data, Service Use Data, or information from 
publicly available sources or other Third-Party Data or Motorola Data or anonymized or generalized 
data. For avoidance of doubt, so long as not specifically identifying the Customer, Customer Data 
shall not include, and Motorola shall be free to use, share and leverage security threat intelligence 
and mitigation data generally, including without limitation, third-party threat vectors and IP addresses, 
file hash information, domain names, malware signatures and information, information obtained from 
third-party sources, indicators of compromise, and tactics, techniques, and procedures used, learned 
or developed in the course of providing Services.  
 
2.3 “Feedback” means comments or information, in oral or written form, given to Motorola by 
Customer or Authorized Users, including their end users, in connection with or relating to the 
Services. Any Feedback provided by Customer is entirely voluntary. Motorola may use, reproduce, 
license, and otherwise distribute and exploit the Feedback without any obligation or payment to 
Customer or Authorized Users. Customer represents and warrants that it has obtained all necessary 
rights and consents to grant Motorola the foregoing rights. 
 
2.4 “Motorola Data” means data owned or licensed by Motorola. 
 
2.5 “Process” or “Processing” means any operation or set of operations which is performed on 
personal information or on sets of personal information, whether or not by automated means, such as 
collection, recording, copying, analyzing, caching, organization, structuring, storage, adaptation, or 
alteration, retrieval, consultation, use, disclosure by transmission, dissemination or otherwise making 
available, alignment or combination, restriction, erasure or destruction. 
 
2.6  “Service Use Data” means data generated by Customer’s use of the Services or by 
Motorola’s support of the Services, including personal information, threat data, security threat 
intelligence and mitigation data, vulnerability data, threat scenarios, malicious and third-party IP 
information, malware, location, monitoring and recording activity, product performance and error 
information, threat signatures, activity logs and date and time of use.  
 



 Motorola Confidential 

2 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

2.7 “Statement(s) of Work” or “SOW(s)” as used in this Addendum means a statement of work, 
ordering document, accepted proposal, or other agreed upon engagement document issued under or 
subject to this Addendum. Mutually agreed upon SOWs may be attached hereto as Exhibit(s) A-1, A-
2, A-3, etc., and/or are respectively incorporated by reference, each of which will be governed by the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. Statements of Work may set out certain “Deliverables,” which 
include all written information (such as reports, specifications, designs, plans, drawings, or other 
technical or business information) that Motorola prepares for Customer in the performance of the 
Services and is obligated to provide to Customer under a SOW and this Agreement. The 
Deliverables, if any, are more fully described in the Statements of Work. 
 
2.8 “Third-Party Data” means information obtained by Motorola from publicly available sources or 
its third-party content providers and made available to Customer through the products or Services. 
 
 
Section 3.   LICENSE, DATA AND SERVICE CONDITIONS 
   
3.1 Delivery of Cyber Services 
 
 3.1.1 All Professional Services will be performed in accordance with the performance 
schedule included in a Statement of Work (“SOW”). Delivery of hours purchased as Retainer Services 
is at the onset of the applicable retainer period. Hours purchased as Retainer Services expire and are 
forfeited if not used within the Retainer period, subject to terms of use, expiration and extension, if 
any, as set out in the applicable SOW or ordering document.  Professional Services described in a 
SOW will be deemed complete upon Motorola’s performance of such Services or, if applicable, upon 
exhaustion or expiration of the Retainer Services hours, whichever occurs first.    
 
 3.1.2 Subscription Services.  Delivery of subscription services will occur upon 
Customer’s receipt of credentials required for access to the Services or upon Motorola otherwise 
providing access to the Services platform. 
 
 3.1.3 To the extent Customer purchases equipment from Motorola (“Supplied 
Equipment''), title and risk of loss to the Supplied Equipment will pass to Customer upon 
installation (if applicable) or shipment by Motorola.  Customer will take all necessary actions, 
reimburse freight or delivery charges, provide or obtain access and other rights needed and take 
other requested actions necessary for Motorola to efficiently perform its contractual duties.  To 
the extent Supplied Equipment is purchased on an installment basis, any early termination of the 
installment period will cause the outstanding balance to become immediately due.  
 
3.2 Motorola may use or provide Customer with access to software, tools, enhancements, 
updates, data, derivative works, and other materials which Motorola has developed or licensed 
from third parties (collectively, “Motorola Materials”). The Services, Motorola Data, Third-Party 
Data, and related documentation, are considered Motorola Materials. Notwithstanding the use of 
such materials in Services or deliverables, the Motorola Materials are the property of Motorola or 
its licensors, and Motorola or its licensors retain all right, title and interest in and to the Motorola 
Materials.  Motorola grants Customer and Authorized Users a limited, non-transferable, non-
sublicenseable, and non-exclusive license to use the Services and associated deliverables solely 
for Customer’s internal business purposes. 
 
3.3 To the extent Customer is permitted to access, use, or integrate Customer or third-party 
software, services, content, or data that is not provided by Motorola (collectively, “Non-Motorola 
Content”) with or through the Services, or will use equipment or software not provided by 
Motorola, which may be required for use of the Services (“Customer-Provided Equipment”), 
Customer will obtain and continuously maintain all rights and licenses necessary for Motorola to 
efficiently perform all contemplated Services under this Addendum and will assume responsibility 
for operation and integration of such content and equipment.  
 



 Motorola Confidential 

3 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

3.4 Ownership of Customer Data. Customer retains all right, title and interest, including 
intellectual property rights, if any, in and to Customer Data. Motorola acquires no rights to Customer 
Data except those rights granted under this Addendum including the right to Process and use the 
Customer Data as set forth in Section 3.5 – Processing Customer Data, below. The Parties agree that 
with regard to the Processing of personal information which may be part of Customer Data, Customer 
is the controller and Motorola is the processor, and Motorola may engage sub-processors pursuant to 
Section 3.5.3 – Sub-processors and Third-Party Providers.    
 
3.5 Processing Customer Data.   
 
 3.5.1. Motorola Use of Customer Data. To the extent permitted by law, Customer grants 
Motorola and its subcontractors a right to use Customer Data and a royalty-free, worldwide, non-
exclusive license to use Customer Data (including to process, host, cache, store, reproduce, copy, 
modify, combine, analyze, create derivative works from such Customer Data and to communicate, 
transmit, and distribute such Customer Data to third parties engaged by Motorola) to (a) perform 
Services and provide products under the Addendum, (b) analyze the Customer Data to operate, 
maintain, manage, and improve Motorola products and services, and (c) create new products and 
services. Customer agrees that this Addendum, along with any related documentation, are 
Customer’s complete and final documented instructions to Motorola for the processing of Customer 
Data. Any additional or alternate instructions must be agreed to according to the change order 
process. Customer represents and warrants to Motorola that Customer’s instructions, including 
appointment of Motorola as a processor or sub-processor, have been authorized by the relevant 
controller.   
 
 3.5.2 Collection, Creation, Use of Customer Data. Customer further represents and 
warrants that the Customer Data, Customer’s collection, creation, and use of the Customer Data 
(including in connection with Motorola’s Services), and Motorola’s use of such Customer Data in 
accordance with the Addendum, will comply with all laws and will not violate any applicable privacy 
notices or infringe any third-party rights (including intellectual property and privacy rights). It is 
Customer’s responsibility to obtain all required consents, provide all necessary notices, and meet any 
other applicable legal requirements with respect to collection and use (including Motorola’s and third-
party provider use) of the Customer Data as described in the Addendum or any applicable third-party 
agreements or EULAs. 
 
 3.5.3 Sub-processors and Third-Party Providers. Motorola may use, engage, resell, or 
otherwise interface with third-party software, hardware or services providers (such as, for example, 
third-party end point detection and response providers) and other sub-processors, who in turn may 
engage additional sub-processors to process personal data and other Customer Data. Customer 
agrees that such third-party software or services providers, sub-processors or their respective sub-
processors may process and use personal and other Customer Data in accordance with and subject 
to their own respective licenses or terms and in accordance with applicable law. Customer authorizes 
and will provide and obtain all required notices and consents, if any, and comply with other applicable 
legal requirements, if any, with respect to such collection and use of personal data and other 
Customer Data by Motorola, and its subcontractors, sub-processors and/or third-party software, 
hardware or services providers. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, to the extent the use or 
performance of certain Services is governed by any separate license, data requirement, EULA, 
privacy statement, or other applicable agreement, including terms governing third-party software, 
hardware or services, including open source software, Customer will comply, and ensure its 
Authorized Users comply, with any such agreements or terms, which shall govern any such Services.  
 
 3.5.4 Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Addendum or any related 
agreement, and in addition to other uses and rights set out herein, Customer understands and agrees 
that Motorola may obtain, use and/or create and use, anonymized, aggregated and/or generalized 
Customer Data, such as data relating to actual and potential security threats and vulnerabilities, for its 
lawful business purposes, including improving its services and sharing and leveraging such 
information for the benefit of Customer, other customers, and other interested parties.  



 Motorola Confidential 

4 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

 
3.6  Service Use Data.  Customer understands and agrees that Motorola may collect and use 
Service Use Data for its own purposes, including the uses described below.  Motorola may use 
Service Use Data to (a) operate, maintain, manage, improve existing and create new products 
and services, (b) test products and services, (c) to aggregate Service Use Data and combine it 
with that of other users, and (d) to use anonymized or aggregated data for marketing, research or 
other business purposes. Service Use Data may be disclosed to third parties.  It is Customer’s 
responsibility to notify Authorized Users of Motorola’s collection and use of Service Use Data and 
to obtain any required consents, provide all necessary notices, and meet any other applicable 
legal requirements with respect to such collection and use, and Customer represents and 
warrants to Motorola that it has complied and will continue to comply with this Section. 
 
3.7. Data Retention and Deletion.  Except as expressly provided otherwise, Motorola will delete all 
Customer Data following termination or expiration of this Addendum, with such deletion to occur no 
later than ninety (90) days following the applicable date of termination or expiration, unless otherwise 
required to comply with applicable law. Any requests for the exportation or download of Customer 
Data must be made by Customer to Motorola in writing before expiration or termination of this 
Addendum. Motorola will have no obligation to retain such Customer Data beyond expiration or 
termination unless the Customer has purchased extended storage from Motorola through a mutually 
executed agreement. 
 
3.8. Third-Party Data and Motorola Data. Motorola Data and Third-Party Data may be 
available to Customer through the Services. Customer will not, and will ensure its Authorized 
Users will not: (a) use the Motorola Data or Third-Party Data for any purpose other than 
Customer’s internal business purposes; (b) disclose the data to third parties; (c) “white label” such 
data or otherwise misrepresent its source or ownership, or resell, distribute, sublicense, or 
commercially exploit the data in any manner; (d) use such data in violation of applicable laws; (e) 
remove, obscure, alter, or falsify any marks or proprietary rights notices indicating the source, 
origin, or ownership of the data; or (f) modify such data or combine it with Customer Data or other 
data or use the data to build databases. Any rights granted to Customer or Authorized Users with 
respect to Motorola Data or Third-Party Data will immediately terminate upon termination or 
expiration of this Addendum. Further, Motorola or the applicable Third-Party Data provider may 
suspend, change, or terminate Customer’s or any Authorized User’s access to Motorola Data or 
Third-Party Data if Motorola or such Third-Party Data provider believes Customer’s or the 
Authorized User’s use of the data violates the Addendum, applicable law or Motorola’s agreement 
with the applicable Third-Party Data provider. Upon termination of Customer’s rights to use any 
Motorola Data or Third-Party Data, Customer and all Authorized Users will immediately 
discontinue use of such data, delete all copies of such data, and certify such deletion to Motorola. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Addendum and the Primary Agreement to the contrary, 
Motorola will have no liability for Third-Party Data or Motorola Data available through the 
Services. Motorola and its Third-Party Data providers reserve all rights in and to Motorola Data 
and Third-Party Data.   
  
3.9  Customer will ensure its employees and Authorized Users comply with the terms of this 
Addendum and will be liable for all acts and omissions of its employees and Authorized Users. 
Customer is responsible for the secure management of Authorized Users’ names, passwords and 
login credentials for access to products and Services. “Authorized Users” are Customer’s 
employees, full-time contractors engaged for the purpose of supporting the products and Services 
that are not competitors of Motorola or its affiliates, and the entities (if any) specified in a SOW or 
otherwise approved by Motorola in writing (email from an authorized Motorola signatory 
accepted), which may include affiliates or other Customer agencies. 
 
3.10 Motorola as a Controller or Joint Controller. In all instances where Motorola acts as a 
controller of data, it will comply with the applicable provisions of the Motorola Privacy Statement 
at https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/privacy-policy.html#privacystatement, as may 
be updated from time to time.  Motorola holds all Customer Contact Data as a controller and shall 



 Motorola Confidential 

5 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

Process such Customer Contact Data in accordance with the Motorola Privacy Statement. In 
instances where Motorola is acting as a joint controller with Customer, the Parties will enter into a 
separate addendum to allocate the respective roles as joint controllers. 
 
3.11 Beta or Proof of Concept Services. If Motorola makes any beta version of its Services 
(“Beta Service”) available to Customer, or provides Customer a trial period or proof of concept  
period (or other demonstration) of the Services at reduced or no charge (“Proof of Concept” or 
“POC” Service), Customer may choose to use such Beta or POC Service at its own discretion, 
provided, however, that Customer will use the Beta or POC Service solely for purposes of 
Customer’s evaluation of such Beta or POC Service, and for no other purpose. Customer 
acknowledges and agrees that all Beta or POC Services are offered “as-is” and without any 
representations or warranties or other commitments or protections from Motorola. Motorola will 
determine the duration of the evaluation period for any Beta or POC Service, in its sole discretion, 
and Motorola may discontinue any Beta or POC Service at any time. Customer acknowledges 
that Beta Services, by their nature, have not been fully tested and may contain defects or 
deficiencies.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to the extent a future paid 
Service has been agreed upon subject to and contingent on the Customer’s evaluation of a Proof 
of Concept Service, Customer may cancel such future paid Service as specified in the SOW or, if 
not specified, within a reasonable time before the paid Service is initiated.     
 
Section 4. WARRANTY 
 
4.1 CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES, UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT MOTOROLA 
DOES NOT GUARANTEE OR WARRANT THAT IT WILL DISCOVER ALL OF CUSTOMER’S 
SECURITY EVENTS (SUCH EVENTS INCLUDING THE UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS, 
ACQUISITION, USE, DISCLOSURE, MODIFICATION OR DESTRUCTION OF CUSTOMER 
DATA), THREATS, OR SYSTEM VULNERABILITIES.  MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY AND ALL LOSS OR COSTS OF ANY KIND ASSOCIATED WITH 
SECURITY EVENTS, THREATS OR VULNERABILITIES WHETHER OR NOT DISCOVERED BY 
MOTOROLA. MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR CUSTOMER’S USE OR 
IMPLEMENTATION OF ANY RECOMMENDATIONS PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
SERVICES.  IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS DOES NOT ENSURE OR 
GUARANTEE THE SECURITY OF THE SYSTEMS AND OPERATIONS EVALUATED. 
CUSTOMER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO TAKE SUCH ACTIONS NECESSARY TO 
MITIGATE RISKS TO ITS OPERATIONS AND PROTECT AND PRESERVE ITS COMPUTER 
SYSTEMS AND DATA, INCLUDING CREATION OF OPERATIONAL WORKAROUNDS, 
BACKUPS AND REDUNDANCIES.  
 
4.2. Customer acknowledges, understands and agrees that the Services and products or 
equipment provided by or used by Motorola to facilitate performance of the Services may impact 
or disrupt information systems.  Motorola disclaims responsibility for costs in connection with any 
such disruptions of and/or damage to Customer’s or a third party’s information systems, 
equipment, voice transmissions, data and Customer Data, including, but not limited to, denial of 
access to a legitimate system user, automatic shut-down of information systems caused by 
intrusion detection software or hardware, or failure of the information system resulting from the 
provision or delivery of the Service. 
 
4.3. Motorola warrants that Supplied Equipment, under normal use and service, will be free 
from material defects in materials and workmanship for one (1) year from the date of shipment, 
subject to Customer providing written notice to Motorola within that period.  AS IT RELATES TO 
THE SUPPLIED EQUIPMENT, MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR 
CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
 
 



 Motorola Confidential 

6 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

4.4. Pass-Through Warranties. Notwithstanding any provision of this Addendum or any 
related agreement to the contrary, Motorola will have no liability for third-party software, hardware 
or services resold or otherwise provided by Motorola; provided, however, that to the extent 
offered by third-party software, hardware or services providers and to the extent permitted by law, 
Motorola will pass through express warranties provided by such third parties.    
 
 
Section 5 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
 
5.1. DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR 
DEATH, MOTOROLA, ITS AFFILIATES, AND ITS AND THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “MOTOROLA PARTIES”) WILL NOT BE LIABLE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS ADDENDUM (WHETHER UNDER MOTOROLA’S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS, A CAUSE OF 
ACTION FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT, UNDER TORT THEORY, OR OTHERWISE) FOR ANY 
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
OR DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES, EVEN IF MOTOROLA HAS BEEN ADVISED 
BY CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES 
AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES ARE FORESEEABLE.  
 
5.2. DIRECT DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, THE TOTAL 
AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF THE MOTOROLA PARTIES, WHETHER BASED ON A CLAIM IN 
CONTRACT OR IN TORT, LAW OR EQUITY, RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF THIS 
ADDENDUM OR ANY RELATED OR UNDERLYING AGREEMENT, WILL NOT EXCEED THE FEES 
SET FORTH IN THE APPLICABLE SOW OR PRICING FOR THE CYBER SERVICES UNDER 
WHICH THE CLAIM AROSE. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, FOR ANY SUBSCRIPTION 
SERVICES OR FOR ANY RECURRING SERVICES, THE MOTOROLA PARTIES’ TOTAL LIABILITY 
FOR ALL CLAIMS RELATED TO SUCH PRODUCT OR SERVICES IN THE AGGREGATE WILL 
NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL FEES PAID FOR THE CYBER SERVICES TO WHICH THE CLAIM IS 
RELATED DURING THE CONSECUTIVE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY 
PRECEDING THE EVENT FROM WHICH THE FIRST CLAIM AROSE. FOR AVOIDANCE OF 
DOUBT, THE LIMITATIONS IN THIS SECTION 5.2 APPLY IN THE AGGREGATE TO 
INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS ARISING OUT OF THIS ADDENDUM OR ANY RELATED 
AGREEMENTS. 
 
5.3. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS 
ADDENDUM, THE PRIMARY AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED AGREEMENT, MOTOROLA WILL 
HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF (A) CUSTOMER DATA, INCLUDING ITS 
TRANSMISSION TO MOTOROLA, OR ANY OTHER DATA AVAILABLE THROUGH THE 
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES; (B) CUSTOMER-PROVIDED EQUIPMENT, NON-MOTOROLA 
CONTENT, THE SITES, OR THIRD-PARTY EQUIPMENT, HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, SERVICES, 
DATA, OR OTHER THIRD-PARTY MATERIALS, OR THE COMBINATION OF PRODUCTS AND 
SERVICES WITH ANY OF THE FOREGOING; (C) LOSS OF DATA OR HACKING, RANSOMWARE, 
OR OTHER THIRD-PARTY ATTACKS OR DEMANDS; (D) MODIFICATION OF PRODUCTS OR 
SERVICES BY ANY PERSON OTHER THAN MOTOROLA; (E) RECOMMENDATIONS PROVIDED 
IN CONNECTION WITH OR BY THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES; (F) DATA RECOVERY 
SERVICES OR DATABASE MODIFICATIONS; OR (G) CUSTOMER’S OR ANY AUTHORIZED 
USER’S BREACH OF THIS ADDENDUM, THE PRIMARY AGREEMENT OR ANY RELATED 
AGREEMENT OR MISUSE OF THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES; (H) INTERRUPTION OR 
FAILURE OF CONNECTIVITY, VULNERABILITIES, OR SECURITY EVENTS; (I) DISRUPTION OF 
OR DAMAGE TO CUSTOMER’S OR THIRD PARTIES’ SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT, OR DATA, 
INCLUDING DENIAL OF ACCESS TO USERS, OR SHUTDOWN OF SYSTEMS CAUSED BY 
INTRUSION DETECTION SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE; (J) AVAILABILITY OR ACCURACY OF 
ANY DATA AVAILABLE THROUGH THE SERVICES, OR INTERPRETATION, USE, OR MISUSE 
THEREOF; (K) TRACKING AND LOCATION-BASED SERVICES; OR (L) BETA SERVICES. 
 



 Motorola Confidential 

7 
Motorola – Cyber Addendum (10-20-2021) 

5.4. Voluntary Remedies. Motorola is not obligated to remedy, repair, replace, or refund the 
purchase price for the disclaimed issues in Section 5.3 – Additional Exclusions above, but if Motorola 
agrees to provide Services to help resolve such issues, Customer will reimburse Motorola for its 
reasonable time and expenses, including by paying Motorola any fees set forth in this Addendum or 
separate order for such Services, if applicable. 
 
5.5. Representations and Standards.  Except as expressly set out in this Addendum or the 
applicable Motorola proposal or statement of work relating to the cyber products or services, or 
applicable portion thereof, Motorola makes no representations as to the compliance of Motorola 
cyber products and services with any specific standards, specifications or terms.  For avoidance 
of doubt, notwithstanding any related or underlying agreement or terms, conformance with any 
specific standards, specifications, or requirements, if any, as it relates to cyber products and 
services is only as expressly set out in the applicable Motorola SOW or proposal describing such 
cyber products or services or the applicable (i.e., cyber) portion thereof. Customer represents that 
it is authorized to engage Motorola to perform Services that may involve assessment, evaluation 
or monitoring of Motorola’s or its affiliate’s services, systems or products.   
 
5.6. Wind Down of Services. In addition to any other termination rights, Motorola may 
terminate the Services, any SOW or subscription term, in whole or in part, in the event Motorola 
plans to cease offering the applicable Services to customers. 
 
5.7. Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Addendum is entered into solely between, and may be 
enforced only by, the Parties. Each Party intends that the Addendum will not benefit, or create 
any right or cause of action in or on behalf of, any entity other than the Parties. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, a licensor or supplier of third-party software, products or services included in the 
Services will be a direct and intended third-party beneficiary of this Addendum. 
 
In witness whereof, the Parties hereto have executed this Addendum as of the Effective Date. 
 
             
 
 
MOTOROLA                     CUSTOMER 
 
 
BY: _________________________     BY: ___________________________  
NAME: ______________________     NAME: ________________________  
TITLE: ______________________     TITLE: _________________________  
DATE: ______________________     DATE: _________________________ 
 









































































































































 1/4/22 

Morrow County Fair Report: 

 We were able to meet with Steve Mileham with LRS Architects over zoom, Steve and his 
company specialize in county fairs and they have agreed to come out to the grounds next week and do a 
“walk thru” of the buildings and look at some of the ideas that we have been talking about and give us 
an idea of their thoughts so we can move forward with either getting feasibility study or being able to 
just look at what the building needs and how/if we can remodel & update it.  

 4H Livestock premium book is out on our website, and I will be revising the 2022 book soon.  

 Erin Heideman resigned as 4-H agent, we have not heard what their thoughts are going to be on 
replacing her as of right now. The board discussed this at the last meeting and are ready to help the 4-H 
in any way that we may need to if they have not replaced her for fair. Our board right now consists of 2 
leaders in the swine department, 1 involved in dairy and sheep, and 1 in beef. We feel very confident 
that things will continue to go smoothly for them.  

 Fair sponsorship packets will be going out soon to business as we start planning and preparing 
for 2022 fair. 

 We are looking forward to the Challenge of Champions and will be working on the details at our 
upcoming meeting.  

 The Oregon Fairs Association convention will be held February 6-9 in Salem. As of right now I will 
be the only one attending this year.  

   

Fair Dates for 2022: August 15-20 

 

 




















	Agenda
	Minutes
	Review Order #OR-2017-1:  Rotating Chairmanship of BOC
	Contract w/CCS - Behavioral Health Housing Assessment & Planning
	Subdivision Plat
	Designate County Road Official
	Amendment 7 to OHA IGA #166052, Mental Health, etc.
	Extension to FLAP Agreement
	Tax Foreclosure Sale to Previous Owner
	North County Janitorial Contract
	South County Janitorial Contract
	Contract for New 911 Phone System
	DLCD Grant Agreement
	Wheatridge SIP Distribution to School Districts
	CIS Security Services
	BOC Committee & Board Assignments
	Administrator's Monthly Report
	Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
	Fair Office Monthly Report
	Correspondence



